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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, the other repastatements, and information that Wal-Mart Stohes, (which individually or together
with its subsidiaries, as the context otherwisauir@s, is hereinafter referred to as “we,” “Walniamt the “Company”) has previously filed
with or furnished to, or that we may subsequernliyfith or furnish to, the Securities and Excha@mmmission (“SEC”) and public
announcements that we have previously made or mizgesjuently make include, may include, or may ipomate by reference certain
statements that may be deemed to be “forward-lgp&iatementsivithin the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Act of 199t
as amended, and that are intended to enjoy theqtim of the safe harbor for forward-looking staémts provided by that Act.

The forward-looking statements included or incogped by reference in this Form 10-K and that ammay be included or incorporated by
reference in those reports, statements, informatr@hannouncements address our future economigrperice, activities, events or
developments that we expect or anticipate will ayraccur in the future, including or relating, Imat limited to, our expected results of
operations for certain periods, including our salles sales of one or more of our operating segsnent earnings per share for certain
periods, and our comparable store sales or comigachl sales of one of our operating segmentgerations in a particular country for a
period, the amount, nature and allocation of futapital expenditures, dividends, capital structopening of additional stores and clubs in
the United States and additional units in the otleemtries in which we operate, the consummatiah@facquisition of assets or operations,
conversion of discount stores into supercentelgcagions of existing units, remodeling of or spé@rojects at existing units, expansion and
other development trends of the retail industry, ahility to integrate newly acquired operationwiour existing operations, our business
strategy, our business plans, our pricing strategycost of goods, our inventory levels, the apéited success and timing of various
operating initiatives, our ability to increase onarket share, our financing strategy, expansiongaadth of our business, changes in our
operations, including the mix of products sold,raes in expected sales of certain categories afyats, our ability to leverage best practi
lessons from multiple formats and global sourciracfices, our liquidity and ability to access tlapital markets, the effect of economic
developments on our customers, our operations ancesults of operations, our effective annualrte, and other similar matters and the
assumptions underlying or relating to any suctestant. Forward-looking statements are often idiewtify the use of words or phrases such
as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could occur,” “coulasult,” “continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “forecast'guidance,” “plan,” “projected,” “will

be,” “will continue,” “will change,” “will decreasg “will have,” “will increase,” and “will remain,”or words or other phrases commencing
with the word “will,” or phrases that are variatfoaf or that use such words or phrases and ottmlasiwords and phrases that denote
anticipated or expected occurrences or results.

”ou ”ou ” o ” o ”u ” . ” o ”ou ”

Our business operations are subject to numerdkss fectors and uncertainties, domestically anerirdtionally, which are outside our
control. Any one, or a combination, of these rigistors and uncertainties could materially affaat financial performance, our results of
operations, including our sales, earnings per shlacemparable store sales or comparable club sakkgffective tax rate for any period,
business operations, business strategy, planss goabjectives. These factors include, but ardimited to: general economic conditions,
including changes in the economy of the UnitedeStatr other specific markets in which we operatenemic instability, changes in the
monetary policies of the United States, the Bodr@avernors of the Federal Reserve System, othegrgments or central banks, economic
crises and disruptions in the financial marketsluding as a result of sovereign debt crises, gowental budget deficits, unemployment and
partial employment levels, employment conditionthim our markets, credit availability to consumansl businesses, levels of consumer
disposable income, consumer confidence, consuradit@vailability, consumer spending patterns, comsr debt levels, inflation, deflation,
commodity prices, the cost of the goods we sethpetitive pressures, the seasonality of our busjrszsasonal buying patterns in the United
States and our other markets, labor costs, trategmr costs, the cost of diesel fuel, gasolinéyrzd gas and electricity, the selling prices of
fuel, the cost of healthcare and other benefitsideat costs, our casualty and other insurances cimgormation security costs, the cost of
construction materials, availability of acceptablglding sites for new stores, clubs and other flspavailability of qualified labor pools in
the specific markets in which we operate, zoniagdluse and other regulatory restrictions, conmpetfiressures, accident-related costs,
weather conditions and events, catastrophic ewmrdshatural disasters, as well as storm and otmaade to our stores, clubs, distribution
centers and other facilities and store closingsaihdr limitations on customer access to our stanesclubs resulting from such events and
disasters, disruption in our supply chain, inclgdavailability and transport of goods from domesticl foreign suppliers, trade restrictions,
changes in tariff and freight rates, adoption ofleanges in tax, labor and other laws and regulatibat affect our business, including
changes in corporate tax rates, costs of compliasittelaws and regulations, the resolution of taatters, developments in and the outcon
legal and regulatory proceedings to which we guaréy or are subject, currency exchange rate fatmins and volatility, fluctuations in
market rates of interest, and other conditionsearahts affecting domestic and global financial eaglital markets, public health emergenc
economic and geo-political conditions and evemtsluiding civil unrest and disturbances and tert@itacks. Moreover, we typically earn a
disproportionate part of our annual operating ineomthe fourth quarter as a result of the seadmmghg patterns. Those buying patterns are
difficult to forecast with certainty and can beeaffed by many factors.

The foregoing list of factors that may affect opeaations and financial performance is not exclis@ther factors and unanticipated events
could adversely affect our business operationdfiaadcial performance. Our business operationsiltesf operations, financial condition
and liquidity are subject to other risk factors amgertainties, which we discuss below under tiptica “Item 1A. Risk Factors,” and in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations incorporateddfgrence in our Annual Reports on
Form 10-K and



appearing in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Caddition, from time to time, we may disclose aidaial risk factors in our Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and other reports filed with SEC. Investors and other readers are urgechgida all of these risks, uncertainties
and other factors carefully in evaluating the fomdvbooking statements. Forward-looking statemelmés e make or that are made by others
on our behalf are based on a knowledge of our kasiand the environment in which we operate andvgstsons that we believe to be
reasonable at the time such forward-looking statesngre made, but because of the factors descaibedisted above, as well as the other
risks, uncertainties and other factors, or as @altre$ changes in facts, assumptions not beingzealor other circumstances, actual results
may differ materially from those contemplated ie tbrward-looking statements. Consequently, thigioaary statement qualifies all of the
forward{ooking statements we make or that are made obehalf, including those made herein and that averporated by reference here
We cannot assure the reader that the results eta@nents expected or anticipated by us will bé&zed or, even if substantially realized,
that those results or developments will resulhim éxpected consequences for us or affect us,usimdss, our operations or our operating
results in the way we expect. We caution readersonplace undue reliance on such forward-lookitagesnents, which speak only as of their
dates. We undertake no obligation to update arlgeoforward-looking statements to reflect subsetgeants or circumstances except to the
extent required by applicable law.



WAL-MART STORES, INC.
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2012
PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmart,” the “Company” ‘twe”) operates retail stores in various formatsusethe world and is committed to
saving people money so they can live better. We e trust of our customers every day by providirtgoad assortment of quality
merchandise and services at everyday low priceBI(FZ) while fostering a culture that rewards andoeates mutual respect, integrity and
diversity. EDLP is our pricing philosophy under whiwe price items at a low price everyday so ostamuers trust that our prices will not
change under frequent promotional activity. Oursmdidlated financial statements are based on d figsea ending on January 31 for our
United States (“U.S.”) and Canadian operations@edember 31 for all other operations. During tsedl year ended January 31, 2012, we
generated net sales of approximately $443.9 billion

Currently, our operations comprise three reporthbkiness segments: the Walmart U.S. segment; timavt International segment; and the
Sam'’s Club segment.

Our Walmart U.S. segment is the largest segmeotiobusiness, accounting for approximately 60%usffiscal 2012 net sales and operates
retail stores in various formats in all 50 statethie U.S. and Puerto Rico, as well as Walmartl;enetail operations, walmart.com.

Our Walmart International segment consists of Fefaérations in 26 countries. This segment gendrapgroximately 28% of our fiscal 2012
net sales. The Walmart International segment iredutimerous formats of retail stores, restaur&atsy's Clubs and online retail operations
that operate outside the U.S.

Our Sam'’s Club segment consists of membership warehclubs operated in 47 states in the U.S. aadd’Rico, as well as the segment’s
online retail operations, samsclub.com. Sam’s @ledpunted for approximately 12% of our fiscal 202 sales.

We maintain our principal offices at 702 S.W. 8the8t, Bentonville, Arkansas 72716, USA.

The Development of Our Company

Although Walmart was incorporated in Delaware irtdder 1969, the businesses conducted by our foarebgyan in 1945 when Sam M.
Walton opened a franchise Ben Franklin varietyestorNewport, Arkansas. In 1946, his brother, Jaimé¥alton, opened a similar store in
Versailles, Missouri. Until 1962, our founders’ iness was devoted entirely to the operation ofetpistores. In that year, the first Wal-Mart
Discount City, which was a discount store, opemeRagers, Arkansas. In fiscal 1984, we openedicstrthree Sam’s Clubs, and in fiscal
1988, we opened our first supercenter. In fisc8919ve opened our first Neighborhood Market.

In fiscal 1992, we began our first internationafiative when we entered into a joint venture inXit®, in which we owned a 50% interest
along with Cifra S.A. de C.V. (“Cifra”). In 1998,avacquired the controlling interest in Cifra, and-ebruary 2000, Cifra officially changed
its name to Wal-Mart de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Sifiseal 1992, our international presence has coptirte expand. At January 31, 2012, our
Walmart International segment conducted retail toess in 26 countries.

Our Business Segments

The Company is engaged in the operation of: retailes located throughout the United States; itslytowned subsidiaries in Argentina,
Brazil, Canada, China, Japan and the United Kingdenmajority-owned subsidiaries in Chile, Mexid® countries in Africa, and 5
countries in Central America; and its joint ventuie India and China and other controlled subsigisin China. The Company defines its
segments as those business units whose operasngsrthe chief operating decision maker (“CODMyularly reviews to analyze
performance and allocate resources.

The Walmart U.S. segment includes the Company’smaschant concept under the “Walmart” or “Wal-Mérand, as well as
walmart.com. The Walmart International segment mta®f the Company’s operations outside of the. Ut Sam’s Club segment includes
the warehouse membership clubs in the U.S., asasedbmsclub.com.

The Company measures the results of its segmeinig, @nong other measures, each segment’s operatiome, which we calculate by
including certain corporate overhead allocatiomsnktime to time, we revise the measurement of sagment’s operating income, including
any corporate overhead allocations, as dictatettiddynformation regularly reviewed by our CODM. Wihee do so, the prior period amounts
for segment operating income are reclassified tdarm to the current period’s presentation.
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Walmart U.S. Segment

The Walmart U.S. segment had net sales of $264i@hi$260.3 billion and $259.9 billion for fisc2D12, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
During the most recent fiscal year, no single scgeter, discount store, Neighborhood Market or rosheall store format location accounted
for as much as 1% of total Company net sales.

General. As a mass merchandiser of consumer products, them&vaU.S. segment operates retail stores in afitafes and Puerto Rico, with
supercenters in 48 states and Puerto Rico, disstorgs in 45 states and Puerto Rico and NeighbdrMarkets and other small store forn
in 18 states and Puerto Rico. Supercenters rangjearfrom 78,000 square feet to 260,000 squateviéth an average size of approximately
182,000 square feet. Our discount stores rangeérfrom 30,000 square feet to 219,000 square fett,an average size of approximately
106,000 square feet. Neighborhood Markets and atinatl formats range in size from 3,000 squaretfeé#,000 square feet, with an aver
size of approximately 38,000 square feet. From tontime, Walmart U.S. tests different store forentat meet market demands and needs.
Customers can also purchase a broad assortmergrohamdise and services online at www.walmart.com

WALMART U.S. SEGMENT
UNIT COUNT AND RETAIL SQUARE FEET ®©

Walmart U.S. Walmart U.S.
Supercenters Discount Stores
) Conversions Square Conversions Square
Fiscal Year Openec  Closed @ Total Feet Openec  Closed @ Total Feet
Balance Forward 2,26z 422,16 1,08: 115,48
2008 82 — 10¢ 2,45 457,47. 7 2 (109) 97¢ 105,54:
2009 88 — 79 2,62( 487,90 2 4 (79 89¢ 97,15¢
2010 49 — 86 2,75¢ 510,75 — 2 (86) 81C 87,72:
2011 50 — 102 2,90 534,57 — — (202 70€ 75,11¢
2012 43 — 79 3,02¢ 552,23 — — (79 62¢ 66,40
Walmart U.S. Total
Neighborhood Markets and Other Small Formats Walmart U.S. Segment
Square Opened Square

Fiscal Year Openec Closed Total Feet ® Closed Total Feet
Balance Forward 14z 5,48¢ 3,48t 543,13¢
2008 20 — 162 6,36¢ 10¢ (2) 3,59t 569,37¢
2009 24 (2  18F 7,19z 114 (6) 3,70 592,25
2010 5 — 19C 7,37¢ 54 (2) 3,75t 605,85:.
2011 2 (3)  18¢ 7,374 52 (3) 3,80¢ 617,06
2012 27 (6) 21C 8,041 70 (6) 3,86¢ 626,68t
W “Total” and“Square Fe” columns are as of January 31 for the years shoetilsquare feet are reported in thousa

@ Includes conversions of discount stores to supéece!
@ Total opened, net of conversions of discount staresipercenter:

Merchandise.Walmart U.S. does business in six strategic memisarunits, listed below, across several store &srincluding supercenters,
discount stores, Neighborhood Markets and otheil steaie formats. The percentage of net sales tatket below reflects sales of our brick
and mortar stores, as well as sales of our onlirsiness.

(1) Grocery consists of a full line of grocery itgnncluding meat, produce, deli, bakery, dairgzén foods, alcoholic and
nonalcoholic beverages, floral and dry grocerywah as consumables such as health and beautytaitg,products, household
chemicals, paper goods and pet supp

(2) Entertainment contains electronics, toys, camand supplies, photo processing services, cepilanes, cellular service plan
contracts and prepaid service and boi

(3) Hardlines consist of stationery, automotiveessories, hardware and paint, sporting goods,cgbrd crafts and seasonal
merchandise

(4) Health and wellness includes pharmacy and opterices;
(5) Apparel includes apparel for women, girls, men,sagd infants, shoes, jewelry and accessories
(6) Home includes home furnishings, housewares and sipliances, bedding, home décor, outdoor livind horticulture
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The Walmart U.S. segment also offers financialisesvand related products, including money ordeirg, transfers, check cashing and bill
payment. These services total less than 1% of disales.

Nationally advertised merchandise represents afiignt portion of the merchandise sold in the WalttriJ.S. segment. We also market lii
of merchandise under our private-label store bramclading: “Canopy,” “Equate,” “Everstart,” “Faddglory,” “George,” “Great Value,”
“Hometrends,” “Mainstays,” “Marketside,” “No Boundas,” “OI' Roy,” “Ozark Trail,” “Parent’s Choice,"Prima Della,” “Puritan,” “Spring
Valley” and “White Stag.” The Company also markiaies of merchandise under licensed brands, somizh include: “Better Homes &
Gardens,” “Danskin Now,” “Disney,” “General Eleatyi “Just My Size,” “OP,” “Rival” and “Starter.”

The percentage of net sales for the Walmart U @nsaet, including online sales, represented by streltegic merchandise unit was as
follows during the fiscal years ended:

January 31,

STRATEGIC MERCHANDISE UNITS 2012 2011

Grocery 55% 53%
Entertainmen 12% 12%
Hardlines 10% 11%
Health and wellnes 11% 11%
Apparel 7% 8%
Home 5% _ 5%
Total 10C% 10C%

Periodically, we make revisions to the categoraatf the components comprising our strategic naerdlse units. When revisions are made,
we also adjust the previous period’s presentatamdintain comparability.

Operations. Hours of operation for nearly all supercenters andhcreasing number of discount stores and Neigittool Markets are 24
hours each day. Hours of operation for the remgisipercenters, discount stores, Neighborhood Mwda other small store formats vary
by location, but are generally 7:00 a.m. to 10:0@1100 p.m., seven days a week. We accept a yarigtayment methods including cash,
check, debit and credit cards, electronic ben#fitssfer cards, a private-label store credit casded by a third-party provider and online
payments through PayPal. In addition, our pharnaacyoptical departments accept payments for predudd services through our
customers’ health benefit plans.

Seasonal Aspects of Operationdhe Walmart U.S. segment’s business is seasom@atéotain extent due to different calendar events,
national and religious holidays, as well as différeimatic conditions. Historically, its highestles volume and segment operating income
occur in the fiscal quarter ending January 31, Wimcludes the holiday season, and the lowest salesne and segment operating income
occur during the fiscal quarter ending April 30.

Competition. The Walmart U.S. segment competes with a varietpasl, national and global chains in the supermgriiscount, grocery,
department, dollar, drug, variety and specialtyegpsupercenter-type stores, hypermarkets, irttbased retailers and catalog businesses
also compete with other retailers for new storessit

Our ability to develop, open and operate unithatright locations and offer value and serviceupaustomers largely determines our
competitive position within the retail industry. Véenploy many programs designed to meet competitigesures within our industry. These
programs include the following:

. EDLP — our commitment to price leadership and gigimg philosophy under which we price items abw price every day so our
customers trust that our prices will not changeaunricequent promotional activit

. Rollbacks- our commitment to continually pass cost savingsoaihe customer by lowering prices on selected gr
. Save Even Mor+- a strategy to meet or be below a compe’'s advertised price

. Store of the Community — a program to ensure theehaadise assortment in a particular store fitsr@ographic needs of the
local community in which that store is located;

. Clean, Fast and Friendly — our commitment to delavgreat customer experience through fast, frieedivice in a clean
environment



We offer a broad assortment of merchandise thatigge one-stop shopping, in-stock levels that girecustomers confidence that we will
have the products they need and operating hourslflbas customers to shop at their convenience.

Distribution. During fiscal 2012, approximately 80% of the WaliarS. segment’s purchases of merchandise werpathifp the stores
through our distribution centers, which are locagedtegically throughout the United States. Tharmze of merchandise purchased was
shipped directly to stores from suppliers. Genaratchandise is transported to stores primarilyughoour private truck fleet. However, we
contract with common carriers to transport the mgj@f our perishable and dry grocery merchandise.

Our Walmart U.S. segment operations are supposted8B distribution facilities as of January 31, 20Ibcated strategically throughout the
U.S. Of these 133 distribution facilities, we owrsetl operated 105. We owned and a third party ¢geiane distribution facility and third
parties owned and operated the remaining 27 digtoib facilities. In addition to servicing the Wadmh U.S. segment, some of our Walmart
distribution centers also service our Sam'’s Cludrsent for certain items.

Walmart International Segment

The Walmart International segment’s net salesifwaf 2012, 2011 and 2010, were $125.9 billion, %2 ®illion and $97.4 billion,
respectively. During the most recent fiscal yearsimgle unit accounted for as much as 1% of ©tahpany net sales.

General. Our Walmart International segment is comprisedwfwholly-owned subsidiaries operating in ArgentiBaazil, Canada, China,
Japan, and the United Kingdom; our majority-ownelisidiaries operating in Chile, Mexico, 12 courdrie Africa and 5 countries in Central
America; our joint ventures in China and India ad other controlled subsidiaries in China. Walnlatérnational operates units under
approximately 70 banners in numerous formats, dinlydiscount stores, supermarkets, supercentgosrimarkets, websites, warehouse
clubs, restaurants, and apparel stores. Also,lionited basis, our Walmart International segmergrafes banks that provide consumer
lending.

WALMART INTERNATIONAL SEGMENT
UNIT COUNT AND RETAIL SQUARE FEET @

Africa Argentina Brazil Canada irggtrgg:li Chile
Unit Square Unit Square Unit Square Unit Square Unit Square Unit Square
Fiscal Year Count Feet Count Feet Count Feet Count Feet Count Feet Count Feet
Balance Forwar: — — 13 2,42i 29¢  23,78¢ 28¢ 33,659, 41z 7,128 — —
2008 — — 21 3,78¢ 31: 24,95¢ 30t 36,59( 457 7,82: — —
2009 — — 28 4,301 34¢ 26,59+ 31&¢ 39,50 50z 8,277 197 9,564
2010 — — 43 5,18t 434 28,69¢ 317 40,22t 51¢ 8,441 25z 10,43;
2011 — — 63 6,211 47¢ 30,27: 32t 42,008 54¢ 8,73¢ 27¢ 11,11t
2012 347 18,52¢ 88 7,27( 51z 31,57 33:  43,73¢ 62z 9,501 31€ 11,78
United Total Walmart
China India Japan @ Mexico Kingdom International
Square
Unit Square Unit Unit Square Unit Square Unit Square Unit Square
Fiscal Year Count Feet Count Feet  Count Feet Count Feet Count Feet Count Feet
Balance Forwari 73 1358: — — 422  26,92¢ 88¢ 50,40: 33t 26,80( 2,73: 184,64!
2008 20z 36,39. — — 42C 24,56¢ 1,02 56,80« 35z 27,86¢ 3,09¢ 218,79:
2009 225 39,97 — — 417 24,51« 1,201 63,067 35& 29,01 3,59t 244,80:
2010 27€ 49,40 1 50 414 24,29: 1,46¢ 69,067 371 30,05 4,09¢ 265,84¢
2011 32¢& 56,31 5 27C 414 24,51¢ 1,73C 76,22¢ 38t 31,00¢ 4,557 286,68(
2012 37C 62,12 15 82¢ 41¢ 24,52. 2,08¢ 85,25! 541 33,76% 5,651 328,88

(1) “Square Feet” columns are reported in thousaWtddmart International unit counts, with the exti@p of Canada, are stated as of
December 31 for fiscal 2012 through 2009. Canadiaconnts are stated as of January 31 for fiscaR2@rough 2009. For fiscal 2008,
all country balances are stated as of January@®8.

(2) All periods include the Wakana units, which teke-out restaurants generally less than 1,008redeet in size. The information for
fiscal 2009, fiscal 2008 and the balance forwarthantable excludes 23 Seiyu units closed in fi264l0.
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Walmart International has a diverse portfolio wagtproximately 70 banners, represented in threemaajegories: retail, wholesale and other.
Generally, retail centers range in size from 8,890are feet to 110,000 square feet. Our wholesalessgenerally range in size from 35,000
square feet to 70,000 square feet. Other, includistpurants in Chile, Japan and Mexico, rang&afsom under 1,000 square feet to 4,200
square feet. Unit count8 for Walmart Internaticena as follows:

Geographic Market Retail Wholesale Other Total

Africa @ 24¢ 98 — 347
Argentina 88 — — 88
Brazil 42¢ 83 — 512
Canade 332 — — 332
Central Americe® 62C 2 — 622
Chile 314 — 2 31€
China 364 6 — 37C
India — 15 — 15
Japar 367 — 52 41¢
Mexico 1,60( 124 364 2,08¢
United Kingdom 541 — — 541
International Total 4,90t 32¢ 41€ 5,651

(1) Walmart International unit counts, with the egtion of Canada, are stated as of December 31, 80dorrespond with the country’s
balance sheet dal

(2) Africa includes Botswana, Ghana, Lesotho, Mal&dtozambique, Namibia, Nigeria, South Africa, SWlad, Tanzania, Uganda and
Zambia.

(3) Central America includes Costa Rica, El Salvadaratemala, Honduras and Nicarag

Merchandise. The merchandising strategy for the Walmart Intéama segment is similar to that of our operationthe United States in
terms of the breadth and scope of merchandiseeaffier sale. While brand name merchandise accdangsmajority of sales, numerous st
brands not offered for sale in the U.S. storescmiols have been developed to serve customers itiffeeent markets in which the Walmart
International segment operates. In addition, step® been taken to develop relationships with leappliers in each country to ensure
reliable sources of quality merchandise.

Operations. The hours of operation for operating units in thalWart International segment vary by country andniolvidual markets within
countries, depending upon local and national ordira governing hours of operation. We accept &tyaof payment methods including ce
check, debit and credit cards, private-label stoeglit cards issued by third-party providers, an@anada, Chile and Mexico, credit cards
issued by our subsidiaries. Limited consumer figgmograms exist in certain markets to facilithie purchase of goods by the customer.
Across the Walmart International segment, we arerbging best practices, lessons from multipleestormats and global sourcing practices.

Seasonal Aspects of Operation3he Walmart International segment’s business isaeal to a certain extent. Historically, the segtisen
highest sales volume and operating income occauirfiscal quarter ending January 31 and the setislemest sales volume and operating
income occur in the fiscal quarter ending April 38e seasonality of the business varies by couhteyto different national and religious
holidays, festivals and customs, as well as diffecimatic conditions.

Competition. The Walmart International segment competes withréety of local, national and global chains in supermarket, discount,
grocery, department, drug, variety and speciatiyest supercenter-type stores, hypermarkets, wdielekibs, internet-based retailers and
catalog businesses in each of the countries infwilv operate. We also operate restaurant chainsarsimer finance operations. Our ab
to offer our customers low prices on quality merdtiae determines, to a large extent, our competjisition in the countries in which
Walmart International operates. EDLP is the rigigibess model for our customers and for all ofroarkets, including high-growth or
emerging markets. We are in the midst of a muléiry@an to transition all of our markets to EDLRir@bility to operate the food
departments effectively has a major impact on dwggrent’'s competitive position in the markets wheeeoperate.
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Distribution. We utilize a total of 158 distribution facilitieedated in Argentina, Brazil, Canada, Central An&richile, China, India, Japan,
Mexico, South Africa and the United Kingdom, indlugl one export consolidation facility in the Unit8tates. Through these facilities, we
process and distribute both imported and domestidyzts to the operating units of the Walmart Imé&tional segment. During fiscal 2012,
approximately 75% of the Walmart International segtfs purchases flowed through these distributamilifies. Suppliers ship the balance of
the Walmart International segment’s purchases tjréz our stores in the various countries in whioh operate. Of these 158 distribution
facilities, we owned and operated 39, we ownedthind parties operated 9 and we leased and ope8&tethird parties leased and operated
the remaining 42 distribution facilities.

Sam'’s Club Segment

The Sam'’s Club segment had net sales of $53.8hil$49.5 billion and $47.8 billion for fiscal 2012011 and 2010, respectively. During the
most recent fiscal year, no single club locatioocanted for as much as 1% of total Company netssale

General. As a membership club warehouse, facility sizesSim’s Clubs generally range between 71,000 and@0Gquare feet, with an
average size of approximately 134,000 square $zeh’s Club also provides its members with a braad@ment of merchandised service
online at www.samsclub.com

SAM’S CLUB SEGMENT
CLUB COUNT AND RETAIL SQUARE FEET ®@

Square
Fiscal Year Openec Closec Total Feet
Balance Forwar 58¢ 77,35(
2008 12 — 60C 79,31¢
2009 11 — 611 80,98¢
2010 6 (12 60< 80,53¢
2011 4 — 60¢ 81,202
2012 3 D 611 81,58¢

(1) “Total” and“Square Fe” columns are as of January 31 for the years shoetailRquare feet are reported in thousa

Merchandise.Sam’s Club offers brand name merchandise, inclubdardgoods, some softgoods and selected privagditeims such as
“Member’'s Mark” and three new proprietary brandsttisan Fresh,” “Daily Chef” and “Simply Right,” ifive merchandise categories, listed
below, within the warehouse club format.

(1) Grocery and consumables includes dairy, medeety, deli, produce, dry, chilled or frozen pagédoods, alcoholic and
nonalcoholic beverages, floral, snack foods, canther grocery items, health and beauty aids, pgpeds, laundry and home
care, baby care, pet supplies and other consuritahis;

(2) Fuel and other categories consist of gasolineostatitobacco, tools and power equipment, and tidebattery center:

(3) Technology, office and entertainment includiesteonics, wireless, software, video games, mgwesks, music, office supplies,
office furniture and photo processir

(4) Home and apparel includes home improvementicautliving, grills, gardening, furniture, appargwelry, housewares, toys,
seasonal items, mattresses and small applianca

(5) Health and wellness includes pharmacy and opter@ices and ov-the-counter drugs
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The percentage of net sales for the Sa@lub segment, including online sales, by merctsgnchtegory, was as follows during the fiscal g
ended:

January 31,

MERCHANDISE CATEGORY 2012 2011

Grocery and consumables 55% 55%
Fuel and other categori 24% 23%
Technology, office and entertainme 8% 9%
Home and appar: 8% 8%
Health and wellnes 5% _ 5%
Total 10C% 10C%

Operations. Operating hours for Sam’s Clubs are Monday thrdegthay from 10:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m., Saturday fi@®0 a.m. to 8:30 p.m.
and Sunday from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Additionall club locations offer a Gold Key program tiparmits Business Members and Plus
Members to shop before the regular operating hslarsday through Saturday, starting at 7:00 a.m.

Sam'’s Clubs are membership only operations. A tsadEpayment methods are accepted at our clubkjding cash, check, debit cards,
certain types of credit cards and private label @mbranded Discover credit cards, issued by d+{ba@rty provider. In addition, our pharmacy
and optical departments accept payments for preduad services through our members’ health bepletits.

Members include both business owners and individaatumers. Individual consumers are referred tddssntage Members. The annual
membership fee for an individual Advantage MembeB40 (plus taxes, if applicable) for the primargmbership card, with a
spouse/household card available at no additiorsl @tve annual membership fee for Business Memb&35 (plus taxes, if applicable) for
the primary membership card, with a spouse/housdatanid available at no additional cost. In additiBasiness Members can add up to 8
business associates to their business accoun8foffbus taxes, if applicable) each. Sam’s Cluts e premium membership program that
offers additional benefits and services to bothiBess and Advantage Members. The annual fee ftwsaNPember (Business or Advantage
$100 (plus taxes, if applicable). In addition, Biesis Plus Members can add up to 16 business assaidheir business membership for $35
(plus taxes, if applicable) each.

Seasonal Aspects of Operation3he Sam’s Club segment’s business is seasonatédain extent due to different calendar eventsonal
and religious holidays, as well as different climabnditions. Historically, its highest sales volei and segment operating income occur il
fiscal quarter ending January 31, which includeshtliday season, and the lowest sales volumeegrent operating income occur during
the fiscal quarter ending April 30.

Competition. Sam’s Club competes with other warehouse clubaiefisas with discount retailers, retail and wholesgrocers, general
merchandise wholesalers and distributors, gassetat#ons, internet-based retailers and cataloghkases. Sam’s Club also competes with
other retailers and warehouse clubs for desiradbe alub sites. Our ability to offer low prices agaklity merchandise and food to meet the
needs of our members largely determines our cothpefiosition in the warehouse club industry.

Distribution. During fiscal 2012, approximately 63% of the Sa@lab segment’s non-fuel purchases were shipped fhren$am’s Club
segment’s dedicated distribution facilities andifreome of the Walmart U.S. segment’s distributienters. Suppliers shipped the balance of
the Sam’s Club segment’s purchases directly to S&hib locations. As of January 31, 2012, our Sdbhih segment operations were
supported by 25 distribution facilities locatedasigically throughout the continental United Sta€fsthese 25 distribution facilities, we
owned and operated 8. Third parties owned and tggethe remaining 17 distribution facilities.

The principal focus of our Sam'’s Club’s distributioperations is on cross-docking merchandise, veldleed inventory is minimized. Cross-
docking is a distribution process under which shapta are directly transferred from inbound to outimbtrailers. Shipments typically spend
less than 24 hours in a cross-dock facility, somes less than an hour.

Sam'’s Club uses a combination of our private trile#t, as well as common carriers, to transportperishable merchandise from
distribution centers to clubs. We contract with coom carriers to transport perishable grocery merdise from distribution centers to clubs.
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Other Segment Information

Certain financial information relating to our segrtgeis included in our Annual Report to Sharehader the fiscal year ended January 31,
2012 (“Annual Report to Shareholders”) under thatioa “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Ritial Condition and Results of
Operations” and in Note 15 in the “Notes to Cordatied Financial Statements” included therein, wimiébrmation is incorporated herein by
reference. Note 15 includes information regardingsegment and total company net sales, as whdhgslived assets in the United States.
Portions of the Annual Report to Shareholdersaekided as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Faf¥K.

Employees

As of the end of fiscal 2012, the Company andiitss&liaries employed approximately 2.2 million eaygles (“associates”) worldwide, with
approximately 1.4 million associates in the Uni&tdtes and 0.8 million associates internation&isnilar to other retailers, the Company has
a large number of part-time, hourly or non-exengstogiates and experiences significant turnovessocates each year.

Through fiscal 2011, the Company maintained sepamatfit sharing and 401(k) plans for associataténUnited States and Puerto Rico,
under which associates generally became partiggatibwing one year of employment. The profit shgrcomponent was entirely funded by
the Company, and the Company also made additi@mtibutions to the 401(k) component of the plamadidition to the Company’s
contributions, associates could elect to contrilaupercentage of their earnings to the 401(k) corapbof the plan.

Effective February 1, 2011, the Company termingitedprevious profit sharing and 401(k) plans arfdrefl new safe harbor 401(k) plans for
associates in the United States and Puerto Riderumhich associates generally become particifafitaving one year of employment.
Under the safe harbor 401(k) plans, the Compangmeat100% of participant contributions up to 6%fual eligible earnings. The
matching contributions immediately vest at 100%each associate. Participants can contribute 80% of their pretax earnings, but not
more than the statutory limits. Participants ag@b6lder may defer additional earnings in catgheontributions up to the maximum statut
limits.

Contribution expense associated with these plass$®82 million in fiscal 2012 and $1.1 billion iisdal 2011 and 2010.

In addition, in the U.S., the Company offers a broange of Company-paid benefits to our associatekiding store discount cards or Sam’s

Club memberships, bonuses based on Company perioenanatching a portion of purchases through treonéiate Stock Purchase Plan and

life insurance. The Company also offers health-bamefits to eligible full-time and part-time assdes. The Company’s medical plan has no
lifetime maximum benefit for most expenses.

In our operations outside the U.S., the Companyiges a variety of associate benefits that varygbtams customary local practices and
statutory requirements.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following chart names each of the executivecef§ of the Company, each of whom is elected loysemves at the pleasure of the Board
of Directors. The business experience shown fol eéfficer has been his or her principal occupafmrat least the past five years, unless

otherwise noted.

Name

Neil M. Ashe

Rosalind G. Brewer

M. Susan Chambers

Leslie A. Dach

Michael T. Duke

Rollin L. Ford

Jeffrey J. Gearhart

Charles M. Holley, Jr.

C. Douglas McMillon

William S. Simon

S. Robson Walto
Steven P. Whaley

Current
Position
Business Experience Held Since

Executive Vice President, President and Chief EtteeOfficer, Global eCommerce 201z
beginning in January 2012. From April 2011 to 211, he served as Special Advisor to

the Chief Executive Officer of CBS Corporation, ass media company. From July 2008 to

April 2011, he served as President of CBS Intevaciinc., an Internet content publisher.

From October 2006 to June 2008, he served as Ekedutive Officer of CNET Networks

Inc., an Internet content compail

Executive Vice President, President and Chief EtveeOfficer, Sam’s Club, effective 201z
February 1, 2012. From February 2011 to Januar® 2€He served as Executive Vice

President and President of the East business umiatmart U.S. From February 2010 to

January 2011, she served as Executive Vice PrasienPresident of the South business

unit of Walmart U.S. From March 2007 to January@Ghe served as Divisional Senior

Vice President of Walmart U.S., responsible forratiens in the Southeast. From October

2006 to February 2007, she served as regionalpresident of Walmart U.S., responsible

for operations in Georgii

Executive Vice President, Global People. From Ddmam2003 to April 2006, she served as ~ 200¢
Executive Vice President, Risk Management, Inswraard Benefits Administratio

Executive Vice President, Corporate Affairs. Frorarlth 1997 to August 2006, he serve 200¢
Vice Chairman of Daniel J. Edelman, i

President and Chief Executive Officer. From Septen#05 to January 2009, he served as  200¢
Vice Chairman, W«Mart Stores, Inc., responsible for Walmart Inteiorzl.

Executive Vice President and Chief Administrativificgr. From May 2006 to January 2012
2012, he served as Executive Vice President, Ghiefmation Officer. From February
2003 to April 2006, he served as Executive VicesRlient, Logistics and Supply Cha

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and CGatpd&becretary. From February 2009 to  201(
July 2010, he served as Executive Vice Presidesme@l Counsel. From December 200

February 2009, he served as Senior Vice PresiBepmtity General Counsel. From

September 2003 to December 2007, he served asPvésident, General Counsel,

Corporate Division

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi¢eom January 2007 to November 201
2010, he served as Executive Vice President, Fsand Treasurer. From December 2005
to January 2007, he served as Senior Vice Presiflgrance

Executive Vice President, President and Chief EtceeDfficer, Walmart International. 200¢
From August 2005 to January 2009, he served asufixedVice President, President and
Chief Executive Officer, Sa’s Club.

Executive Vice President, President and Chief EtreeDfficer, Walmart U.S. From Mar¢ 201C
2007 to July 2010, he served as Executive Viceitkeag Chief Operating Officer, Walmart

U.S. From March 2006 to March 2007, he served a&ctwe Vice President, Professional
Services, Walmart U.¢

Chairman of the Board of Directol 199:

Senior Vice President and Controller. From Decen2065 to January 2007, he served as 2007
Vice President and Controller. From September 20@@ecember 2005, he served as Vice
President and Assistant Controll
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Our Website and Availability of SEC Reports and Otler Information

Our corporate website is located at www.walmareg@om We file with or furnish to the SEC Annual Repasts Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8Kany amendment to those reports, proxy statenaadtgannual reports to
shareholders, and, from time to time, other documérhe reports and other documents filed withuoniEhed to the SEC are available to
investors on or through our corporate website @ifegharge as soon as reasonably practicable aéieectronically file them with or furnish
them to the SEC. In addition, the public may read eopy any of the materials we file with the SEGha SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington DC 20549. The pubbg wbtain information on the operation of the PuBleference Room by calling the
SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an intsiteethat contains reports, proxy and informastatements and other information
regarding issuers, such as the Company, thatlétrenically with the SEC. The address of that siehis www.sec.govOur SEC filings,
our Code of Ethics for our CEO and Senior FinanGifficers and our Statement of Ethics can be faamthe Investor Relations page of our
website at www.walmartstores.com/investothese documents are available in print to anyestedder who requests a copy by writing or
calling our Investor Relations Department, whiclosated at our principal offices.

A description of any substantive amendment or wai¥é&Valmart's Code of Ethics for the CEO and Seifimancial Officers will be
disclosed on the Investor Relations page of oursitelat www.walmartstores.coamder the Corporate Governance section. Any such
description will be located on our website for aipe of 12 months following the amendment or waiver

ITEM 1A . RISK FACTORS

The risks described below could materially and asklg affect our business, results of operationsnicial condition and liquidity. These
risks are not the only risks that we face. Our hess operations could also be affected by additfactors that apply to all companies
operating in the United States and globally, ad a&bther risks that are not presently known toruhat we currently consider to be
immaterial to our operations.

General economic factors, both domestically and ietnationally, may adversely affect our financial peformance.

General economic conditions, globally or in onenarre of the markets we serve, may adversely affecfinancial performance. In the
United States, higher interest rates, higher fadl@her energy costs, weakness in the housingatjarilation, deflation, higher levels of
unemployment, decreases in consumer disposablmmaanavailability of consumer credit, higher cansu debt levels, fluctuations in
currency exchange rates, higher tax rates and ottzrges in tax laws, other regulatory changegathwconomic slowdown and other
economic factors could adversely affect consumearatel for the products and services we sell thraughNalmart U.S. segment and Sam'’s
Club segment, change the mix of products we selhtwith a lower average gross margin, causevedsian in discretionary purchases of
goods and result in slower inventory turnover arehter markdowns on inventory. Higher levels ofmpyment, inflation, deflation,
decreases in consumer disposable income, changgesamd other laws, higher fuel and other eneapfs; weakness in the local housing
market, fluctuations in currency exchange rategetiey devaluations and other adverse developnietii® economies of the other countries
in which we operate may adversely affect consuraearahd for our merchandise in those countries, édpethose countries in which
average incomes are significantly lower than inuinéted States. These conditions may adverselgtdfer gross margins, cost of sales,
inventory turnover and markdowns or otherwise askfgraffect our operations and operating resultsuinWalmart International segment.

Higher interest rates, higher fuel and other enegts, transportation costs, inflation, highetsad$ labor, insurance and healthcare, foreign
exchange rate fluctuations, higher tax rates ahdrathanges in tax laws, the imposition of meastvaiscreate barriers to or increase the
associated with international trade, changes iarddws and regulations and other economic fadtottse United States and other countrie
which we have operations can increase our costle$ &ind operating, selling, general and adminiigér@xpenses, and otherwise adversely
affect our domestic and international operatiors @ur operating results. The economic factorsdffatt our operations also affect the
operations and economic viability of our suppli#en whom we purchase goods, a factor that cartrigsan increase in the cost to us of the
goods we sell to our customers or, in more extreases, could result in certain suppliers not produgoods in the volume typically
available to us for sale.

We may face impediments to our expansion in the Utgd States, including conversions of discount stosénto supercenters and
opening other store formats, which may adversely &ct our financial performance.

Our expansion strategy depends upon our abiligxezute our retail concepts successfully in newketarwithin the United States and upon
our ability to increase the number of stores inkatr in which we currently have operations. Oultitgltio open additional supercenters,
discount stores, Neighborhood Markets, other dtmraats, and Sam’s Clubs and to convert existisgalint stores into supercenters depends
in large measure upon our ability to locate, hird eetain qualified personnel
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and to acquire new store sites on acceptable témesl land use and other regulations restrictimgdonstruction of buildings of the type in
which we operate our various formats, as well aalloommunity action opposed to the location otcffjfestores at specific sites and the
adoption of certain local laws restricting our aii@ms, may affect our ability to open new stoned elubs, to convert discount stores into
supercenters or to relocate or expand existing umitertain cities and states. Increased realegstanstruction and development costs could
limit our growth opportunities and our ability torovert our discount stores into supercenters. laveeunable to open new supercenters,
discount stores, Neighborhood Markets, other sfoathats or Sam’s Clubs or continue to convert disttores into supercenters, our
financial performance, such as net sales and dpgriaicome growth, could be adversely affectedaddition, if consumers in the markets |
which we expand are not receptive to our retailceqts or are otherwise not receptive to our presena market, our financial performance
could be adversely affected.

Impediments to the expansion of our Walmart Interndional operations could adversely affect our finanial performance.

Our business strategy for our Walmart Internatigegiment includes expansion by selective acquisitimd strategic alliances that add new
stores and markets to our existing Walmart Intéonat business, as well as opening new units ircthatries in which we have existing
operations. In the countries in which we have @égsbperations, new units may be opened in the dsralready existing in those countrie:
may be opened in newly introduced formats, suctugercenters or Sam’s Clubs, not previously opératéhose markets. As in the United
States, our ability to open new stores or to exganeélocate existing stores in a market servedunyWalmart International segment depends
in large measure upon our ability to locate, hird eetain qualified personnel and our ability tg@ice new store sites on acceptable terms.
Local laws can affect our ability to acquire atthae pre-existing buildings in which to locate undr sites on which to build new units or to
expand existing units. In addition, access to Iscgipliers of certain types of goods may limit ability to add new units or to expand proc
selections in existing units in certain markets.rétver, cultural differences in some markets intocly we expand or into which we introdi
new retail concepts may result in the consumetisaee markets not being as receptive to our retaitepts as we anticipate those consumers
will be and may make an effective response to ssgires more difficult to achieve. If we do not effeely execute our expansion plans for
our Walmart International segment, our financiaf@enance could be adversely affected.

We may be unable to continue to identify suitaluiguisition candidates at acceptable prices andmoape successful in completing the
acquisition of any such candidate identified. Aligh we ultimately believe we will be able to suafaby integrate any newly acquired
operations into our existing operations, no cetyadixists that future acquisitions or allianced Wé successfully integrated into our
operations or can be successfully integrated gaaanable time. Our failure to identify approprizaedidates for acquisition or alliance or to
integrate effectively future acquisitions and altias into our existing operations could adverstbctathe growth of our Walmart
International segment and our future financial perniance.

Failure to attract and retain qualified associateschanges in laws and other labor issues could adwaly affect our financial
performance.

Our ability to continue to expand our operationshi@ United States and abroad depends on ouryatoilé@ttract and retain a large and grow
number of qualified associates. Our ability to mmatlabor needs, including our ability to find ditiad personnel to fill positions that
become vacant at our existing stores, clubs aridhditon centers, while controlling our associatgge and related labor costs, is generally
subject to numerous external factors, includingatailability of a sufficient number of qualifieeggsons in the work force of the markets in
which we are located, unemployment levels withimsthmarkets, prevailing wage rates, changing despbigs, health and other insurance
costs and adoption of new or revised employmentamal laws and regulations. If we are unable tate, to attract or to retain qualified
personnel, if our costs of labor or related castsdase significantly or if new or revised labavdarules or regulations are adopted, our
financial performance could be adversely affected.

We face strong competition from other retailers andvholesale club operators, which could adversely fafct our financial performance.

The retail business is highly competitive. Eaclowf business segments competes for customers, gegslostore sites, products and services
and in other important aspects of its business miiny other local, regional and national retailbath in the United States and in the foreign
countries in which we have operations. Our Walrhba8. segment competes with retailers operatingodist; department, drug, dollar, varit
and specialty stores, supermarkets, supercenterstgpes and hypermarkets, as well as internetrasailers and catalog businesses. Our
Sam’s Club segment competes with other wholesale @berators, as well as discount retailers, ratadl wholesale grocers and general
merchandise wholesalers and distributors, gasetai#ons, as well as internet-based retailers, egadérs and catalog businesses.
Internationally, we compete with retailers who gerdepartment, drug, dollar stores, variety artisfty stores, supermarkets, supercenter-
type stores, hypermarkets, wholesale clubs, intdyased retailers and catalog businesses. Sudlerst@nd wholesale club
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operators compete in a variety of ways, includirggchandise selection and availability, servicesreffl to customers, location, store hours,
in-store amenities and price. Where necessaryrtipete effectively with competitors who price menatise at points lower than the prices
we set under our EDLP philosophy, we will lower guices on goods for sale. Our ability to respoffielotively to competitive pressures and
changes in the retail markets could adversely tffacfinancial performance. See “Item 1. Businessdve for additional discussion of our
competitive situation in our various operating segis.

Although the retail industry as a whole is highlggfmented, certain segments of the retail indwsycurrently undergoing some
consolidation, which could result in increased cetitpn and significantly alter the dynamics of tie¢ail marketplace. Such consolidation
may result in competitors with greatly improveddfiitial resources, improved access to merchandsatey market penetration than they
previously enjoyed and other improvements in thempetitive positions. Such business combinatiangdcresult in the provision of a wider
variety of products and services at competitiveggiby such consolidated companies, which couldradly affect our financial performans

Risks associated with the suppliers from whom ouroducts are sourced and the safety of those productould adversely affect our
financial performance.

The products we sell are sourced from a wide wanétlomestic and international suppliers. Glolmlrsing of many of the products we sell
is an important factor in our financial performand# of our suppliers must comply with applicaliéavs, including labor and environmental
laws, and otherwise be certified as meeting ounired supplier standards of conduct. Our abilit§itol qualified suppliers who meet our
standards and to access products in a timely divicet manner is a significant challenge, espécialith respect to suppliers located and
goods sourced outside the United States. Poliicdleconomic instability in the countries in whioheign suppliers are located, the financial
instability of suppliers, suppliers’ failure to memir supplier standards, labor problems experigtgeour suppliers, the availability of raw
materials to suppliers, merchandise quality issc@sency exchange rates, transportation avaitglzhd cost, transportation security,
inflation and other factors relating to the supggiand the countries in which they are locatecbag@nd our control. In addition, the United
States’ foreign trade policies, tariffs and othmpeositions on imported goods, trade sanctions imgas certain countries, the limitation on
the importation of certain types of goods or of @®oontaining certain materials from other coustdnd other factors relating to foreign tr
are beyond our control. These and other factoestiffg our suppliers and our access to productel @ayversely affect our financial
performance.

Our customers count on us to provide them with pedelucts. Concerns regarding the safety of foatreon-food products that we source
from our suppliers and then sell could cause sheppeavoid purchasing certain products from u@eek alternative sources of supply for
all of their food and noffieod needs, even if the basis for the concerntside of our control. Any lost confidence on thetd our customel
would be difficult and costly to reestablish. Akpany issue regarding the safety of any foodramdfood items we sell, regardless of the
cause, could adversely affect our financial perfomoe.

Our Walmart International operations subject us torisks associated with the legislative, judicial, amunting, regulatory, political and
economic risks and conditions specific to the courigs or regions in which we operate, which could agersely affect our financial
performance.

We currently conduct operations in 12 countrieéfiica, Argentina, Brazil, Canada, Chile, Chinazduntries in Central America, Japan,
Mexico and the United Kingdom, as well as througjhtjventure agreements in China and India andther controlled subsidiaries in Chi
During fiscal 2012, our Walmart International opgemas generated approximately 28% of our net séles result of our expansion activities
in countries outside the United States, we exgedtdur Walmart International operations could actdor a larger portion of our net sales in
future years. Our future operating results in themntries or in other countries or regions thraughhe world could be negatively affected
by a variety of factors, most of which are beyond @ontrol. These factors include political conatiis, including political instability,

economic conditions, legal and regulatory constsaitnade policies, both of the United States drttie@ other countries in which we operate,
currency regulations, and other matters in anjefdountries or regions in which we operate, noim ¢ie future. Foreign currency exchange
rates and fluctuations may have an impact on durdwcosts or on future cash flows from our Walnhateernational operations, and could
adversely affect our financial performance.

Moreover, the economies of some of the countrieghith we have operations have in the past suffrged high rates of inflation and
currency devaluations, which, if they occurred agaould adversely affect our financial performar@ther factors which may impact our
Walmart International operations include foreigadi, monetary and fiscal policies both of the Whiates and of other countries, laws,
regulations and other activities of foreign goveemts, agencies and similar organizations, and &sksciated with having numerous facili
located in countries which have historically beesslstable than the United States. Additional righerent in our Walmart International
operations generally include, among others, thésarsd difficulties of managing international opmas, adverse tax consequences and
greater difficulty in enforcing intellectual propgrrights in countries other than the United Stald® various risks inherent in doing business
in the United States generally also exist when glbinsiness outside of the United States, and maxaggerated by the difficulty of doing
business in numerous sovereign jurisdictions dukfferences in culture, laws and regulations.
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Natural disasters and geo-political events could agrsely affect our financial performance.

The occurrence of one or more natural disastech a8 hurricanes, cyclones, typhoons, tropicahstofloods, earthquakes, tsunamis, we
conditions such as major or extended winter stodrmjghts and tornados, whether as a result oltéirohange or otherwise, severe changes
in climate and geo-political events, such as ainilest or terrorist attacks in a country in which @perate or in which our suppliers are
located could adversely affect our operations amahtial performance. Such events could resulhiysfzal damage to, or the complete loss
of, one or more of our properties, the closurertd or more stores, clubs and distribution centheslack of an adequate work force in a
market, the inability of customers and our assesi&b reach or have transportation to our stordshibs directly affected by such events, the
evacuation of the populace from areas in whichsbares, clubs and distributions centers are locatehges in the purchasing patterns of
consumers and in consumers’ disposable incomeethporary or longerm disruption in the supply of products from sdowal and overse:
suppliers, the disruption in the transport of gofsdm overseas, the disruption or delay in thew#eli of goods to our distribution centers or
stores within a country in which we are operatihg, reduction in the availability of products inr@tiores, the disruption of utility services to
our stores and our facilities, and disruption im communications with our stores. These eventstlagid impacts could otherwise disrupt and
adversely affect our operations in the areas irchvttiese types of events occur, such as the M&th @arthquake and tsunami in Japan, and
could adversely affect our financial performance.

In light of the substantial premiums payable faurance coverage for losses caused by certainahdigasters, such as hurricanes, cyclones,
typhoons, tropical storms, earthquakes, floodstandamis in the current insurance market, as vsetha limitations on available coverage
such losses, we have chosen to be primarilyisslired with respect to such losses. Although wimtaim certain specific coverages for los
from physical damages in excess of certain amdorgsiard against catastrophic losses suffered &ach causes, we still bear the risk of
losses that would be incurred as a result of arygiphl damage to, or the destruction of, any starlebs and distribution centers, loss or
spoilage of inventory, and business interruptiomsea by any such events below catastrophic leValewerage, as well as in the event of a
catastrophe, in excess of the aggregate limitpplicable coverages.

We are subject to certain legal proceedings that nyaadversely affect our results of operations, finatial condition and liquidity.

We are involved in a number of legal proceedingsictvinclude consumer, employment, tort and ottigiakion. Certain of these lawsuits, if
decided adversely to us or settled by us, maytrastiability material to our results of operat®rfinancial condition and liquidity. We are
currently a defendant in numerous cases contatlagg-action allegations in which the plaintiffs’bdrought claims under federal and state
wage and hour laws. In addition, we are a defenigieldukes v. Wal-Mart Stores, Incwhich was commenced as a class-action lawsuit in
June 2001 in the United States District Court far Northern District of California, asserting ttta¢ Company had engaged in a pattern and
practice of discriminating against women in proran$, pay, training, and job assignments, and sgekimong other things, injunctive relief,
front pay, back pay, punitive damages, and att@nfes. On June 21, 2004, the U.S. district cimsted an order granting in part and
denying in part the plaintiffs’ motion for classrtiBcation. As defined by the U.S. district coutte class included “[a]ll women employed at
any Wal-Mart domestic retail store at any time sibecember 26, 1998, who have been or may be sebjecWal-Mart's challenged pay
and management track promotions policies and pex:ti The Company appealed the order to the Nimtu Court of Appeals and
subsequently to the United States Supreme Courdu@e 20, 2011, the Supreme Court issued an opilgoertifying the class and remanc
the case to the district court. On October 27, 2814 plaintiffs’ attorneys filed an amended conmil@roposing a class of current and former
female associates at the Company’s Californialrizteilities, and the Company filed a Motion to Biss on January 13, 2012. On

October 28, 2011, the plaintiffs’ attorneys filed@nplaint in the United States District Court foe Northern District of Texas entitl€adle

v. Wal-Mart Stores, Ing.proposing a class of current and former femateaates at the Company’s Texas retail facilitied asserting

claims and relief similar to those in the Dukesecdhe Company filed a Motion to Dismiss on Mar¢l2812. We discuss this case and other
litigation to which we are a party in greater de@low under the caption “Item 3. Legal Proceedirand in Note 11 in the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements,” which are phour Annual Report to Shareholders, which areiiporated by reference in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and are included as an extoliis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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If we do not maintain the security of information relating to our customers, associates and vendorgcsirity information breaches
through cybersecurity attacks or otherwise could denage our reputation with customers, associates anandors, and we could incur
substantial additional costs and become subject tiigation.

As do most retailers, we receive certain persarfatination about our customers, and we also reqgavsonal information concerning our
associates and vendors. In addition, our onlineatjmas at www.walmart.comwww.samsclub.corand other websites depend upon the
secure transmission of confidential informationrgweblic networks, including information permittimgshless payments. We maintain
security measures with respect to such informatiah despite these measures, we may be vulneabkctirity breaches by computer hac
and others that attempt to penetrate the secudsnres that we have in place. A compromise ofecurity systems (through cyber-attacks
or otherwise which are rapidly evolving and sopb&td) that results in personal information beabtained by unauthorized persons could
adversely affect our reputation with our customassociates, and vendors, as well as our operatiesidts of operations, financial condition
and liquidity, and could result in litigation agairus or the imposition of penalties. In additiarsecurity breach could require that we expend
significant additional resources related to ouotinfation security systems and could result in eugtson of our operations, particularly our
online sales operations.

We rely extensively on computer systems to proceBansactions, summarize results and manage our bugss. Disruptions in both our
primary and secondary (back-up) systems could harnour ability to run our business.

Although we have independent, redundant and phi)s®aparate primary and secondary computer systgivisn the number of individual
transactions we have each year, it is critical Waimaintain uninterrupted operation of our busireritical computer systems. Our computer
systems, including our back-up systems, are sutjetmage or interruption from power outages, agwpand telecommunications failures,
computer viruses, security breaches (through cgltacks from computer hackers and sophisticateanizgtions), catastrophic events suc
fires, tornadoes and hurricanes, and usage eryassbassociates. If our computer systems and ack-bip systems are damaged, breached o
cease to function properly, we may have to makgraficant investment to repair or replace thend are may suffer interruptions in our
operations in the interim. Any material interruptio both of our computer systems and back-up systeay have a material adverse effect
on our business or results of operations. In aaltlitive are pursuing complex initiatives to trangfaur information technology processes
systems, which will include, for many of our comgusystems, establishing common processes acrofisesiof business. The risk of syst
disruption is increased when significant systermgea are undertaken, although we believe thatlamge management process will mitic
this risk. If we fail to integrate our computer ®®s and processes we may fail to realize thesandings anticipated to be derived from these
initiatives.

We may not timely identify or effectively respond 6 consumer trends, which could negatively affect ouelationship with our

customers, the demand for our products and serviceand our market share.

It is difficult to predict consistently and succksly the products and services our customersdélhand. The success of our business dej
in part on our ability to identify and respond t@king trends in demographics and consumer prata® Failure to timely identify or
effectively respond to changing consumer tastefepences and spending patterns could negatividgtafur relationship with our custome
the demand for our products and services and otkehshare.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The number of discount stores, supercenters, Neitlolod Markets, other small formats and Saf@fubs located in each state and territor
the United States and the number of units locatezhch of the geographic markets internationallyhich we operate are disclosed as of the
fiscal year ended January 31, 2012 in our Annu@ldReo Shareholders under the caption “Fiscal 2002 Count” and are incorporated
herein by reference. Portions of such Annual Rejgo@hareholders are included as an exhibit toAhisual Report on Form 10-K.

United States.As of January 31, 2012, in the U.S., we owned 3@&he buildings in which our discount stores, esgenters, Neighborhood
Markets and other small formats operated and 5@Reobuildings in which our Sam’s Clubs operateahd. on which our stores are located is
either owned or leased by the Company. We use erdimt contractors to construct our buildings.

17



In the United States, we lease the remaining 4&8dibhgs our stores and 109 buildings our clubs afeefrom either commercial property
developers pursuant to capital or operating leas@mgements or from local governmental entitiesannection with industrial revenue bond
financing arrangements. All store leases provideafmual rentals, some of which escalate duringthggnal lease or provide for additional
rent based on sales volume. Substantially all @Gbmpany’s store and club leases have renewaptsome of which include escalation
clauses causing an increase in rents.

Our 133 Walmart U.S. and 25 Sam’s Club distributtenters are located strategically throughout thitdd States. Of these 158 distribution
facilities, we owned and operated 113 distribufaxcilities, we owned and a third party operated dis&ribution facility and third parties
owned and operated 44 of our distribution facsitien addition to servicing the Walmart U.S. segimsome of our Walmart distribution
centers also service our Sam’s Club segment foaiogtems.

We own office facilities in Bentonville, Arkansdsat serve as our home office and lease officeifi@silthroughout the United States for our
walmart.com operations and field management.

Walmart International. We operate our Walmart International segment stoessaurants and banks in a combination of ownedeased
properties in each country in which our Walmaretntational segment operates. As of the end oflf2282, we owned 38 properties in
Africa, 55 properties in Argentina, 186 propertie®razil, 123 properties in Canada, 160 propeitieShile, 164 properties in Central
America, 52 properties in Japan, 646 propertiddenico and 387 properties in the United KingdomeTamaining 3,840 operating units are
leased on terms that vary. We utilize both ownetlleased properties for office facilities in eacluetry in which we are conducting busin
As of the end of fiscal 2012, our Walmart Interoatl operations are supported by 158 distributianilifies. Of these 158 distribution
facilities, we owned and operated 39, we ownedthind parties operated 9 and we leased and ope8&tethird parties leased and operated
the remaining 42 distribution facilities.

For further information on our distribution centesse the caption “Distribution” provided for eawftour segments under “ltem 1. Business.”

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

I. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: We discuss certain legal proceedings in Note ldutoConsolidated Financial Statements, entitled
“Legal Proceedings,” which is referenced in Padflthis Annual Report on Form 10-K under the captiltem 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” and is incorporated by refexeand refer to that discussion for important infation concerning those legal
proceedings, including the basis for such actioms where known, the relief sought. We provideftilwing additional information
concerning those legal proceedings, including traen of the lawsuit, the court in which the lawssippending, and the date on which the
petition commencing the lawsuit was filed. In edmhsuit's name, the letters “WM” refer to Wal-Ma&tores, Inc.

Wage-and-Hour Class Action:Braun/Hummel v. WMCt. of Common Pleas, Philadelphia County, PAQ&I2 & 8/30/04; Superior Ct. of
PA, Eastern Dist., Philadelphia, PA, 12/07/07; ®ape Court of PA, Harrisburg, PA, 10/09/11.

Gender Discrimination Class Actions:Dukes v. WM USDC, Northern Dist. of CA, San Francisco Div1%01; 9th Circuit Ct. of Appeals,
San Francisco, CA, 8/26/04; US Supreme Court, Wiggbin DC, 8/25/100dle v. WM, USDC, Northern Dist. of TX, Dallas Div., 10/27/11

II. ENVIRONMENTAL AND OTHER MATTERS: Item 103 of SEC Regulation S-K requires disclosafreertain environmental matters.
The following environmental matters are disclosedécordance with that requirement, as well asratiaters.

Environmental: On November 8, 2005, the Company received a granydsjibpoena from the United States Attorney’s €@ffor the Central
District of California, seeking documents and imfation relating to the Company’s receipt, transgh, handling, identification, recycling,
treatment, storage and disposal of certain merébarthkat constitutes hazardous materials or hamardaste. The Company has been
informed by the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the CadtDistrict of California that it is a target ofcaiminal investigation into potential
violations of the Resource Conservation and Rego#et (the “RCRA"), the Clean Water Act and the ldedous Materials Transportation
Statute. This U.S. Attorney’s Office contends, amother things, that the use of Company trucksaesport certain returned merchandise
from the Company’s stores to its return centepgahibited by RCRA because those materials maybsidered hazardous waste. The
government alleges that, to comply with RCRA, tlmrPany must ship from the store certain materigithazardous waste” directly to a
certified disposal facility using a certified hadaus waste carrier. The U.S. Attorney’s Officetia Northern District of California and the
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”psaquently joined in this investigation. The Compaontends that the practice of
transporting returned merchandise to its returiersrior subsequent disposition, including disptyatertified facilities, is compliant with
applicable laws and regulations. While managemannaet predict the ultimate outcome of this matienagement does not believe the
outcome will have a material effect on the Comparfiyiancial condition or results of operations.
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In January 2007, Wal-Mart Puerto Rico, Inc. becamvare that the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (th8ACE”) was concerned about
alleged violations of a permit issued by that agan003, for the fill of 0.23 acres of a creeldats contiguous wetlands during the
construction of the Wal-Mart Store in Caguas, RuRito. On January 19, 2007, Wal-Mart Puerto Reponded to these issues in writing.
On January 25, 2007, the USACE issued a formalddaif Non-Compliance to Wal-Mart Puerto Rico regagdhis matter. Wal-Mart Puerto
Rico filed a formal response, implemented mitigatineasures, and continues to monitor and provieleghuired maintenance to the
mitigation area. While management cannot prediuilimate outcome of this matter, management doebelieve the outcome will have a
material effect on the Company’s financial conditar results of operations.

On March 28, 2008, the Company received a Noticdiafation from the Missouri Department of NatuRésources (the “Department”)
alleging various violations of Missouri hazardousste laws and regulations in connection with thivities of a third-party contractor with
whom the Company had contracted for recycling ses/iThe Department alleged that the Company pedvigrtain items to the contractor
for recycling that should have been managed asthazs waste. The Company has resolved the issuledhei Department by entering into a
settlement agreement which includes payment ofld 878 penalty and an agreement to implement demgntal environmental project
valued at $1,050,000 to help local residents pigpeanage household hazardous wastes. The EPAcitespthe contractor’s facilities, and
both the EPA and the U.S. Attorney’s Office for ihestern District of Missouri are conducting invgations. The Company is cooperating
with these authorities. While management cannadipréhe ultimate outcome of this matter, managerdees not believe the outcome will
have a material effect on the Company’s finanadaldition or results of operations.

In March 2011, the Office of the District Attornéyr Riverside County, California, notified the Coamy that it had initiated an investigation
of whether third party contractors hired by the @amy had violated California laws regarding theodgal of construction materials at a local
landfill. The Company is cooperating with the DisttAttorney’s Office. While management cannot pegthe ultimate outcome of this
matter, management does not believe the outconhdavie a material effect on the Company’s financaldition or results of operations.

In January 2011, the Environmental Department ofdPAlegre Municipality formally notified WMS Superercados do Brasil Ltda, a
subsidiary of the Company, of soil inspection répdardicating soil contamination due to leakageibfrom power generating equipment at
nine store locations in Brazil. WMS Supermercado8dasil Ltda is cooperating with the agency ad aglthe District Attorney’s Office for
the State of Rio Grande do Sul and has filed agatiton plan to address the situation. While managgmannot predict the ultimate outcome
of this matter, management does not believe theoout will have a material effect on the Companigiaricial condition or results of
operations.

In July 2011, the Environmental Patrol and the Esrwinental Department for Bento Goncalves MunictgaBrazil, notified WMS
Supermercados do Brasil Ltda that they are invatitig alleged soil contamination involving a leaksubsoil oil duct at a store site. To
resolve this, the Environmental Department forrthenicipality proposed a plan which includes a pgnafl R$168,570 (approximately
$96,000) or an agreement to donate certain itemdsearvices to the City in lieu of the penalty. Brvironmental Department is also
investigating alleged soil contamination from wasdter at the same store. WMS Supermercados dol Btdaiis cooperating with the
agencies. While management cannot predict the aéirautcome of this matter, management does nietieehe outcome will have a
material effect on the Company’s financial conditar results of operations.

Other: During fiscal 2012, the Company began conductinglantary internal review of its policies, procedsirand internal controls
pertaining to its global anti-corruption compliamgm®gram. As a result of information obtained dgrihat review and from other sources, the
Company has begun an internal investigation intetivr certain matters, including permitting, lidegsand inspections, were in compliance
with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Then(pany has engaged outside counsel and other asltisassist in the review of these
matters and has implemented, and is continuinmfdement, appropriate remedial measures. The Coyripasvoluntarily disclosed its
internal investigation to the U.S. Department dftibe and the Securities and Exchange Commissi@encalnot reasonably estimate the
potential liability, if any, related to these masteHowever, based on the facts currently knowndweot believe that these matters will ha
material adverse effect on our business, finarmabition, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Certain information required to be provided in titésn is incorporated herein by reference to tfiermation included under the captions
“Market price of common stock,” “Listing” and “Didiends paid per share” in our Annual Report to Si@ders. Such information appears in
the portion of the Annual Report to Shareholdeas ihan exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Our common stock is primarily traded in the Uniftdtes on the New York Stock Exchange. At Marchi2Pd 2, the latest practicable date,
there were 275,525 common stock shareholders ofdec

From time to time, the Company has repurchasedslafrits common stock under a $15.0 billion sliepeirchase program authorized by the
Board of Directors on June 3, 2010 and announcetlina 4, 2010. On June 2, 2011, the Company’s Bufdbirectors replaced that share
repurchase program, which had approximately $2libmiof remaining authorization for share repursésias of that date, with a new $15.0
billion share repurchase program, announced on3ud@11. As a result, the Company terminated aitidnake no further share repurchases
under the program announced on June 4, 2010. Gemswgith the replaced share repurchase prograameéiv program has no expiration date
or other restriction limiting the period over whitthe Company can make share repurchases and witeeonly when and if the Company has
repurchased $15.0 billion of its shares under thelyauthorized program or it earlier terminatessmeplaced by a newly authorized
program. Any repurchased shares are constructieéihgd and returned to an unissued status.

Share repurchase activity under our share repuegbragiram was as follows during the three montldeérdanuary 31, 2012:

Approximate

Total Dollar Value
Number of of
Shares Shares that
Purchased May Yet Be
Average

) : Part of Purchased

Total Price Paio %3 icly Under the

Number of Announced Plans or

Shares per Plans or Programs

Fiscal Period Purchased Share Programs (billions)
November -30, 2011 6,960,190  $ 57.31 6,960,190  $ 12.5
December -31, 2011 8,672,95 58.5( 8,672,95 11.€
January -31, 2012 7,255,21. 59.97 7,255,21. 11.c

Total 22,888,36 22,888,36

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information required by this item is incorp@dby reference to all information under the captiéive-Year Financial Summary”
included in our Annual Report to Shareholders. Sofdrmation is included in an exhibit to this AraitReport on Form 10-K.

ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to all information under the captidanagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” included in our Annual Report to Shareha@d&uch information is included in an
exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to all information under the subtioa “Market Risk” under the caption
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” included im Aanual Report to Shareholders.
Such information is included in an exhibit to thisnual Report on Form 10-K.




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this item is incorpeaby reference to all information under the caitConsolidated Statements of Income,”
“Consolidated Balance Sheets,” “Consolidated Statgmof Shareholders’ Equity,” “Consolidated Statats of Comprehensive Income,”
“Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,” “Note€tmsolidated Financial Statements” and “Reporndependent Registered Public

Accounting Firm” included in our Annual Report tb&eholders. Such information is included in anilexto this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a system of disclosure controls andegxutares that are designed to provide reasonahlesss® that information, which is
required to be timely disclosed, is accumulated@mmunicated to management in a timely fashiownelsigning and evaluating such
controls and procedures, we recognize that anyasrand procedures, no matter how well designeldoperated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desiredot@tiiectives. Our management is necessarily requis use judgment in evaluating
controls and procedures. Also, we may have investgria certain unconsolidated entities. Since waatocontrol or manage those entities,
our controls and procedures with respect to thofies are substantially more limited than thogemaintain with respect to our consolide
subsidiaries.

In the ordinary course of business, we review gatesn of internal control over financial reportiagd make changes to our systems and
processes to improve such controls and increagéesity, while ensuring that we maintain an effegtinternal control environment. Chan
may include such activities as implementing newreredficient systems and automating manual prosessdiscal 2010, we began
implementing a new financial system in stages tmdate, have completed implementations in Argent@anada, Japan, Mexico, the United
Kingdom and the United States. The new financiatey is a significant component of our internaltomrover financial reporting. We will
continue to implement our new financial systemtagses, and each implementation may become a signtfcomponent of our internal
control over financial reporting.

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the desigth @peration of our disclosure controls and procesiwas performed as of the end of the
period covered by this report. This evaluation wedormed under the supervision and with the pasiton of management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offic®ased upon that evaluation, our Chief Executiffec€ and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and proasiare effective to provide reasonable assuramaténttormation required to be disclosed
the Company in the reports that it files or submitger the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as detris accumulated and communicated
to management, including our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, ltova timely decisions regarding requir
disclosure and are effective to provide reasonafdeirance that such information is recorded, psecksummarized and reported within the
time periods specified by the SEC'’s rules and forms

Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management’s report on internal control over finaheporting and the attestation report of Ernstéung LLP, the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, on the Compaiigternal control over financial reporting are ingorated herein by reference to all
information under the captions “Management’s Remur Shareholders” and “Report of Independemfifered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reportinggspectively, included in our Annual Report to ®falders. Such information is included in
exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except for the ongoing system implementation natiealve, there has been no change in the Comparngis@h control over financial
reporting as of January 31, 2012, that has malgaéfiected, or is reasonably likely to materiadiffect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART 11l

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Information required by this item with respect i@ Company’s directors, certain family relationshignd compliance by the Company’s
directors, executive officers and certain benefficianers of the Company’s common stock with Sectié(e) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended, is incorporated by referemsech information under the captions entitled 8mmifiation About the Board” and “Stock
Ownership—Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Rapgr€ompliance” from our Proxy Statement relatinglte Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on June 1, 2012 (our “P&tatement”).

Please see the information concerning our execoffieers contained in Part | of this Annual Repant Form 10-K under the caption
“Executive Officers of the Registrant,” which icladed there in accordance with Instruction 3 éonlt401(b) of the SEC’s Regulation S-K.

No material changes have been made to the procetynehich shareholders of the Company may recordmeminees to our board
directors since those procedures were disclosedriproxy statement relating to our 2011 Annualr8halders’ Meeting as previously filed
with the SEC.
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The information regarding our Audit Committee, umihg our audit committee financial experts, and©ades of Ethics for senior financial
officers and other associates required by this iteincorporated herein by reference to the infdiomaunder the captions “Information About
the Board—Board Committees,” “Corporate Governanéedit Committee Financial Experts” and “Corporatev@rnance—Code of Ethics
for the CEO and Senior Financial Officers” includedur Proxy Statement. “Item 1. Business” abowetains information relating to the
availability of a copy of our Code of Ethics forrdDEO and Senior Financial Officers and our Statgmé Ethics and the posting of
amendments to and any waivers of the Code of Etbfosur CEO and Senior Financial Officers on oabsite.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to all information underahptions “Information About the Board —
Compensation of the Directors,” “Executive Compeiasd and under the sub-captions “Compensation Cataminterlocks and Insider
Participation” and “Compensation Committee Reptt#it appear under the caption “Corporate Goverrienckided in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to all information understle-captions “Holdings of Major
Shareholders” and “Holdings of Officers and Direstdhat appear under the caption “Stock Ownershipd all information that appears
under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Infdfamd included in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorp@dherein by reference to all information underdhption “Related-Party Transactions,”
under the caption “Corporate Governance—Transa&®riew Policy” and under the caption “Informatidhout the Board—Director
Independence” included in our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@dterein by reference to all information underahption “Corporate Governance—Audit
Committee Pre-Approval Policy” and under the capti@Gompany Proposals—Proposal No. 2: Ratificatibmdependent Accountants”
included in our Proxy Statement.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(@) (1) and (2)_Consolidated Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in the followingl&ea which are included in our Annual Report to i&@halders, are incorporated herein by
reference to the portions of this Annual ReporForm 10-K filed as Exhibit 13 hereto.
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Annual

Report to
Shareholder:
(page)

Consolidated Statements of Income for each oftiheetyears in the period ended January 31, 21
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 31,&@12011 22
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for each of the three years in the periodeghJanuary 31, 20: 23
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomedoin of the three years in the period ended Jadlar2012 24
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheoftiree years in the period ended January 31, 25
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 26
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 49
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimgn on Internal Control Over Financial Report 50
Managemer's Report to Our Shareholde 51

Certain schedules have been omitted because thizge@dnformation is not present or is not presergmounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule, or because the infesmatquired is included in the Consolidated FinahStatements, including the notes
thereto.
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(3) Exhibits

The following documents are filed as exhibits tis fhorm 10-K:

3(a)

3 (b)

4(a)

4 (b)

4(c)

4(d)

4(e)

4(f)

4(9)

4 (h)

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Compdated October 25, 1988, the Certificate of Ameednto the
Restated Certificate of Incorporation executed Aaid®, 1991, and the Certificate of Amendment toRlestated
Certificate of Incorporation executed July 27, 198 incorporated hereby by reference to Exhibits4.2 and 4.3,
respectively to the Registration Statement on F8-3 (File No. 33.-178385).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company arepocated herein by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) te Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the fisaanter ended April 30, 2011, and filed with the Bd&s and
Exchange Commission on June 3, 2(

Form of Indenture dated as of June 1, 1985, betwlee@ompany and Bank of New York, Trustee, (fotpnBoatmens
Trust Company and Centerre Trust Company) is irmated herein by reference to Exhibit 4(c) to Reegimon
Statement on Form-3 (File Number -97917).

Form of Indenture dated as of August 1, 1985, betwthe Company and Bank of New York, Trustee, (Byyn
Boatmen'’s Trust Company and Centerre Trust Compiarigtorporated herein by reference to Exhibit) 4¢c
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (File Number -99162).

Form of Amended and Restated Indenture, MortgageDsaed of Trust, Assignment of Rents and Securgye@ment
dated as of December 1, 1986, among the First MatB®ank of Boston and James E. Mogavero, Ownestéas, Rew:
Corporation |, Estate for Years Holder, Rewal Coggion Il, Remainderman, the Company and the Negional Bank
of Chicago and R.D. Manella, Indenture Trusteemderporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4¢blRegistration
Statement on Form-3 (File Number 3-11394).

Form of Indenture dated as of July 15, 1990, betvike Company and Harris Trust and Savings Bankstée, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4(bR&gistration Statement on Forr-3 (File Number 3-35710).

Indenture dated as of April 1, 1991, between them@any and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Aasoa, as
successor trustee to Bank One Trust Company, NAyesessor trustee to The First National Bank a€&gjo, Trustee,
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4¢alRegistration Statement on Forl-3 (File Number 3-51344).

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of Septe®hE®92, to the Indenture dated as of April 1, 19#tween the
Company and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, Nationabéiation, as successor trustee to Bank One Trusipaay, NA,
as successor trustee to The First National Barhatago, Trustee, is incorporated herein by refegen Exhibit 4(b) to
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (File Number 3-51344).

Indenture dated as of July 5, 2001, between thepaogmand J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Asdiari, as
successor trustee to Bank One Trust Company, Niac@porated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Regisin Statement
on Form &3 (File Number 33-64740).

Indenture dated as of December 11, 2002, betwee@dmpany and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, Natiosabsiation,
as successor trustee to Bank One Trust CompanyisNAGorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Regtion
Statement on Form-3 (File Number 33-101847).
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Indenture dated as of July 19, 2005, between thep2oy and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Aatioa is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Registn Statement on Forn-3 (File Number 33-126512).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated December 16 20&tween Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and The Bank o Nerk
Trust Company, N.A., as successor-in-interestRoMorgan Trust Company, National Association, aste, under
the Indenture, dated as of July 19, 2005, betweahMért Stores, Inc. and J.P. Morgan Trust Compafational
Association, as Trustee, is incorporated hereirefigrence to Exhibit 4.6 to Post-Effective Amendinga. 1 to
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (File Number 33-130569).

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Officer Deferred Compensafttan as amended and restated effective Febru@g1®, is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to ther€ut Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated Sepés 29,
2011.

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Management Incentive Plaaraended and restated effective February 1, 20id8asporated
herein by reference to Appendix A to the Proxy &tant that is a part of the Compasnchedule 14A filed on Api
22,2008

The Rules of the ASDA Sharesave Plan 2000, as agdegffective June 4, 2010, are incorporated by eafe to
Appendix B to the Proxy Statement that is a pathefCompan’s Schedule 14A filed on April 19, 201

The ASDA Colleague Share Ownership Plan 1999, anded June 4, 2004, incorporated by reference hdEx.0
(d) to the Annual Report on Form X0ef the Company for the fiscal year ended Jan@4ry2011, filed on March 3
2011.

Form of Restricted Stock Award and Notificationfaffard and Terms and Conditions of Award is incogted by
reference to Exhibit 10(e) to the Annual Reporfanm 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year endaduary 31,
2010, filed on March 30, 201

Form of Post-Termination Agreement and Covenanttbl@ompete with attached Schedule of Executivécexf$
Who Have Executed a Post-Termination AgreementGmanant Not to Compete is incorporated by refexdac
Exhibit 10(f) to the Annual Report on Form 10-Ktbh&é Company for the fiscal year ended January @10 2filed on
March 30, 2010

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 2004 Associate Stock Purclitian, as amended and restated effective as oti&gbt, 2004,
is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(g) te Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company forfikeal year
ended January 31, 2011, filed on March 30, 2

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan of 20is0ncorporated by reference to Appendix A to Biexy
Statement that is a part of the Comf’s Schedule 14A filed on April 19, 201

Form of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Stock Incentive Pliotice of Non Qualified Stock Option Grant is imporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(i) to the Annual Reportkprm 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year endaduary 31,
2011, filed on March 30, 201

Form of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Stock Incentive Ptdr2005, Performance Share Award, Notification efakd and
Terms and Conditions of Award is incorporated fgmence to Exhibit 10(j) to the Annual Report orriAdL0-K of
the Company for the fiscal year ended January 810 2filed on March 30, 201

Form of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Stock Incentive Ptdr2005, PerformancBased Restricted Stock Award, Notificat
of Award and Terms and Conditions of Award is inmmated by reference to Exhibit 10(k) to the AnnRaport on
Form 1(-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended Jan34ry2010, filed on March 30, 201
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Amendment to Form of Post-Termination Agreement @adenant Not to Compete Agreements is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(I) to therddal Report on Form 10-K of the Company for tisedl
year ended January 31, 2011, filed on March 301z

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retiat Plan amended and restated effective Febryary 1
2011, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1t0.the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Compangda
September 29, 201

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Director Compensation Defeflan, amended and restated Effective June 4, B010
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(n) to thendal Report on Form 10-K of the Company for tisedi
year ended January 31, 2011, filed on March 301z

Agreement between Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and H. $eett, Jr., dated November 20, 2008, is incorpdrhie
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporfFormm 8-K of the Company dated and filed November 21
2008.

Form of Post-Termination Agreement and Covenanttbl@ompete with attached Schedule of Executive
Officers who have executed a Post-Termination Agesg and Covenant Not to Compete is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(p) to the Annual Reportramm 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2011, filed on March 30, 20

Agreement between Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and ThokhaSchoewe, dated September 28, 2010, is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ther€ut Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated Sepés
29, 2010

Wal-Mart Deferred Compensation Matching Plan, dffecFebruary 1, 2012, is incorporated by refereince
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K of the Company dated September 29, 2!

Retirement Agreement between Eduardo Castro-WagttWal-Mart Stores, Inc. dated September 23, 2011,
is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 tor€at Report on Form 8-K of the Company dated Sepéem
27, 2011 and filed September 27, 2C

Statement regarding computation of the Earnindgsxed Charges Ratio

Portions of our Annual Report to Shareholderslierfiscal year ended January 31, 2012. All inforamat
incorporated by reference in Items 1, 2, 3, 5,,&A, 8 and 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10¢Krh the
Annual Report to Shareholders for the fiscal yemtesl January 31, 2012 is filed with the SEC. THariz® of
the information in the Annual Report to Sharehaddeill be furnished to the SEC in accordance wiéml 601
(b) (13) of Regulation -K.

List of the Compar’s Significant Subsidiarie

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.
Chief Executive Officer Section 302 Certificatic

Chief Financial Officer Section 302 Certificatic

Chief Executive Officer Section 906 Certificatic

Chief Financial Officer Section 906 Certificatic

XBRL Instance Documen
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101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuitn
101.DEP* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe
101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum:
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doentr

* Filed herewith as an Exhib
**  Furnished herewith as an Exhit

+  Management contracts and compensatory plans aadgaments required to be filed as exhibits pursteaitém 15(b) of this repor

27



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the reaiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ Michael T. Duke
Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdaticated:

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ Michael T. Duke
Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Officer and Diret
(Principal Executive Officer

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ S.Robson Walton
S. Robson Walto
Chairman of the Board and Direc!

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ Charles M. Holley, Jr.
Charles M. Holley, Ji
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ Steven P. Whaley
Steven P. Whale
Senior Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ Aida M. Alvarez
Aida M. Alvarez
Director

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ James W. Breyer
James W. Breye
Director

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/ M. Michele Burns
M. Michele Burns
Director

DATE: March 27, 2012 By /s/James |. Cash, Jr.
James I. Cash, <
Director

Signature Page to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
Form 10-K for Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2012
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March 27, 2012
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By

By

By

/sl Roger C. Corbett

Roger C. Corbetl
Director

/s/ Douglas N. Daft

Douglas N. Daf
Director

/sl Gregory B. Penner

Gregory B. Penne
Director

/sl Steven S Reinemund

Steven S Reinemur
Director

/s/ H. Lee Scott, Jr.

H. Lee Scott, Ji
Director

/s/ Arne M. Sorenson

Arne M. Sorensol
Director

/s/ Jim C. Walton
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Director

/sl Christopher J. Williams

Christopher J. William
Director

/s/ Linda S. Wolf

Linda S. Wolf
Director
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Form 10-K for Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2012
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Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Fiscal Year Ended

Exhibit 12

January 31,

(Dollar amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Earnings:

Income from continuing operations before incomes $24,39¢ $23,53¢ $22,11¢ $20,867 $20,12:
Capitalized interes (60) (63) (85) (88) (150
Consolidated net income attributable to the norradiitg interest (688) (604) (519) (499) (406

Adjusted income from continuing operations beforeime taxe 23,65( 22,871 21,52( 20,28( 19,56¢

Fixed charges

Interest! 2,38z 2,26¢ 2,16( 2,267 2,261
Interest component of re 79C 651 597 40€ 464

Total fixed charge 3,17 2,91¢ 2,75 2,67: 2,731

Income from continuing operations before incomeaand fixed charge $26,82:  $25,79C $24,277 $22,95! $22,29;

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (tim 8.5 8.8 8.E 8.€ 8.2

1

Includes interest on debt and capital leases, &mtidn of debt issuance costs and capitalizedéste



EXHIBIT 13

Five-Year Financial Summary
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

(Dollar amounts in millions, except per share amit eount data)

As of and for the Fiscal Years Ended January 31, 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Operating Results
Net sales $443,85: $418,95: $405,13: $401,08° $373,82:
Net sales increas 5.8% 3.4% 1.C% 7.2% 8.4%
Increase (decrease) in calendar comparable @ales
in the United State 1.€% (0.€)% (0.89% 3.5% 1.€%
Walmart U.S. 0.2% 2.5% (0.% 3.2% 1.C%
San’s Club 8.4% 3.8% (1.9% 4.%% 4.%%
Gross profit margit 24.5% 24.&% 24.%% 24.%% 24.1%
Operating, selling, general and administrative esps, as a
percentage of net sal 19.2% 19.4% 19.7% 19.4% 19.1%
Operating incom: $ 26,55¢ $ 25,54: $ 24,00: $ 22,767 $ 21,91¢
Income from continuing operations attributable taluvart 15,76¢ 15,35¢ 14,44¢ 13,23t 12,84
Net income per share of common stc
Diluted net income per common share from continuing
operations attributable to Walm: $ 4.5¢ $ 4.1¢ $ 3.7: $ 3.3t $ 3.1f
Dividends declared per common sh 1.4¢€ 1.21 1.0¢ 0.9t 0.8¢
Financial Position
Inventories $ 40,71« $ 36,431 $ 32,718 $ 34,01: $ 34,69(
Property, equipment and capital lease asset: 112,32 107,87¢ 102,30° 95,65: 96,86
Total asset 193,40¢ 180,78: 170,40 163,09¢ 163,20(
Long-term debt, including obligations under capital &= 47,07¢ 43,84: 36,40 34,54¢ 33,40:
Total Walmart shareholde equity 71,31t 68,54 70,46¢ 64,96¢ 64,31:
Unit Counts
Walmart U.S. Segmel 3,86¢ 3,80¢ 3,75¢ 3,70 3,59t
Walmart International Segme 5,651 4,557 4,09¢ 3,59¢ 3,09:
San’s Club Segmer 611 60¢ 60E 611 60C
Total units 10,13( 8,97( 8,45¢ 7,90¢ 7,28¢

@ Comparable store and club sales include fuel. F2@@8 comparable sales include all stores andsdidit were open for at least the
previous 12 months; however, stores and clubsiket relocated, expanded or converted are exclisdedcomparable sales for the
first 12 months following the relocation, expans@rconversion. Fiscal 2012, 2011, 2010 and 200@pewable sales include sales from
stores and clubs open for the previous 12 momntieyding remodels, relocations and expansions,adisas online sale:

1
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Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmart,” the “Company” twe”) operates retail stores in various formatsusethe world and is committed to
saving people money so they can live better. We e trust of our customers every day by providirtgoad assortment of quality
merchandise and services at everyday low priceBI(FE), while fostering a culture that rewards amdbgaces mutual respect, integrity and
diversity. EDLP is our pricing philosophy under whiwe price items at a low price everyday so ostauers trust that our prices will not
change under frequent promotional activities. @eaut for Sam'’s Club is to provide exceptional valneorand name and private label
merchandise at “members only” prices for both besénand personal use. Internationally, we operdkesimilar philosophies.

Ouir fiscal year ends on January 31 for our UnitedeS (“U.S.”) and Canadian operations and on DéeerBl for all other operations. We
discuss how the results of our various operatiosasansolidated for financial reporting purposeblate 1 in the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.”

We intend for this discussion to provide the reasdi¢h information that will assist in understandiogr financial statements, the changes in
certain key items in those financial statementmfy@ar to year, and the primary factors that actalifor those changes, as well as how
certain accounting principles affect our finanatdtements. We also discuss certain performanagcsiitat management uses to assess our
performance. Additionally, the discussion provid@srmation about the financial results of the vas segments of our business to provide a
better understanding of how those segments andrésilts affect the financial condition and reswit operations of the Company as a wr
This discussion should be read in conjunction with Consolidated Financial Statements as of anthifiscal year ended January 31, 2012,
and accompanying notes.

Currently, our operations consist of three repdetdloisiness segments: the Walmart U.S. segmentyV#imart International segment; and the
Sam’s Club segment. The Walmart U.S. segment iesliidle Company’s mass merchant concept in thedpeating under the “Walmartr
“Wal-Mart” brand, as well as walmart.com. The Wattrlaternational segment consists of the Compaapk&rations outside of the U.S. The
Sam'’s Club segment includes the warehouse membpetklis in the U.S., as well as samsclub.com.

Throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analg§iFinancial Condition and Results of Operations discuss segment operating
income and comparable store and club sales. Thep&aymmeasures the results of its segments usingigther measures, each segment’s
operating income, including certain corporate oearhallocations. From time to time, we revise tle@asurement of each segment’s operating
income, including any corporate overhead allocatias dictated by the information regularly revidvag our chief operating decision maker.
When we do so, the prior period amounts for segropatating income are reclassified to conform @dhrrent period’s presentation. The
amounts representing “Other unallocated” in thetage discussion of the Company Performance Metatsde unallocated corporate
overhead and other items.

Comparable store and club sales is a metric winidicates the performance of our existing U.S. stared clubs by measuring the change in
sales for such stores and clubs for a particuldogérom the corresponding period in the prior iy&&almart’s definition of comparable store
and club sales includes sales from stores and olps for the previous 12 months, including remgdedlocations and expansions, as well as
sales initiated online. Changes in format contitwulke excluded from comparable store and club sefhes) the conversion is accompanied by
a relocation or expansion that results in a chamgeguare feet of more than five percent. Comparatire and club sales are also referred to
as “same-store” sales by others within the retailistry. The method of calculating comparable samick club sales varies across the retalil
industry. As a result, our calculation of compaeadtiore and club sales is not necessarily compatatdimilarly titted measures reported by
other companies.

In discussing our operating results, we sometiraés to the impact of changes in currency exchaatgs that we use to convert the oper
results for all countries where the functional eaay is not denominated in the U.S. dollar for ficial reporting purposes. We calculate the
effect of changes in currency exchange rates adiffeeence between current period activity tratesfausing the current period’s currency
exchange rates and the comparable prior periodigrcy exchange rates. We exclude the impact aéntiperiod acquisitions from our
calculation. We refer to the results of this catiain as currency translation fluctuations throughaur discussion. When we refer to constant
currency operating results, we are referring toaperating results without the impact of the cucsetranslation fluctuations and without the
impact of current period acquisitions. The disctesof constant currency amounts or results, exotythie effect of acquisitions, permits
investors to understand better our underlying parémce without the effects of currency exchange flattuations or acquisitions.

We made certain reclassifications to prior fisadiyamounts or balances to conform to the presentatthe current fiscal year. These
reclassifications did not impact consolidated ofiegancome or net income. Additionally, certairgseent asset and expense allocations have
been reclassified among segments in the curreidder



The Retail Industry

We operate in the highly competitive retail indystr all of the countries we serve. We face strealgs competition from other discount,
department, drug, dollar, variety and specialtyestpwarehouse clubs and supermarkets. Many of ttwmapetitors are national, regional or
international chains, as well as internet-baseailegs and catalog businesses. We compete witlmbeuof companies for prime retail site
locations, as well as in attracting and retainingldy employees (whom we call “associates”). Weng with other retail companies, are
influenced by a number of factors including, but limited to: general economic conditions, cosgobds, consumer disposable income,
consumer debt levels and buying patterns, consuaredit availability, interest rates, customer prefiees, unemployment, labor costs,
inflation, deflation, currency exchange fluctuasofuel and energy prices, weather patterns, cirohainge, catastrophic events, competitive
pressures and insurance costs. Further informatiazertain risks to our Company can be locatedten 1A. Risk Factors” in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended JanGa, 2012.

Company Performance Metrics

The Company’s performance metrics emphasize thiesdtyes for improving shareholder value: growtitiverage and returns. The Company’
priority of growth focuses on sales through compkeratore and club sales and unit square feet grdive priority of leverage encompasses
the Company’s objective to increase its operatiogine at a faster rate than the growth in net $sl@gowing its operating, selling, general
and administrative expenses (“operating expensgsi)slower rate than the growth of its net saled; the priority of returns focuses on how
efficiently the Company employs its assets throtgghrn on investment (“ROI”) and how effectivelyet@ompany manages working capital
through free cash flow.

Growth
Net Sale:
Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

2012 2011 2010

Percent Perceni Percent Percent Percent
(Dollar amounts in millions Net Sales of Total Change Net Sales of Total Change Net Sales of Total
Walmart U.S. $264,18¢ 59.5% 1.5% $260,26: 62.1% 0.1% $259,91¢ 64.2%
Walmart Internatione 125,87: 28.4% 15.2%  109,23. 26.1% 12.1% 97,40" 24.(%
San’'s Club 53,79¢ 12.1% 8.8% 49,45¢ 11.8% 3.5% 47,80¢ 11.8&%

Net Sales $443,85:  100.(% 5% $418,95. 100.(% 3.4% $405,13. 100.(%

Our consolidated net sales increased 5.9% and Bi4i%cal 2012 and 2011, respectively, comparetthéoprevious fiscal year. The increas
net sales for fiscal 2012 was attributable to almioation of an increase in comparable sales, granvthtail square feet and currency
translation benefits, while the increase in ne¢s#br fiscal 2011 was attributable to growth itailesquare feet and currency translation
benefits, partially offset by a decline in compaeadtore and club sales. Acquisitions also contetido the increase in net sales for fiscal
2012. Our continued expansion activities added 5a8#3.4% of additional retail square feet durisgdl 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Currency translation benefits accounted for $4llbhiand $4.5 billion of the increase in net sdisfiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
acquisitions of Netto and Massmart completed insimond quarter of fiscal 2012, and further disediss Note 14 in the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements,” accounted4or $illion of the net sales increase in fiscal 20%olatility in currency exchange rates
may continue to impact the Company’s net salebeérfuture.

Calendar Comparable Store and Club Sales

Comparable store and club sales is a measure widatates the performance of our existing U.S.es@nd clubs by measuring the growt
sales for such stores and clubs for a particuldog®ver the corresponding period in the previfisisal year. The retail industry generally
reports comparable store and club sales usingetaé calendar (also known as the 4-5-4 calendad) 8o be consistent with the retail
industry, we provide comparable store and clubssagéng the retail calendar in our quarterly eaysireleases. However, when we discus!
comparable store and club sales below, we areriredeio our calendar comparable store and clutssadéeulated using our fiscal calendar.
our fiscal calendar differs from the retail calendaur calendar comparable store
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and club sales also differ from the retail calermamparable store and club sales provided in oartgtly earnings releases. Calendar
comparable store and club sales for fiscal 20121 20hd 2010 are as follows:

With Fuel Fuel Impact
Fiscal Years Ended January 31, Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Walmart U.S. 0.2% -1.5% -0.7% 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
San’s Club _8.4% 3.2% -1.4% 3.4% _2.0% -2.1%
Total U.S. 1.€% -0.€% -0.8% 0.€% 0.4% -0.3%

Comparable store and club sales in the U.S., imudufiiel, increased 1.6% in fiscal 2012 and de@@d@s6% and 0.8% in fiscal 2011 and
2010, respectively. U.S. comparable store sales@sed during fiscal 2012 primarily due to an inseein average ticket, partially offset by a
decline in traffic. Comparable club sales were bigiuring fiscal 2012 due to a larger member basénd increased traffic, as well as a
broader assortment of items. Total U.S. comparsiolee and club sales decreased during fiscal 2frfagly due to a decline in customer
traffic. Although customer traffic increased indé 2010, comparable store and club sales in tBe Were lower than those in the previous
fiscal year due to deflation in certain merchandiseegories and lower fuel prices.

As we continue to add new stores and clubs in tige, We do so with an understanding that additistaies and clubs may take sales away
from existing units. We estimate the negative inhgaccomparable store and club sales as a resofiarfing new stores and clubs was
approximately 0.8% in fiscal 2012 and 2011 and Oié%iscal 2010.

Leverage
Operating Income

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

2012 2011 2010

Operating Percent Percent Operating Percent Percent Operating Percent

(Dollar amounts in millions Income of Total Change Income of Total Change Income of Total
Walmart U.S. $20,367 76.1% 2.2% $19,91¢ 78.(% 3.1% $19,31¢ 80.5%
Walmart Internatione 6,214 23.4% 10.8% 5,60¢ 21.% 14.%% 4,901 20.4%
San’s Club 1,86% 7.C% 9.C% 1,711 6.7% 12.%% 1,51¢ 6.2%
Other unallocate (1,88  -7.1%  11.5% (1,699  -6.6%  -2.0% (1,728  -7.2%
Total operating incom $26,55¢  100.(% 4.C% $25,54: 100.(% 6.4% $24,00: 100.(%

We believe comparing the growth of our operatingesses to the growth of our net sales and comp#trengrowth of our operating income

to the growth of our net sales are meaningful messas they indicate how effectively we managescastl leverage operating expenses. Our
objective is to grow operating expenses at a sloaterthan net sales and to grow operating incdradaster rate than net sales. On occasion,
we may make strategic growth investments that mjines, cause our operating expenses to growadedaster than net sales and that may
grow our operating income at a slower rate tharsales.

Operating Expenses

We leveraged operating expenses in fiscal 201284d. In fiscal 2012, our operating expenses irsaea.8% compared to fiscal 2011,
while net sales increased 5.9% in fiscal 2012 capwpto fiscal 2011. Operating expenses grew at\aesl rate than net sales due to our
continued focus on expense management. Our Gl@mhenerce initiatives contributed to the majoritytlod increase in operating expenses,
as we continue to invest in our e-commerce platfofDepreciation expense increased year-over-yegdban our financial system
investments with the remainder of the increaseddiiven by multiple items, none of which were widually significant. In fiscal 2011, our
operating expenses increased 1.7% compared td 28t8, while net sales increased 3.4% during Fi26a1 compared to fiscal 2010.
Operating expenses grew at a slower rate tharates & fiscal 2011 due to improved labor produttiand organizational changes made at
the end of fiscal 2010 designed to strengthen &edmaline our operations, as well as a reductiateitain incentive plan expenses.

Operating Income

As a result of the factors discussed above andhwestment in price for products sold in our retgikrations, which reduced our gross
margin, our operating income increased 4.0% anthém4fiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively, while s@es increased 5.9% and 3.4% in fi:
2012 and 2011, respectively.



Returns
Return on Investme

Management believes return on investment (“ROI'§ imeaningful metric to share with investors beeatbkelps investors assess how
effectively Walmart is deploying its assets. TreirdROI can fluctuate over time as management loalaitong-term potential strategic
initiatives with any possible short-term impact©IRvas 18.6% and 19.2% for fiscal 2012 and 201dpeetively. The decrease in ROl in
fiscal 2012 from fiscal 2011 was due primarily tdé@ional investments in property, plant and equpin Global eCommerce and higher
inventories, as well as price investment aheadlbféalization of productivity improvements. Intfue periods, productivity gains are
expected to align more closely with price investtaeAdditionally, to a lesser degree, ROl was pealy impacted by currency translation
fluctuations, but offset by acquisitions.

We define ROI as adjusted operating income (opegaticome plus interest income, depreciation andrépation, and rent expense) for the
fiscal year divided by average invested capitalrduthat period. We consider average invested ahioitbe the average of our beginning and
ending total assets of continuing operations, piterage accumulated depreciation and average aatti, less average accounts payable
and average accrued liabilities for that periodsm@ rent factor equal to the rent for the fisesrymultiplied by a factor of eight.

ROl is considered a non-GAAP financial measure.dafesider return on assets (“ROA”) to be the finahmieasure computed in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles (“GRRthat is the most directly comparable financiasure to ROl as we calculate that
financial measure. ROI differs from ROA (which ieome from continuing operations for the fiscalrydiaided by average total assets of
continuing operations for the period) because R@justs operating income to exclude certain expieses and adds interest income; adjusts
total assets from continuing operations for thedanif accumulated depreciation and amortizatioopants payable and accrued liabilities;
and incorporates a factor of rent to arrive atltioteested capital.

Although ROI is a standard financial metric, numeranethods exist for calculating a company’s RGl.a&esult, the method used by
management to calculate ROI may differ from thehod$ other companies use to calculate their ROlukye you to understand the meth
used by other companies to calculate their ROldeefomparing our ROI to that of such other companie
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The calculation of ROI, along with a reconciliatitmthe calculation of ROA, the most comparable GAfancial measurement, is as
follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

January 31,
(Dollar amounts in millions 2012 2011
CALCULATION OF RETURN ON INVESTMENT
Numerator
Operating incom: $ 26,55¢ $ 25,54
+ Interest incom: 162 201
+ Depreciation and amortizatic 8,13( 7,641
+ Rent 2,39¢ 1,972
= Adjusted operating incon $ 37,24« $ 35,35¢
Denominator
Average total assets of continuing operati® $186,98:- $175,45¢
+ Average accumulated depreciation and amortizid® 47,61 43,91
- Average accounts payat® 35,14 32,06¢
- Average accrued liabilitie® 18,42¢ 18,71¢
+ Rent x & 19,15: 15,77¢
= Average invested capit $200,17¢ $184,36:
Return on investment (ROI) 18.€% 19.2%
CALCULATION OF RETURN ON ASSETS
Numerator
Income from continuing operatiol $ 16,45¢ $ 15,95¢
Denominator
Average total assets of continuing operati® $186,98: $175,45¢
Return on assets (ROA 8.8% 9.1%
As of January 31,
Certain Balance Sheet Data 2012 2011 2010
Total assets of continuing operatic@ $193,31° $180,65: $170,26°
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat 48,61« 46,61 41,21(
Accounts payabl 36,60¢ 33,67¢ 30,45!
Accrued liabilities 18,15¢ 18,70: 18,73¢

(1) The average is based on the addition of thelwattdalance at the end of the current periodeaatitount balance at the end of the prior
period and dividing by 2

(2) Total assets of continuing operations as ofidan31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 in the table abovkidg@ssets of discontinued operations
that are reflected in the Comp¢s Consolidated Balance Sheets of $89 million, $h8lon and $140 million, respectivel

Free Cash Flov

We define free cash flow as net cash provided l@ratig activities in a period minus payments faperty and equipment made in that
period. We generated positive free cash flow of. $Hilion, $10.9 billion and $14.1 billion for tHescal years ended January 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively. The modest decline in ¢eesh flow in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2015 weamarily due to capital expenditures
outpacing the growth in net cash generated fromating activities. The decrease in free cash flomird) fiscal 2011 was primarily due to an
increased investment in inventory after fiscal 2@h@ed with relatively low inventory levels, paliiiaoffset by increases in accounts payable.

Free cash flow is considered a non-GAAP financiehsure. Management believes, however, that frdeftas, which measures our ability
to generate cash from our business operations, ilmportant financial measure for use in evaluatiregCompany'’s financial performance.
Free cash flow should be considered in additiomatter than as a substitute for, income from caiirig operations as a measure of our
performance and net cash provided by operatingige as a measure of our liquidity.
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Additionally, our definition of free cash flow igited, in that it does not represent residual dashkis available for discretionary expenditu
as the measure does not deduct the payments redoirdebt service and other contractual obligationpayments made for business
acquisitions. Therefore, we believe it is importanview free cash flow as a measure that provédg@plemental information to our entire
statement of cash flows.

Although other companies report their free castvfloumerous methods may exist for calculating amammy’s free cash flow. As a result, the
method used by our management to calculate frdefttas may differ from the methods other companiss to calculate their free cash flow.
We urge you to understand the methods used by otimpanies to calculate their free cash flow befmmparing our free cash flow to that
of such other companies.

The following table sets forth a reconciliationffe cash flow, a non-GAAP financial measure, tbaash provided by operating activities,
which we believe to be the GAAP financial measupsndirectly comparable to free cash flow, as wslinformation regarding net cash u
in investing activities and net cash used in finagactivities.

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 24,25¢ $ 23,64 $ 26,24¢
Payments for property and equipm (13,51() (12,699 (12,184
Free cash flov $ 10,74¢ $ 10,94« $ 14,06¢
Net cash used in investing activiti® $(16,609) $(12,199) $(11,620)
Net cash used in financing activiti $ (8,459 $(12,029) $(14,19))

@ “Net cash used in investing activities” includeymants for property and equipment, which is alsduded in our computation of free

cash flow.

Results of Operations

The following discussion of our results of operatigs based on our continuing operations and egslatty results or discussion of our
discontinued operations.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Fiscal Years Ended

January 31,

(Amounts in millions, except unit coun 2012 2011 2010

Net sales $443,85: $418,95. $405,13:
Percentage change from previous fiscal 5.€% 3.4% 1.C%
Total U.S. calendar comparable store and club : 1.€% (0.6)% (0.8%
Gross profit margin as a percentage of s 24.5% 24.£% 24.%%
Operating incom: $ 26,55¢ $ 25,54. $ 24,00:
Operating income as a percentage of net 6.C% 6.1% 5.8%
Income from continuing operatiol $ 16,45¢ $ 15,95¢ $ 14,96:
Unit counts 10,13( 8,97( 8,45¢
Retail square fe¢ 1,03 98t 952

Our consolidated net sales increased 5.9% and Bi4i%cal 2012 and 2011, respectively, comparetthéoprevious fiscal year. The increas
net sales for fiscal 2012 was attributable to almoation of an increase in comparable sales, granvthtail square feet and currency
translation benefits, while the increase in ne¢s#br fiscal 2011 was attributable to growth itailesquare feet and currency translation
benefits, partially offset by a decline in compdeadtore and club sales. Acquisitions also contetido the increase in net sales for fiscal
2012. Our continued expansion activities, includiicguisitions, added 5.3% and 3.4% of addition@lilrequare feet during fiscal 2012 and
2011, respectively. Currency translation benefitsoanted for $4.0 billion and $4.5 billion of thecrease in net sales for fiscal 2012 and
2011, respectively. The acquisitions of Netto aresbmart completed in the second quarter of fisgaP 2and further discussed in Note 14 in
the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsgbanted for $4.7 billion of the net sales increasiscal 2012. Volatility in currency
exchange rates may continue to impact the Compargf’sales in the future.
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Our gross profit, as a percentage of net saleeggprofit margin”), declined 33 and 11 basis pointfiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively,
compared to the previous fiscal year. All threensegts realized a decline in gross profit margirirdufiscal 2012 based on our investment in
price. Our Walmart U.S. segment and Walmart Intéonal segment net sales yield higher gross pneditgins than our Sam’s Club segment,
which operates on lower margins as a membershipwhrehouse. In fiscal 2011, gross profit margirs weatively flat compared to fiscal
2010.

Operating expenses, as a percentage of net sades 1®.2%, 19.4% and 19.7% for fiscal 2012, 2042010, respectively. In fiscal 2012,
operating expenses as a percentage of net salkesaded primarily due to our focus on expense maneage In fiscal 2011, operating
expenses as a percentage of net sales decreasedilgrdue to improved labor productivity and orgational changes implemented at the
end of fiscal 2010 designed to strengthen andrsiiea our operations, as well as a reduction itadelincentive plan expenses.

Operating income was $26.6 billion, $25.5 billiamde$24.0 billion for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 201Gpectively. Effects of currency exchange
fluctuations positively impacted operating incomdiscal 2012 and 2011 by $105 million and $231lionil respectively. Volatility in
currency exchange rates may continue to impacCtdmapany’s operating income in the future.

Our effective income tax rate on consolidated inedrom continuing operations was 32.6% in fiscal2@8ompared with 32.2% and 32.4%
fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively. The effecti@ime tax rate for fiscal 2012 remained largelyststent with the rates for fiscal 2011 and
2010 primarily as a result of net favorability iarious items during fiscal 2012. The effective imeptax rate for fiscal 2011 was consistent
with that for fiscal 2010 due to recognizing cartaet tax benefits totaling $434 million and $37@liom in fiscal 2011 and 2010,
respectively, stemming primarily from the decistorrepatriate certain non-U.S. earnings that irsedahe Company’s U.S. foreign tax
credits and favorable adjustments to transfer pgieigreements. The reconciliation from the U.Susteay rate to the effective tax rates for
fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010 is presented in Nota 108e “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemémé& expect the fiscal 2013 annual
effective tax rate to be approximately 32.5% tb238. Significant factors that may impact the anraffdctive tax rate include changes in our
assessment of certain tax contingencies, valuatiowances, changes in law, outcomes of adminig&raudits, the impact of discrete items
and the mix of earnings among our U.S. and intesnat operations.

As a result of the factors discussed above, wertepp&16.5 billion, $16.0 billion and $15.0 billiaf income from continuing operations for
fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Walmart U.S. Segment

Fiscal Years Ended

January 31,

(Amounts in millions, except unit coun 2012 2011 2010

Net sales $264,18t¢ $260,26: $259,91¢
Percentage change from previous fiscal 1.5% 0.1% 1.1%
Calendar comparable store se 0.2% -1.5% -0.7%
Operating incom: $ 20,367 $ 19,91¢ $ 19,31«
Operating income as a percentage of net 7.1% 7.7% 7.4%
Unit counts 3,86¢ 3,80¢ 3,75¢
Retail square fe¢ 627 617 60€

Net sales for the Walmart U.S. segment increase¥ And 0.1% in fiscal 2012 and 2011, respectivaynpared to the previous fiscal ye
The increase in net sales for fiscal 2012 comptodidcal 2011 is primarily due to a 1.6% increasgear-over-year retail square feet.
Walmart U.S. net sales were relatively flat focéis2011 compared to fiscal 2010 as growth in ketpiare feet was offset by a decline in
comparable store sales of 1.5% caused by slowésroes traffic.

Gross profit margin was relatively flat in fisc@d22 and 2011, respectively, compared to the previiscal year.

Operating expenses, as a percentage of segmesalast declined 10 basis points during fiscal 28d@pared to fiscal 2011, as the segment
focused on improved labor productivity and managirgenses. Operating expenses, as a percentagesales, decreased by 28 basis points
in fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010 due to impblabor productivity and a reduction in incentplan expenses.
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As a result of the factors discussed above, opgratticome was $20.4 billion, $19.9 billion and RLBillion for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Walmart International Segment

Fiscal Years Ended

January 31,

(Amounts in millions, except unit coun 2012 2011 2010
Net sales $125,87. $109,23: $97,407
Percentage change from previous fiscal 15.2% 12.1% 1.2%
Operating incom: $ 6,217 $ 5,60¢ $ 4,901
Operating income as a percentage of net 4.% 5.1% 5.C%
Unit counts 5,651 4,557 4,09¢
Retail square fe¢ 32¢ 287 26€

Net sales for the Walmart International segmemnteiased 15.2% and 12.1% for fiscal 2012 and 20&peaively, compared to the previc
fiscal year. The increase in net sales during fi26&a2 compared to fiscal 2011 was due to year-grear growth in retail square feet of
14.7%, including acquisitions, constant currendgsgrowth in every country, $4.7 billion of safesm the acquisitions of Massmart and
Netto and currency translation benefits of $4.0dvilduring fiscal 2012. Constant currency salesag?.2 percent compared to fiscal 20
Mexico, China and the United Kingdom contributed thghest dollar increases to Walmart Internatigsnat sales growth in fiscal 2012,
excluding the impact of acquisitions. The increiaseet sales for fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal®@hs due to year-over-year growth in
retail square feet of 7.8%, $4.5 billion of favdmburrency translation benefits and constant cayesales growth in nearly every country.

Gross profit margin decreased 46 basis pointsisoaf 2012 compared to fiscal 2011, due primanlyhte acquisitions of Netto and Massmart
included in the fiscal 2012 results and not infteeal 2011 results. Constant currency gross magia percentage of sales was flat in fiscal
2012 compared to fiscal 2011. Gross profit margas nelatively flat in fiscal 2011 compared to fis2@10.

Segment operating expenses, as a percentage oéseget sales, decreased 19 basis points in 2#0d#1 compared to fiscal 2011 due to the
acquisitions of Netto and Massmart in fiscal 20d@nstant currency operating expenses increase@stban sales at 6.2%. The United
Kingdom, Japan and Canada leveraged operating s&penost significantly in fiscal 2012. Operatingenses, as a percentage of net sales,
decreased 26 basis points in fiscal 2011 comparéddal 2010 due to effective expense managemeidapan and the United Kingdom.

Each country had positive constant currency opagaticome in fiscal 2012, except India. India grawing wholesale, cash and carry and
retail franchise business with many new locatiam$ generated significant sales growth in fiscal2@urrency exchange rate fluctuations
increased operating income by $105 million and $2dlion in fiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively. ¥blity in currency exchange rates may
continue to impact the Walmart International segrsesperating results in the future.

As a result of the factors discussed above, opegratticome was $6.2 billion, $5.6 billion and $4iBidn for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.
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San’s Club Segment

We believe the information in the following tableder the caption “Excluding Fuel” is useful to ist@r's because it permits investors to
understand the effect of the Sam’s Club segmeungkdales, which are impacted by the volatilitfual prices.

Fiscal Years Ended

January 31,
(Amounts in millions, except unit coun 2012 2011 2010
Including Fuel
Net sales $53,79¢ $49,45¢ $47,80¢
Percentage change from previous fiscal 8.8% 3.5% -0.4%
Calendar comparable club sa 8.4% 3.€% -1.4%
Operating incom: $ 1,865 $ 1,711 $ 1,51¢
Operating income as a percentage of net 3.5% 3.5% 3.2%
Unit counts 611 60¢ 605
Retail square fe¢ 82 81 81
Excluding Fuel
Net sales $47,61¢ $45,19: $44,55!
Percentage change from previous fiscal 5.4% 1.4% 1.7%
Calendar comparable club sa 5.C% 1.% 0.7%
Operating incom: $ 1,82¢ $ 1,692 $ 1,52¢
Operating income as a percentage of net 3.&% 3.7% 3.4%

Net sales for the Se’s Club segment increased 8.8% and 3.5% for fi26aR and 2011, respectively, compared to the pusviiscal year.
The net sales increase in fiscal 2012 compareidd¢alf2011 was primarily due to positive comparaihld sales, driven by customer traffic,
increases in average ticket and higher fuel stlegher fuel sales, resulting from higher fuel pa@nd increased gallons sold, positively
impacted comparable sales by 340 basis pointsglfisoal 2012. The fiscal 2011 growth in net sadagrimarily due to the increase in
average ticket and member traffic. In addition] edes, driven by higher fuel prices and gallooldl spositively impacted comparable club
sales by 200 basis points in fiscal 2011. Volatilit fuel prices may continue to impact the neésalnd operating income of the Sam’s Club
segment in the future.

Gross profit margin decreased 41 basis pointsigoaf2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The gross pnadirgin decrease was driven by the
highly competitive retail environment, as well afiation and high fuel costs. Fuel costs negativelgacted the comparison by 33 basis
points for fiscal 2012. Gross profit margin wastslely flat for fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 201

Operating expenses, as a percentage of net satreaded 55 basis points and 48 basis pointscial 2912 and 2011, respectively, compared
to the previous fiscal year. Fuel, which positivehpacted the comparison by 31 and 19 basis pfonféscal 2012 and 2011, respectively,
and improved wage management were the primarymdrivfethe basis point reduction in operating expsres a percentage of segment net
sales for both fiscal years.

As a result of the factors discussed above, operaticome was $1.9 billion, $1.7 billion and $1ilidn for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows provided by operating activities hawadrically supplied us with a significant sourcdiqbiidity. We use these cash flows,
supplemented with long-term debt and short-termdwaings, to fund our operations and global expamsictivities. Generally, some or all of
the remaining free cash flow, if any, funds alpart of the dividends on our common stock and stregrarchases.
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Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 24,25¢ $ 23,64 $ 26,24¢
Payments for property and equipm (13,510) (12,699 (12,184
Free cash flov $ 10,74¢ $ 10,94« $ 14,06¢
Net cash used in investing activiti® $(16,609) $(12,199) $(11,620)
Net cash used in financing activiti $ (8,459 $(12,029) $(14,19)

@ “Net cash used in investing activities” includeymants for property and equipment, which is alsduded in our computation of
free cash flow

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities werd.82illion, $23.6 billion and $26.2 billion fordtal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
increase in operating cash flow in fiscal 2012 carep to fiscal 2011 was primarily the result ofitiddal income from continuing operatio
and the timing of payments for accrued liabiliti€he decrease in cash flow from operating actiwitlaring fiscal 2011 was primarily due to
an increased investment in inventory after fis€dl@ended with relatively low inventory levels, faly offset by increases in accounts
payable.

Cash Equivalents and Working Capital

Cash and cash equivalents were $6.6 billion andl Biflion at January 31, 2012 and 2011, respegatjv@which, $5.6 billion and $7.1 billio
respectively, were held outside of the U.S. andyereerally utilized to support liquidity needs iardoreign operations. Our working capital
deficits were $7.3 billion and $6.6 billion at Jany 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. We generglrate with a working capital deficit due

to our efficient use of cash in funding operatiansl in providing returns to our shareholders infthie of stock repurchases and the payment
of dividends.

We employ financing strategies in an effort to eaghat cash can be made available in the coumtwhich it is needed with the minimum
cost possible. We do not believe it will be necessarepatriate cash and cash equivalents hekldmibf the U.S. and anticipate our dome
liquidity needs will be met through other fundingusces (ongoing cash flows generated from operstiexternal borrowings, or both).
Accordingly, we intend, with only certain limitea@ptions, to continue to permanently reinvestcésh in our foreign operations. Were our
intention to change, most of the amounts held withir foreign operations could be repatriated &UhS., although any repatriations under
current U.S. tax laws would be subject to U.S. fatiemcome taxes, less applicable foreign tax d¢sedis of January 31, 2012 and 2011,
approximately $768 million and $691 million, respreely, may not be freely transferable to the WH8e to local laws or other restrictions.
do not expect local laws, other limitations or puiel taxes on anticipated future repatriationsumiounts held outside of the United States to
have a material effect on our overall liquidityydncial condition or results of operations.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities generally cshsf payments for property and equipment, whigren$13.5 billion, $12.7 billion and
$12.2 billion during fiscal 2012, 2011 and 201Gpectively. These capital expenditures primarilgteeto new store growth, as well as
remodeling costs for existing stores and our immesits in Global eCommerce. Additionally, in fis28ll2, we made additional investment
$3.5 billion, net of cash acquired, for the acdigss of Netto and Massmart, further discussedateNL4 in “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements,” in addition to other immaterial acijiaiss. We expect capital expenditures for proparig equipment in fiscal 2013, excluding
any business acquisitions, to range between $ilidntand $14.0 billion.

Global Expansion Activities

We expect to finance our fiscal 2013 global expamgilans primarily through cash flows from openasi@nd future debt financings. The
following table represents our estimated rangeémital expenditures and growth in retail squae iy segment for fiscal 2013. This table
does not include growth in retail square feet fimending or future acquisitions.

Fiscal Year 2013 Fiscal Year 2013

Projected Capital Projected Growth in

Expenditures Retail Square Feet

(in billions) (in thousands)

Walmart U.S. segment (including Other) $7C to $7E5 14,000 to 15,00(
San’s Club segmer 1.C to 1.C 1,00C to 1,00(
Total U.S. 8C to 8.5 15,00( to 16,00(
Walmart International segme 5 to 5. 30,00 to  33,00(
Grand Total 13.C to 14.C 45,000 to  49,00(
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The following table represents the allocation of capital expenditures for property and equipment:

Allocation of Capital Expenditures
Fiscal Years Ending January 31,

Projected Actual
2013 2012 2011
New stores and clubs, including expansions anataélins 37% 28% 24%
Remodels 8% 12% 26%
Information systems, distribution and otl 18% _ 21% __19%
Total United States 63% 61% 69%
Walmart Internationz 37% __ 3% __31%
Total Capital Expenditures 10C% _10C% _10C%

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows from financing activities generally cish®f transactions related to our short- and leergn debt, as well as dividends paid and the
repurchase of Company stock.

Short-Term Borrowings

Net shor-term borrowings increased by $3.0 billion and $&0fion in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011, respectivednd decreased by $1.0 hilli

in fiscal 2010. From time to time, we utilize thguidity under our short-term borrowing programdund our operations, dividend payments,
share repurchases, capital expenditures and fer offsh requirements and corporate purposes osra@egled basis. We utilized the
favorable interest rates available on our commepaper and increased our short-term borrowingsutiinout fiscal 2012.

Long-Term Debt
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt werk lillion, $11.4 billion and $5.5 billion for fisl 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The

proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt wsee to pay down or refinance existing debt, andfoer general corporate purposes.

Information on our significant issuances of longrtedebt during fiscal 2012 is as follows (amountsnillions):

Issue Date Maturity Date Interest Rate Principal Amount
April 18, 2011 April 15, 201« 1.625% $ 1,00(
April 18, 2011 April 15, 201¢ 2.80(% 1,00(
April 18, 2011 April 15, 202: 4.25(% 1,00(
April 18, 2011 April 15, 204 5.625% 2,00(

Total $ 5,00(

The notes of each series require semi-annual Bitpeyments on April 15 and October 15 of each,yeithn the first interest payment having
commenced on October 15, 2011. Unless previousighased and canceled, the Company will repay thesraf each series at 100% of their
principal amount, together with accrued and unpatiglest thereon, at their maturity. The notesamfheseries are senior, unsecured obliga
of the Company.

Dividends

On March 1, 2012, our Board of Directors approvedanual dividend for fiscal 2013 of $1.59 per shan increase of approximately 9%
over the dividends paid in fiscal 2012. Dividend@s phare were $1.46 and $1.21 in fiscal 2012 add 2@spectively. For fiscal 2013, the
annual dividend will be paid in four quarterly iatinents of $0.3975 per share, according to tHeviohg record and payable dates:
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Record Date

March 12, 201:
May 11, 201z
August 10, 201:
December 7, 201

Payable Date

April 4, 2012
June 4, 201
September 4, 20:
January 2, 201

We paid aggregate dividends of $5.0 billion, $4lddm and $4.2 billion for fiscal 2012, 2011 an@1D, respectively. We expect to pay
aggregate dividends of approximately $5.4 billiorfiscal 2013.

Company Share Repurchase Program

From time to time, we have repurchased sharesraf@amon stock under share repurchase programera&et by the Board of Directors.
The current share repurchase program has no erpiddte or other restriction limiting the periogeo which we can make share repurche

At January 31, 2012, authorization for $11.3 billiaf additional share repurchases remained undesutrent share repurchase program. Any
repurchased shares are constructively retired etadned to an unissued status.

We consider several factors in determining wheexecute the share repurchases, including, amormg titimgs, current cash needs, capacity
for leverage, cost of borrowings and the marketegdf our common stock. Cash paid for share re@sehduring fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010
was as follows:

Total
Number of Share: Total Investment

Repurchased Average Price

Share Repurchases (in millions) Paid per Share (in_billions)

Fiscal year ended January 31, 2012 115.% $ 54.6¢ $ 6.3
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2 279.1 $ 53.0: $ 14.¢
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2 145.k $ 50.1% $ 7.3

Capital Resources

Management believes cash flows from continuing af@ns and proceeds from the issuance of shorttbemowings will be sufficient to
finance seasonal buildups in merchandise inverganie meet other cash requirements. If our opegratish flows are not sufficient to pay
dividends and to fund our capital expendituresawgcipate funding any shortfall in these expenéisuwith a combination of short-term
borrowings and long-term debt. We plan to refinaexisting long-term debt obligations as they maamd may desire to obtain additional
long-term financing for other corporate purposes.

Our access to the commercial paper and kemgr debt markets has historically provided us withstantial sources of liquidity. We anticip

no difficulty in obtaining financing from those nkats in the future in view of our favorable expades in the debt markets in the recent past.
Our ability to continue to access the commerciglgpand long-term debt markets on favorable intesde and other terms will depend, to a
significant degree, on the ratings assigned bythdit rating agencies to our indebtedness comtto be at or above the level of our current
ratings. At January 31, 2012, the ratings assigo@dir commercial paper and rated series of owstanting long-term debt were as follows:

Rating agency Commercial papet Long-term debt
Standard & Poor’s A-1+ AA
Moody's Investors Servic P-1 Aa2
Fitch Ratings F1+ AA
DBRS Limited R-1(middle) AA

In the event that the ratings of our commercialguap any rated series of our outstanding long-teent issues were lowered or withdrawn

for any reason or if the ratings assigned to any issue of our long-term debt securities were lothian those noted above, our ability to
access the debt markets would be adversely affelctedidition, in such a case, our cost of fundsfew issues of commercial paper and long-
term debt (i.e., the rate of interest on any sudelbtedness) would be higher than our cost of flnadsthe ratings of those new issues been at
or above the level of the ratings noted above.ratiag agency ratings are not recommendations yo dmil or hold our commercial paper or
debt securities. Each rating may be subject tasi@vior withdrawal at any time by the assigningngabrganization and should be evaluated
independently of any other rating. Moreover, ea@tlit rating is specific to the security to whittapplies.
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To monitor our credit ratings and our capacitylforg-term financing, we consider various qualitative gudntitative factors. We monitor t
ratio of our debt-to-total capitalization as suggdor our long-term financing decisions. At Januadfly 2012 and 2011, the ratio of our debt-to-
total capitalization was 42.8% and 42.1%, respettiv-or the purpose of this calculation, debtafirbd as the sum of shdgrm borrowings
long-term debt due within one year, obligationsemzhpital leases due within one year, long-terbt dad long-term obligations under
capital leases. Total capitalization is defined@ist plus total Walmart shareholders’ equity. Tdwgorof our debt-to-total capitalization
increased in fiscal 2012 as we increased our leng-tlebt and commercial paper as a result of féeiaterest rates. Additionally, our share
repurchases contributed to the increase in ourtetattal capitalization ratio in fiscal 2012.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth certain informatiooncerning our obligations and commitments to n@ksractual future payments, such as
debt and lease agreements, and certain contingemhitments:

Payments Due During Fiscal Years Ending January 31,

(Amounts in millions Total 2013 2014-2015 2016-2017 Thereafter
Recorded Contractual Obligatior
Long-term debi $4586: $ 1,97t $ 9,098 $ 588( $ 28,91
Shor-term borrowings 4,04 4,04 — — —
Capital lease obligatior 5,93¢ 60¢ 1,112 954 3,261
Unrecorded Contractual Obligatior
Non-cancelable operating leas 16,41¢ 1,64¢ 3,11t 2,74C 8,91¢
Estimated interest on lo-term debr 33,53« 1,97¢ 3,58¢ 3,217 24,75,
Trade letters of cred 2,88t 2,88t — — —
Purchase obligatior 4,76¢ 3,401 1,145 21¢ 3
Total Commercial Commitmen $113,44° $ 16,53t $ 18,05¢ $ 13,000 $ 65,84¢

Additionally, the Company has approximately $18lbdm in undrawn lines of credit and standby lestef credit which, if drawn upon, wot
be included in the liabilities section of the Compa Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Estimated interest payments are based on our pahamounts and expected maturities of all delgtantling at January 31, 2012 and
management’s forecasted market rates for our Varialte debt.

Purchase obligations include legally binding coctsauch as firm commitments for inventory andtytpurchases, as well as commitments
to make capital expenditures, software acquisiiierise commitments and legally binding servicet@mts. Purchase orders for the purchase
of inventory and other services are not includethepreceding table. Purchase orders represdmtriations to purchase rather than binding
agreements. For the purposes of this table, caothabligations for purchase of goods or servaresdefined as agreements that are
enforceable and legally binding and that specifgighificant terms, including: fixed or minimum gutities to be purchased; fixed, minimum
or variable price provisions; and the approximaterg of the transaction. Our purchase orders ased on our current inventory needs and
are fulfilled by our suppliers within short timerls. We also enter into contracts for outsousmEices; however, the obligations under
these contracts are not significant and the cotstigenerally contain clauses allowing for cancigiatvithout significant penalty.

The expected timing for payment of the obligatidistussed above is estimated based on currentriafan. Timing of payments and actual
amounts paid with respect to some unrecorded adonabcommitments may be different depending ortithang of receipt of goods or
services or changes to agreed-upon amounts for ebligations.

In addition to the amounts shown in the table ab&6&1 million of unrecognized tax benefits aresidared uncertain tax positions and have
been recorded as liabilities. The timing of thermant associated with these liabilities is uncertBiefer to Note 10 in the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” for additioniatdssion on unrecognized tax benefits.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
In addition to the unrecorded contractual obligagidiscussed and presented above, we have madm @rangements as discussed beloy
which the timing of payment, if anyis unknown.

In connection with certain debt financing, we cobélliable for early termination payments if cantanlikely events were to occur. At
January 31, 2012, the aggregate termination paymeuld have been $122 million. The arrangementyamsto which this payment could
made will expire in fiscal 2019.
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The Company has future lease commitments for ladbaiildings for approximately 425 future locatiolbese lease commitments have
lease terms ranging from 4 to 50 years and prdgdeertain minimum rentals. If executed, paymemntder operating leases would increase
by $92 million for fiscal 2013, based on currenstcestimates.

Market Risk

In addition to the risks inherent in our operatione are exposed to certain market risks, includimgnges in interest rates and changes in
currency exchange rates.

The analysis presented below for each of our maiglesensitive instruments is based on a hypatakesicenario used to calibrate potential
risk and does not represent our view of future retackanges. The effect of a change in a parti@danmption is calculated without adjusting
any other assumption. In reality, however, a changme factor could cause a change in anotheGhwmiay magnify or negate other
sensitivities.

Interest Rate Ris

We are exposed to changes in interest rates auth o our short-term borrowings and long-termtdebuances. We hedge a portion of our
interest rate risk by managing the mix of fixed aadable rate debt and entering into interest sataps.

The table below provides information about our ficial instruments that are sensitive to chang@st@rest rates. For debt obligations, the
table represents the principal cash flows andedlateighted-average interest rates by expectedrityadiates. For interest rate swaps, the
table represents the contractual cash flows andhied-average interest rates by the contractuainbatiate. The notional amounts are used
to calculate contractual cash flows to be exchanmekér the contracts. The weighted-average varialds are based upon prevailing market
rates at January 31, 2012.

Expected Maturity Date

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 Thereafter Total
(Dollar amounts in millions
Liabilities
Short-term borrowings:
Variable rate $4,041 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 4,047
Average interest rai 0.1% — — — — — 0.1%
Long-term debt:
Fixed rate $1,47¢ $4,512 $3,70¢ $4,351 $1,13( $28,91: $44,09:
Average interest rai 4.8% 3.9% 2.2% 2.2% 2.8% 5.2% 4.€%
Variable rate $ 50C $ 65€ $ 221 $ 39z $ — $ — $ 1,77C
Average interest rai 5.2% 0.8% 0.€% 0.6% — — 2.C%
Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps:
Variable to fixec $ — $ 656 $ 222 $ 392 $ — $ — $ 1,27C
Average pay rat — 2.C% 1.5% 0.9% — — 1.€%
Average receive rat — 0.8% 0.% 0.€% — — 0.8%
Fixed to variable $ 50C $2,44F $1,00¢ $ — $ — $ — $ 3,94t
Average pay rat 3.1% 1.C% 0.4% — — — 1.1%
Average receive rat 5.C% 5.0% 3.1% — — — 4.5%

As of January 31, 2012, our variable rate borrowjrigcluding the effect of our commercial paper aridrest rate swaps, represented 17% of
our total short-term and long-term debt. Basedaudry 31, 2012 and 2011 debt levels, a 100 basis ghange in prevailing market rates
would cause our annual interest costs to changmpyoximately $58 million and $59 million, respeetiy.

Foreign Currency Ris

We are exposed to changes in foreign currency exggheates as a result of our net investments aechtipns in countries other than the
United States. We hedge a portion of our foreigmency risk by entering into currency swaps andgieging certain longerm debt issued
foreign currencies as net investment hedges.

We hold currency swaps to hedge the currency exghaomponent of our net investments and also tgéhdte currency exchange rate
fluctuation exposure associated with the forecaggaanents of principal and interest of non-U.S.afeimated debt. The aggregate fair value
of these swaps was recorded as an asset of $3i@naihd $471 million at January 31, 2012
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and 2011, respectively. A hypothetical 10% increarseecrease in the currency exchange rates umuigtlyese swaps from the market rate
would have resulted in a loss or gain in the valie swaps of $67 million and $74 million at Janu31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. A
hypothetical 10% change in interest rates undeglitirese swaps from the market rates in effectratalg 31, 2012 and 2011 would have
resulted in a loss or gain in value of the swap$2df million and $7 million, respectively, on thalwe of the swaps.

In addition to currency swaps, we have designagdd df approximately £3.0 billion as of January 3012 and 2011 as a hedge of our net
investment in the United Kingdom. At January 3112@nd 2011, a hypothetical 10% increase or deeri@aglue of the U.S. dollar relative
to the British pound would have resulted in a gaifoss, respectively, in the value of the del480 million and $480 million, respectively.
In addition, we have designated debt of approxiipa4275.0 billion and ¥437.0 billion as of Janu8ty, 2012 and 2011, respectively, as a
hedge of our net investment in Japan. At Januar@12 and 2011, a hypothetical 10% increase aredse in value of the U.S. dollar
relative to the Japanese yen would have resultadyain or loss in the value of the debt of $32Bioni and $533 million, respectively.

Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates

Management strives to report our financial resali@ clear and understandable manner, althougbmesases accounting and disclosure
rules are complex and require us to use techrecalihology. In preparing the Company’s Consolid&ethncial Statements, we follow
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates. These principles require us to makainegstimates and apply judgments that
affect our financial position and results of opinas as reflected in our financial statements. €jadgments and estimates are based on past
events and expectations of future outcomes. Actsallts may differ from our estimates.

Management continually reviews our accounting pegichow they are applied and how they are rep@meddisclosed in our financial
statements. Following is a summary of our crite@atounting estimates and how they are appliedaparation of the financial statements.

Inventories

We value inventories at the lower of cost or madsetietermined primarily by the retail method afamting, using the last-in, first-out
(“LIFO") method for substantially all of the Walnta.S. segment’s merchandise inventories. Thelnetetihod of accounting results in
inventory being valued at the lower of cost or netidince permanent markdowns are currently takenraduction of the retail value of
inventory. The Sam’s Club segment’s merchandisalised based on the weighted-average cost usinglf@ method. Inventories for the
Walmart International operations are primarily ey the retail method of accounting and are dtasing the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method.

Under the retail method, inventory is stated at,a@hich is determined by applying a cost-to-retatlo to each merchandise grouping’s retalil
value. The FIFO cost-to-retail ratio is based amitiitial margin of beginning inventory plus thedal year purchase activity. The costtail
ratio for measuring any LIFO provision is basedminitial margin of the fiscal year purchase\attiless the impact of any markdowns.
The retail method requires management to makeiggu@gments and estimates that may significamtipact the ending inventory valuation
at cost, as well as the amount of gross profitgaed. Judgments made include recording markdased to sell inventory and shrinkage.
When management determines the salability of irugritas diminished, markdowns for clearance agtiaiid the related cost impact are
recorded. Factors considered in the determinationaskdowns include current and anticipated demangtomer preferences and age of
merchandise, as well as seasonal and fashion tr€hdsges in weather patterns and customer prefeserlated to fashion trends could
cause material changes in the amount and timimgaskdowns from year to year.

When necessary, we record a LIFO provision fore$témated annual effect of inflation, and theserestes are adjusted to actual results
determined at year-end. Our LIFO provision is cldtad based on inventory levels, markup rates atgirially generated retail price indices.
At January 31, 2012 and 2011, our inventories \chhtd IFO approximated those inventories as if thveye valued at FIFO.

We provide for estimated inventory losses (“shrgekd between physical inventory counts on the bakes percentage of sales. Following
annual inventory counts, the provision is adjusteceflect updated historical results.

Impairment of Asset:

We evaluate long-lived assets other than goodwdl @assets with indefinite lives for indicators wipairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate their carrying amounts nwybe recoverable. Management’s judgments regattimgxistence of impairment
indicators are based on market conditions and tipaed performance, such as operating income asl ftaws. The evaluation for lorlgred
assets is performed at the lowest level of ideatilé cash flows, which is generally at the inditstore level or, in certain circumstances, at
the market group level. The variability of thesetéas depends on a
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number of conditions, including uncertainty abaitufe events and changes in demographics. Thusogounting estimates may change
from period to period. These factors could causeagament to conclude that impairment indicatorstexid require impairment tests be
performed, which could result in management deteirgithe value of long-lived assets is impaireduteng in a write-down of the long-
lived assets.

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived acquired intdiplg assets are not amortized, but are evaluateidhfmairment annually or whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the v@laecertain asset may be impaired. This evalodiggins with a qualitative assessment to
determine whether a quantitative goodwill impairtiest is necessary. If we determine, based oquhétative factors, that the fair value of
the reporting unit is more likely than not lessrthiae carrying amount, the quantitative goodwilpairment test would be required. This
guantitative test for impairment requires managdrteemake judgments relating to future cash flogrewth rates, and economic and market
conditions. These evaluations are based on detegriine fair value of a reporting unit or assehgsa valuation method such as discounted
cash flow or a relative, market-based approachoHezlly, we have generated sufficient returnshimitthe applicable reporting units to
recover the cost of goodwill and other indefiniteetl acquired intangible assets. Because of the@af the factors used in these tests, if
different conditions occur in future periods, fugwperating results could be materially impacted.

Income Taxes

Income taxes have a significant effect on our aetiags. As a global commercial enterprise, ourtags are affected by many factors,
including our global mix of earnings, the extentioich those global earnings are indefinitely reisied outside the United States, legislation,
acquisitions, dispositions and tax characterisifosur income. Our tax returns are routinely awtlded settlements of issues raised in these
audits sometimes affect our tax provisions. Acawgti, the determination of our provision for incotages requires significant judgment, the
use of estimates, and the interpretation and agtjiit of complex tax laws. Significant judgmentésjuired in assessing the timing and
amounts of deductible and taxable items and theaghitity of sustaining uncertain tax positions. Tenefits of uncertain tax positions are
recorded in our financial statements only afteedatning a more-likely-than-not probability thaethincertain tax positions will withstand
challenge, if any, from taxing authorities. Wheatfaand circumstances change, we reassess thésdbititees and record any changes in the
financial statements as appropriate. We accounirioertain tax positions by determining the minim@mognition threshold that a tax
position is required to meet before being recoghinghe financial statements. This determinatiequires the use of judgment in assessing
the timing and amounts of deductible and taxaleles

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains statements that Wallvelieves are “forward-looking statements” withire tmeaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended. Thosgeshents are intended to enjoy the protectionestfe harbor for forward-looking
statements provided by that Act. Those forward-loglstatements include statements in Managemeimg&uBsion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations: under theioapt‘Company Performance MetricsGrowth— Net Sale$ and “Results of
Operations—Consolidated Results of Operatichwith respect to the volatility of currency exchignrates possibly continuing to affect
Walmart’s net sales in the future; under the captiResults of Operations-€onsolidated Results of Operatichwith respect to the volatilit
of currency exchange rates possibly continuingfecaWalmart's operating income in the future amith respect to Walmart's fiscal 2013
annual effective tax rate and the factors that mgpact that annual effective tax rate; under thgtioa “Results of Operations-Walmart
International Segmer” with respect to the volatility of currency exchignrates possibly continuing to affect our Walnhatgrnational
segment’s operating results in the future; underctiption “Results of OperationsSam’s Club Segmehtith respect to the volatility of fu
prices possibly continuing to affect our Sam’s Céglgment’s net sales and operating income in tivegfuunder the caption “Liquidity and
Capital Resources-€ash Equivalents and Working Capitdlas well as in Note 1 in the “Notes to ConsdléhFinancial Statements,”
regarding our ability to meet our liquidity neetsaugh sources other than the cash we hold outdittee United States, our intention to
permanently reinvest cash held outside of the drfitiates, and our ability to repatriate cash hatdide of the United States; under the
caption “Liquidity and Capital ResourcesGash Flows from Investing Activitiésvith respect to Walmart's expected capital exprnds in
fiscal 2013; under the caption “Liquidity and CapiResources—€ash Flows from Investing ActivitiesGlobal Expansion Activities” with
respect to Walmart’s expectation that it will fircenits fiscal 2013 global expansion plans primatitpugh cash flows from operations and
future debt financings, with respect to Walmart'sjpcted capital expenditures in fiscal 2013, wéhpect to the projected growth in retail
square feet in total and by operating segmenstafi2013, and with respect to the projected atiocaf capital expenditures for property ¢
equipment by category in fiscal 2013; under thdioag'Liquidity and Capital ResourcesGash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends,” as well as in Note 16 in the “Notesonsolidated Financial Statements” and under tptara“Walmart-Corporate and Stock
Information-Dividends payable per share,” with d&pto the payment of dividends in fiscal 2013, iVailt's expected payment of dividends
on certain dates in fiscal 2013, and the expeatad amount of dividends to be paid in fiscal 20d8¢ler the caption “Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Capital Resourceswith respect to Walmart's ability to finance seaal build-ups in inventories and to meet othehcas
requirements with cash flows from operations arattsterm borrowings, Walmart’s ability to fund cairt cash flow shortfalls by short-term
borrowings and long-term debt, Walmart's plan tiin@nce long-term debt as it matures, Walmart'scgpated funding of any shortfall in
cash to pay dividends and make capital expendithresigh short-term borrowings and long-term d&¥dmart’s plan to refinance existing
long-term debt as it matures, the possibility that
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Walmart may obtain additional long-term financimg 6ther corporate purposes, Walmart's ability btain financing from the commercial
paper and long-term debt markets, the factorsitiflaence Walmart's ability to access those marketfavorable terms, and the factors that
could adversely affect Walmart’s ability to accdssse markets on favorable terms; and under thigocafOff Balance Sheet Arrangements”
with respect to the amount of increases in paymemdier operating leases if certain leases are &cu

These forward-looking statements also include states in: Note 3 in the “Notes to Consolidated Raial Statements” regarding the
weighted-average periods over which certain comgt@ms cost is expected to be recognized; Note 1BarfNotes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” regarding the possible reduction of tSliability on accumulated but undistributedreags of our non-U.S. subsidiaries, the
realization of certain deferred tax assets, poss#aduction of unrecognized tax benefits, and ¢lasons for such reductions and the magn
of their impact on our results of operations améficial condition; and the effect of the adverselgions of certain other tax matters; Note
11 in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statetsieregarding an adverse decision in, or settlerogntertain litigation or other legal
proceedings to which Walmart is a party or is scf@ssibly resulting in liability material to ofinancial condition or results of operations;
and Note 14 in the “Notes to Consolidated FinanStatements” with respect to Walmart's expectedpdetion of a certain acquisition in the
future after certain conditions are satisfied. Tt&er of our President and Chief Executive Offiappearing in this Annual Report includes
forward-looking statements that relate to managéimierpectation that the Walmart International segtis “Powered by Walmart”
initiatives will strengthen productivity and redueepenses, management’s expectation that grows&am’s Club segment’s membership
base will remain a key goal for fiscal 2013, anchagement’s plans to increase Walmart’s investmeltiliaodian to 51 percent in fiscal
2013 and to continue Walmart's investments to lageradditional opportunities in e-commerce. Forwaoding statements appear in this
Annual Report: under the caption “Walmart Interoaéil-Our Strategy: Meeting local needs and levaggiobal resources” regarding
Walmart’s intention to be the low cost leader iegvmarket where our Walmart International segnopetrates and management’s
expectation that our Walmart International segmétitadd between 30 million and 33 million squaeef of retail space in fiscal 2013; under
the caption “Sam’s Club-Our Strategy: Leveraginger insights to deliver value and quality” regagdthe plans of our Sam’s Club
segment to open nine new clubs and relocate omexgia other clubs in fiscal 2013; under the captiGlobal eCommerce-Our Strategy:
Winning in Global eCommerce” regarding Walmart'sabof combining online, social and mobile innovasawith physical stores to give
customers a multi-channel shopping experience aambgement’s expectation that Walmsagtquisition of a majority stake in Yihaodian
open Walmart’'s products and brands to consumethina; and under the caption “Walmart-2012 FindriReport” regarding management’s
plan to further strengthen Walmart's price positignleveraging expenses as a percentage of sal@s agditional 100 basis points over the
next five years and management’s expectation themait will execute disciplined growth while incomating new initiatives to design and
build the most cost effective stores in the woflde forwardlooking statements described above are identifiethe use in such statement:

one or more of the words or phrases “anticipateguld be,” “could reduce,” “estimated,” “expansibfexpect,” “goal,” “grow,” “intend,” “is
expected,” “may continue,” “may impact,” “may resul'plan,” “plans,” “projected,” “will add,” “will be,” “will be paid,” “will depend,”
“will execute,” “will open,” “will ... reduce,” “will strengthen,” “would be,” and “would increase,” asttier similar words or phrases.

Similarly, descriptions of our objectives, strategjiplans, goals, or targets are also forward-tapktatements. These statements discuss,
among other things, expected growth, future revenfugure cash flows, future capital expenditufesjre performance, future initiatives and
the anticipation and expectations of Walmart asdnanagement as to future occurrences and trends.

The forward-looking statements included in this AahReport and that we make elsewhere are sulpj@etrtain factors, in the United States
and internationally, which could materially affeetr financial performance, our financial conditiouyr results of operations, including our
sales, earnings per share, comparable store salesmparable club sales for any period, our ligyjdur effective tax rate for any period,
and our business operations, business strateqys,maals, or objectives. These factors includeabeinot limited to: general economic
conditions, including changes in the economy ofuinéed States or other specific markets in whighoperate, economic instability, changes
in the monetary policies of the United States,Bbard of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systémey governments or central banks,
economic crises and disruptions in the financiatkeis, including as a result of sovereign debesiigovernmental budget deficits,
unemployment and partial employment levels, emplayneconditions within our markets, credit availdapito consumers and businesses,
levels of consumer disposable income, consumeiidemie, consumer credit availability, consumer dpanpatterns. consumer debt levels,
inflation, deflation, commodity prices, the costtbé goods we sell, competitive pressures, theosedity of our business, seasonal buying
patterns in the United States and our other marlkadisr costs, transportation costs, the costedalifuel, gasoline, natural gas and electricity,
the selling prices of fuel, the cost of healthcand other benefits, accident costs, our casuattyo#tmer insurance costs, information security
costs, the cost of construction materials, avditgtof acceptable building sites for new stordsbs and other formats, availability of

qualified labor pools in the specific markets inigthwe operate, zoning, land use and other regylaéstrictions, competitive pressures,
accidentrelated costs, weather conditions and events, tcapdisc events and natural disasters, as wellamsand other damage to our sto
clubs, distribution centers, and other facilitiasgd store closings and other limitations on outamgr’ access to our stores and clubs resulting
from such events and disasters, disruption in opply chain, including availability and transpoftgmods from domestic and foreign
suppliers, trade restrictions, changes in tariff &might rates, adoption of or changes in taxpfabnd other laws and regulations that affect
our business, including changes in corporate tesy&osts of compliance with laws and regulatitims resolution of tax matters,
developments in and the outcome of legal and régnylproceedings to which we are a party or argestibcurrency exchange rate
fluctuations and volatility, fluctuations in markeites of interest, and other conditions and evaffitsting domestic and global financial and
capital markets, and economic and geopolitical &r and events, including civil unrest and disances,
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public health emergencies, and terrorist attackaedver, we typically earn a disproportionate péxur annual operating income in our
fourth quarter as a result of the seasonal buyattems. Those buying patterns are difficult teefast with certainty. The foregoing list of
factors that may affect our business operationsfiaadcial performance is not exclusive. Other dastand unanticipated events could
adversely affect our business operations and finhperformance. We discuss certain of these nwattarre fully, as well as certain risk
factors that may affect our business operationanftial condition, results of operations and ligyich other of our filings with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including Aonual Report on Form 10-K. We filed our Annual Reggpon Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 31, 2012, with the SEC on M2ar¢cR012. The forwa-looking statements described above are made baskowvledgs
of our business and the environment in which weatpeand assumptions that we believe to be reatoaathe time such forward-looking
statements are made. However, because of the §atdscribed and listed above, as well as othesrmabr as a result of changes in facts,
assumptions not being realized, or other circuntgtspactual results may materially differ from aiptated results described or implied in
these forward-looking statements. We cannot askerecader that the results or developments exppectanticipated by us will be realized
or, even if substantially realized, that those itssar developments will result in the expectedssmuences for us or affect us, our business,
our operations, or our financial performance inway we expect. You are urged to consider all e#risks, uncertainties, and other factors
carefully in evaluating the forward-looking statertseand not to place undue reliance on such forlanking statements. The forward-
looking statements included in this Annual Reppeak only as of the date of this report, and westtatte no obligation to update these
forward-looking statements to reflect subsequepht&s/or circumstances, except as may be requiregjcable law.
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WAL-MART STORES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions except per share dz 2012 2011 2010
Revenues:
Net sales $ 44385: $ 41895. $ 405,13.
Membership and other incon 3,09¢ 2,891 2,95:¢
446,95( 421,84¢ 408,08!
Costs and expense:
Cost of sale: 335,12 314,94¢ 304,10t
Operating, selling, general and administrative espe 85,26¢ 81,36! 79,97
Operating income 26,55¢ 25,54 24,00:
Interest:
Debt 2,03¢ 1,92¢ 1,78
Capital lease 28¢ 277 27¢
Interest incom (162) (207) (187)
Interest, ne 2,16( 2,004 1,88¢
Income from continuing operations before income tags 24,39¢ 23,53¢ 22,11¢
Provision for income taxes:
Current 6,74 6,70: 7,64
Deferred 1,20z 87€ (487)
7,944 7,57¢ 7,15¢
Income from continuing operations 16,45¢ 15,95¢ 14,96:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net dax (67) 1,03¢ (79
Consolidated net income 16,381 16,99: 14,88:
Less consolidated net income attributable to noncdrolling interest (68¢) (604) (513)
Consolidated net income attributable to Walmart $ 1569¢ $ 16,38¢ $ 14,37(
Basic net income per common share
Basic income per common share from continuing dera attributable to Walma $ 45¢ $ 42C $ 3.7¢
Basic income (loss) per common share from discaatiroperations attributable to Waln (0.02) 0.2¢ (0.02)
Basic net income per common share attributable to \Almart $ 454  $ 448 $ 3.72
Diluted net income per common share
Diluted income per common share from continuingrapens attributable to Walme $ 452  $ 41¢ % 3.7%
Diluted income (loss) per common share from disooid operations attributable to
Walmart (0.02) 0.2¢ (0.02)
Diluted net income per common share attributable td/Valmart $ 452 % 4.47 % 3.71
Weighted-average common shares outstanding
Basic 3,46( 3,65¢€ 3,86¢
Diluted 3,47¢ 3,67(C 3,87
Dividends declared per common share $ 14¢ $ 121 % 1.0¢

See accompanying notes.
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(Amounts in millions except per share dz
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, ne
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Current assets of discontinued operati

Total current asse

Property and equipment
Property and equipme
Less accumulated depreciati
Property and equipment, r

Property under capital lease
Property under capital lea
Less accumulated amortizati
Property under capital lease, |

Goodwill
Other assets and deferred chai
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Shor-term borrowings
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued income taxe
Long-term debt due within one ye

WAL-MART STORES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Obligations under capital leases due within one

Current liabilities of discontinued operatic
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Long-term obligations under capital leas
Deferred income taxes and otl
Redeemable noncontrolling inter:

Commitments and contingenci

Equity:

Preferred stock ($0.10 par value; 100 shares aa#fthrone issuet

Common stock ($0.10 par value; 11,000 shares am#thr3,418 and 3,516 issued and outstanding at

January 31, 2012 and 2011, respectiv
Capital in excess of par vall
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li

Total Walmart shareholde equity
Noncontrolling interes

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes.

22

As of January 31,

2012 2011
$ 655( $ 7,39
5,937 5,08¢
40,71 36,43
1,68¢ 2,96(
89 131
54,97 52,01
155,00; 148,58
(45,399  (43,48¢)
109,60 105,09t
5,93¢ 5,90¢
(3,215 (3,125
2,721 2,78(
20,65 16,76:
5,45¢ 4,12¢
$193,40(  $180,78:
$ 4047 $ 1,031
36,60¢ 33,67¢
18,15¢ 18,70:
1,16¢ 157
1,97¢ 4,65¢
326 33€

26 47
62,30( 58,60:
44,07( 40,69:
3,00¢ 3,15(
7,86- 6,68:
404 40¢
342 352
3,69z 3,571
68,69 63,96’
(1,410 64€
71,31 68,54:
4,44¢ 2,70¢
75,76 71,24’
$193,40(  $180,78:




(Amounts in millions, except per share de

Balances« February 1, 200
Consolidated net income
(excludes redeemable
noncontrolling interest
Other comprehensive incor
Cash dividends ($1.09 per sha
Purchase of Company sto
Purchase of redeemable
noncontrolling interes
Other

Balances« January 31, 201
Consolidated net income

(excludes redeemable

noncontrolling interesi
Other comprehensive incor
Cash dividends ($1.21 per sha
Purchase of Company sto
Other

Balances« January 31, 201

Consolidated net income
(excludes redeemable
noncontrolling interesi

Other comprehensive lo

Cash dividends ($1.46 per sha

Purchase of Company sto

Noncontrolling interest ¢
acquired entity

Other

Balances- January 31, 2012

See accompanying notes.

WAL-MART STORES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Accumulated Total
Capital in Other Walmart
Common Stock Comprehensive Shareholders’ Noncontrolling

Excess 0 Retained Total

Shares Amount Par Value Earnings Income (Loss) Equity Interest Equity
3,92t $ 39z $ 3,92 $ 63,34« $ (2,68¢) $ 64,96¢ $ 1,79¢ $ 66,76
— — — 14,37( — 14,37( 49¢ 14,86¢
2,61¢ 2,61¢ 64 2,68
— — — (4,217 — (4,217 — (4,217
(145) (15) (24€) (7,136 — (7,397 — (7,39))
— — (28¢) — — (28¢) — (28¢)
6 — 417 (4) — 417 (177) 23€
3,78¢ 37¢ 3,80: 66,35 (70 70,46¢ 2,18( 72,64¢
— — — 16,38¢ — 16,38¢ 584 16,97:
— — — — 71€ 71€ 162 87¢
— — — (4,437%) — (4,437 — (4,437%)
(280) (28) (487) (14,319 — (14,834 — (14,834
10 2 261 (23) — 24C (221) 19
3,51¢ 352 3,571 63,96 64¢€ 68,54: 2,70t 71,24
— — — 15,69¢ — 15,69¢ 627 16,32¢
— — — — (2,05€) (2,056) (660) (2,716
— — — (5,04¢) — (5,04¢) — (5,04¢)
(119) (11) (229) (5,930 — (6,170 — (6,170
— — — — — — 1,98¢ 1,98¢
15 1 344 3 — 34¢ (214) 134
3,41¢ $ 34z $ 3,697 $ 68,69 $ (1,410 $ 71,31t $ 4,44¢ $ 75,76
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WAL-MART STORES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated net income
Consolidated net incon® $16,38" $16,99: $14,88:
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translatio® (2,759 1,135 2,85¢
Net change in fair values of derivativ (67) ()] 94
Change in minimum pension liabili 43 (145) (220)
Total comprehensive income 13,60¢ 17,96¢ 17,61
Less amounts attributable to the noncontrollingriest:
Consolidated net incon® (68¢) (6049 (519
Currency translatio® 72€ (259 (110
Amounts attributable to the noncontrolling inter 38 (86%) (623)
Comprehensive income attributable to Walmart $13,64: $17,10¢ $16,98¢
(1) Includes $61 million, $20 million and $14 milliom fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, relatethe redeemable noncontrollil
interest.
(2) Includes $(66) million, $97 million and $46 milliamfiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, rddio the redeemable noncontrolli
interest.

See accompanying notes.
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WAL-MART STORES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in millions
Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net incorr
Loss (income) from discontinued operations, neag

Income from continuing operatiol

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing @biens to net cash provided by operatin

activities:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred income taxe
Other operating activitie

Changes in certain assets and liabilities, neffetts of acquisitions

Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for property and equipm
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipr
Investments and business acquisitions, net of aeghirec
Other investing activitie

Net cash used in investing activit|

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in shc-term borrowings
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debi
Payments of lor-term debt
Dividends paic
Purchase of Company sto
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling inte
Payment of capital lease obligatic
Other financing activitie

Net cash used in financing activiti

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equts:

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Income tax pait
Interest paic

See accompanying notes.

2012 2011 2010
$16,387 $16,99: $ 14,88t
67 (1,039 79
16,45¢ 15,95¢ 14,96:
8,13( 7,641 7,157
1,05¢ 651 (504)
39¢ 1,087 31¢
(79€) (739) (297)
(3,727) (3,20%) 2,21¢
2,681 2,67¢ 1,05:
59 (439) 1,34¢
24,25t 23,64: 26,24¢
(13510 (12,699 (12,189
58C 48¢ 1,00:
(3,545) (202) —
(131) 21¢ (43¢)
(16,609 (12,199 (11,620
3,01¢ 502 (1,039
5,05( 11,39¢ 5,54¢
(4,582) (4,080) (6,039
(5,045) (4.437) (4,219
(6,299 (14,77 (7,276)
— — (43€)
(355) (369) (34€)
(242) (271) (396)
(8,456 (12,020  (14,19)
(33) 66 194
(84E) (512) 632
7,39¢ 7,901 7,27¢
$ 655 $ 7,395 $ 7,90
$ 589¢ $ 698 $ 7,38¢
2,34¢ 2,16¢ 2,141
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmart” or the “Companydperates retail stores in various formats arourdatbrld, aggregated into three
reportable segments: the Walmart U.S. segmeniMdlenart International segment; and the Sam’s Cagment. Walmart is committed to
saving people money so they can live better. Walesns the trust of its customers everyday byigiog a broad assortment of quality
merchandise and services at everyday low priceBI(FE) while fostering a culture that rewards andbeates mutual respect, integrity and
diversity. EDLP is the Company’s pricing philosopltyder which it prices items at a low price eveay do its customers trust that its prices
will not change under frequent promotional activity

Principles of Consolidatior

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ticeunts of Walmart and its subsidiaries. All matkintercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidatiorestments in unconsolidated affiliates, which 50% or less owned and do not meet the
consolidation criteria of Topic 810 of the Finan@a&counting Standards Codification (“ASC"), arecaanted for using the equity method.
These investments are immaterial to the Compangisstlidated Financial Statements.

The Company'’s operations in the United States () & d Canada are consolidated using a Januafig&l year-end. The Company’s
operations in 12 countries in Africa, ArgentinaaBit, 5 countries in Central America, Chile, Chitrajia, Japan, Mexico and the United
Kingdom are consolidated using a December 31 figeat-end, generally due to statutory reportingiiregnents. There were no significant
intervening events during January 2012 which maltgraffected the Consolidated Financial Statements

Use of Estimates

The Consolidated Financial Statements have begraprd in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States.
Those principles require management to make estBratd assumptions that affect the reported amofiatssets and liabilities.
Managemens estimates and assumptions also affect the digel@s contingent assets and liabilities at the ddithe financial statements ¢
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting period. Actual results may diffeamh those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers investments with a maturitgmpurchased of three months or less to be cashadents. All credit card, debit card
and electronic benefits transfer transactionsfhatess in less than seven days are classifiedstisand cash equivalents. The amounts due
from banks for these transactions classified al tataled $1.2 billion at January 31, 2012 and 201 &ddition, cash and cash equivalents
includes restricted cash primarily related to ceslhateral holdings from various counterpartiestexguired by certain derivative and trust
agreements, of $547 million and $504 million atukay 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company’s cash balances are held in varioaitots around the world. Of the Company’s $6.6dsilland $7.4 billion of cash and cash
equivalents at January 31, 2012 and 2011, resjedgti$5.6 billion and $7.1 billion, respectivelyere held outside of the U.S. and are
generally utilized to support liquidity needs iretBompany’s foreign operations.

The Company employs financing strategies in anreffoensure that cash can be made available indhetry in which it is needed with the
minimum cost possible. The Company does not beltawél be necessary to repatriate cash and cgsiivalents held outside of the U.S. and
anticipates its domestic liquidity needs will betrtteough other funding sources (ongoing cash flgesserated from operations, external
borrowings, or both). Accordingly, the Company imde, with only certain limited exceptions, to cont to permanently reinvest the cash in
its foreign operations. Were the Company’s intentm change, most of the amounts held within them@any’s foreign operations could be
repatriated to the U.S., although any repatriatiomder current U.S. tax laws would be subject t8.lederal income taxes, less applicable
foreign tax credits. As of January 31, 2012 andl2@pproximately $768 million and $691 million, pestively, may not be freely
transferable to the U.S. due to local laws or otbstrictions. The Company does not expect loses Jather limitations or potential taxes on
anticipated future repatriations of amounts heltside of the United States to have a material effiadts overall liquidity, financial condition
or results of operations.
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Receivable:
Receivables are stated at their carrying valugsofnee reserve for doubtful accounts. Receivabtesist primarily of amounts due from:

insurance companies resulting from pharmacy s

banks for customer credit card, debit card andti@eic bank transfers that take in excess of seless to proces:
suppliers for marketing or incentive prograt

consumer financing programs in certain internatieo@sidiaries; an

real estate transactior

The Company establishes a reserve for doubtfullatsdased on historical trends in collection cftmhue amounts and writdf history. The
total reserve for doubtful accounts was $323 nmrilbmd $252 million at January 31, 2012 and 201sheetively.

Walmart International offers a limited amount ofisamer credit products, primarily through its fineah institution operations in Chile,
Canada and Mexico. The balance of these receivaldess1,049 million, net of a reserve for doubfatounts of $63 million at January 31,
2012, compared to a receivable balance of $673omjlhet of a reserve for doubtful accounts of 88Bion at January 31, 2011. These
balances are included in receivables, net in thegamy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Inventories

The Company values inventories at the lower of oosharket as determined primarily by the retaittme of accounting, using the last-in,
first-out (“LIFO”) method for substantially all dhe Walmart U.S. segment’'s merchandise inventofikes.retail method of accounting results
in inventory being valued at the lower of cost @rket since permanent markdowns are currently takemreduction of the retail value of
inventory. The Sam’s Club segment’s merchandisalised based on the weighted-average cost usinglf@ method. Inventories for the
Walmart International operations are primarily ey the retail method of accounting and are dtasing the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method. At January 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company&ntories valued at LIFO approximate those inegas as if they were valued at
FIFO.

Property and Equipmen

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Gailtsses on disposition are recognized as earnedtmred. Costs of major improvements
capitalized, while costs of normal repairs and reaiance are charged to expense as incurred. Tibwiiog detail of property and equipment
includes estimated useful lives which are genersdlyd to depreciate the assets on a straight-disis:b

As of January 31,

(Amounts in millions Estimated Useful Live: 2012 2011
Land N/A $ 23,49¢ $ 24,38¢
Buildings and improvemen 3-40 years 84,27: 79,05
Fixtures and equipme 3-25 years 39,23« 38,29(
Transportation equipme 3-15 years 2,68 2,59t
Construction in progres N/A 5,312 4,26
Property and equipme $155,00: $148,58:
Accumulated depreciatic (45,399 (43,48¢)
Property and equipment, r $109,60: $105,09¢

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over thrteshad the estimated useful life of the assetherremaining expected lease term.
Depreciation expense, including amortization ofgerty under capital leases, for fiscal 2012, 201d 2010 was $8.1 billion, $7.6 billion and
$7.2 billion, respectively. Interest costs capitadl on construction projects were $60 million, $@8ion and $85 million in fiscal 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are stated at cost. Managemeietne long-lived assets for indicators of impairmetenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount nmyoe recoverable. The evaluation is performeteatowest
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level of identifiable cash flows, which is at tinelividual store or club level or, in certain circsti@nces, a market group of stores.
Undiscounted cash flows expected to be generatdldebrelated assets are estimated over the assefsil lives based on updated projectic

If the evaluation indicates that the carrying antafrihe assets may not be recoverable, any patemtpairment is measured based upon the
fair value of the related asset or asset grouptsrmiined by an appropriate market appraisal arothluation technique.

Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net assets acquired ifnless combinations and is allocated to the
appropriate reporting unit when acquired. Otheuaeq intangible assets are stated at the fairevatiquired as determined by a valuation
technique commensurate with the intended use afehéed asset. Goodwill and indefinite-lived irgdole assets are not amortized; rather,
they are evaluated for impairment annually durimg €ompanys fourth fiscal quarter or whenever events or cbkang circumstances indici
that the value of the asset may be impaired. Definred intangible assets are considered longdliassets and are amortized on a strdighbt-
basis over the periods that expected economic iteméll be provided.

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment by first parfting a qualitative assessment to determine whethgrantitative goodwill impairment te
is necessary. If the Company determines, baseldeoqualitative factors, that the fair value of teporting unit is more likely than not less
than the carrying amount, the quantitative goodivijpairment test would be required. This quantiatest for goodwill impairment is
performed by determining the fair value of the tredbreporting units. Fair value is measured baseith® discounted cash flow method and
relative markebased approaches. Based on the results of theajivaliassessments performed, the Company detadrthiaéthe fair value ¢
each reporting unit is more likely than not gredlten the carrying amount and, as a result, quivet analyses were not required. The
Company has not recorded any impairment chargatereto goodwill.

The following table reflects goodwill activity, bgportable segment, for fiscal 2012 and 2011:

Walmart

(Amounts in millions Walmart U.S. International Sam’s Club Total

February 1, 2010 $ 207 $ 15,60¢ $ 31c $16,12¢
Currency translation and oth — 60% — 60&
Acquisitions 32 — — 32
January 31, 2011 23¢ 16,21 313 16,76:
Currency translation and oth — (53%) — (535)
Acquisitions 20C 4,22 — 4,42:
January 31, 2012 $ 43¢ $ 19,89¢ $ 31t $20,65:

In April 2011 and June 2011, the Company complatuisitions of 147 Netto stores from Dansk Supeketiin the United Kingdom and a
51% ownership in Massmart, a South African retailespectively. In these transactions, the Compaqyired approximately $748 million
and $3.5 billion in goodwill, respectively. ReferNote 14 for more information on the Company’siasitjons.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are includeaiher assets and deferred charges in the Comp&uyisolidated Balance Sheets. These a
are evaluated for impairment based on their fdinesusing valuation techniques which are updatedialy based on the most recent
variables and assumptions. There were no impairotenrges related to indefinite-lived intangibleeassecorded during fiscal 2012, 2011
and 2010.

SelfInsurance Reserves

The Company uses a combination of insurance, ssifred retention and self-insurance for a numbeisk$, including, but not limited to,
workers’ compensation, general liability, vehidlbility, property and the Company'’s obligation Bmmployee-related health care benefits.
Liabilities relating to these claims associatechwifitese risks are estimated by considering histbelaims experience, including frequency,
severity, demographic factors, and other actuasalimptions, including incurred but not reporteidinas. In estimating its liability for such
claims, the Company periodically analyzes its histd trends, including loss development, and agspéippropriate loss development factors
to the incurred costs associated with the clairhe. Company also maintains stop-loss insurance agedor workers’ compensation and
general liability of $5 million and $15 million, spectively, per occurrence to limit exposure tdaiarrisks. See Note 6 for more information.
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the liahitigthod. Deferred tax assets and liabilities aregeized for the estimated future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesre@sured using enacted tax rates in effect foydle in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effectederred tax assets and liabilities of a changevirate is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. Valuation allmearare established when necessary to reduceatbfan assets to the amounts more likely
than not to be realized.

The Company records a liability for unrecognizedhanefits resulting from uncertain tax positioaken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. The Company records interest and penakiated to unrecognized tax benefits in interepease and operating, selling, general and
administrative expenses, respectively, in the CamigaConsolidated Statements of Income.

Revenue Recognitio
Sales
The Company recognizes sales revenue net of sedes &nd estimated sales returns at the timdstreerchandise to the customer.

Shopping Cards

Customer purchases of shopping cards are not rezmas revenue until the card is redeemed andustemer purchases merchandise using
the shopping card. Shopping cards in the U.S. d@awy an expiration date and, therefore, custsraad members can redeem their
shopping cards for merchandise indefinitely. Shogmards in certain foreign countries where the Gamy does business may have
expiration dates. A certain amount of shopping sabdth with and without expiration dates, will ha& redeemed. The Company estimates
unredeemed shopping cards and recognizes reventiefe amounts over shopping card historical upageds based on historical
redemption rates. The Company periodically reviams updates its estimates of usage periods anthpgida rates.

Financial and Other Service

The Company recognizes revenue from financial dhdrservice transactions at the time the sergigeiformed. Generally, revenue from
services is classified as a component of net sald®e Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

Membership Fe

The Company recognizes membership fee revenuemtiie United States and internationally over @vent of the membership, which is 12
months. The following table summarizes memberskégpdctivity for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010
Deferred membership fee revenue, beginning of ye: $ 54z $ 532 $ 541
Cash received from membe 1,111 1,074 1,04¢
Membership fee revenue recogni: (1,099 (1,069 (1,057)
Deferred membership fee revenue, end of yei $ b55¢ $ 54z $ 53z

Membership fee revenue is included in membershipaner income in the Company’s Consolidated Stategmof Income. The deferred
membership fee is included in accrued liabilitieshie Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes actual product cost, theafasansportation to the Company’s warehous@sestand clubs from suppliers, the cost of
transportation from the Company’s warehouses tathies, clubs and customers and the cost of wasatgfor its Sam’s Club segment and
import distribution centers.

Payments from Supplier

Walmart receives consideration from suppliers famiaus programs, primarily volume incentives, wangde allowances and reimbursements
for specific programs such as markdowns, margitegtion, advertising and supplier-specific fixtur8sibstantially all payments from
suppliers are accounted for as a reduction of @iosales and are recognized in the Company’s Cafeet Statements of Income when the
related inventory is sold.
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Operating, Selling, General and Administrative Expses

Operating, selling, general and administrative esps include all operating costs of the Compangegixcost of sales, as described above

a result, the majority of the cost of warehousing accupancy for the Walmart U.S. and Walmart hrdéonal segments’ distribution

facilities is included in operating, selling, geslesind administrative expenses. Because the Congmes/not include most of the cost of its
Walmart U.S. and Walmart International segmentstritiution facilities in cost of sales, its grossfft and gross profit as a percentage of net
sales (“gross profit margin”) may not be comparabléhose of other retailers that may include afits related to their distribution facilities in
cost of sales and in the calculation of gross profi

Advertising Cost:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and $&#ebillion, $2.5 billion and $2.4 billion in fial 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Advertising costs consist primarily of print, teision and digital advertisements and are recordexperating, selling, general and
administrative expenses in the Company’s Consa@di&tatements of Income. Advertising reimbursemetsived from suppliers are
generally accounted for as a reduction of costatEfssand recognized in the Company’s Consolidateté®ents of Income when the related
inventory is sold. When advertising reimbursemangsdirectly related to specific advertising at¢i&s and meet the criteria in ASC Topic
605, they are recognized as a reduction of adugtisxpenses in operating, selling, general andridtrative expenses.

Leases

The Company estimates the expected term of a lBaassuming the exercise of renewal options whemcanomic penalty exists that would
preclude the abandonment of the lease at the ettt drfiitial non-cancelable term and the exercfssuoh renewal is at the sole discretion of
the Company. The expected term is used in theetation of whether a store or club lease is atabpr operating lease and in the
calculation of straight-line rent expense. Additithy, the useful life of leasehold improvementéinsited by the expected lease term or the
economic life of the asset, whichever is shorfesignificant expenditures are made for leasehmlgrovements late in the expected term of a
lease and renewal is reasonably assured, the Ui$efof the leasehold improvement is limited te tand of the renewal period or economic
life of the asset, whichever is shorter.

Rent abatements and escalations are considerbd gatculation of minimum lease payments in the gamy’s capital lease tests and in
determining straight-line rent expense for operpléases.

Pre-Opening Costs

The costs of start-up activities, including orgatian costs, related to new store openings, semodels, expansions and relocations are
expensed as incurred and included in operatintingeteneral and administrative expenses in the@oy’s Consolidated Statements of
Income. Pre-opening costs totaled $308 million,G8&llion and $227 million for the fiscal years emtlJanuary 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of all international sidtaries are translated from the respective loaalency to the U.S. dollar using exchange
rates at the balance sheet date. Related tramskdjostments are recorded as a component of adatedwther comprehensive income (lo
The income statements of international subsidiaiedranslated from the respective local currentieghe U.S. dollar using average
exchange rates for the period covered by the incstatements.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to piseaf year amounts or balances to conform to thegntation in the current fiscal year. Tt
reclassifications did not impact consolidated ofiegancome or net income. Additionally, certaimypeent asset and expense allocations have
been reclassified among segments in the curreidgedee Note 15 for further detail.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Bo&rdGB”) issued two Accounting Standards Updates§W) which amend guidance for
the presentation of comprehensive income. The aatbgdidance requires an entity to present compereéntet income and other
comprehensive income in one continuous statemedet;red to as the statement of comprehensive income
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in two separate, but consecutive statements. Thertwoption to report other comprehensive incometits components in the statement of
shareholdersequity will be eliminated. Although the new guidanthanges the presentation of comprehensive indbiee, are no changes
the components that are recognized in net inconm¢h@r comprehensive income under existing guidaficese ASUs are effective for the
Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2013 andagpective application will be required. These ASUilschange the Company’s financial
statement presentation of comprehensive incomeitiutot impact the Company’s net income, finangakition or cash flows.

In 2011, the FASB issued an ASU, which is intentteteduce complexity and costs by allowing an grikie option to make a qualitative
evaluation about the likelihood of goodwill impaient to determine whether it should calculate tlevi@ue of a reporting unit. The ASU
also expands upon the examples of events and cétemees that an entity should consider betweenahimpairment tests in determining
whether it is more likely than not that the faituaof a reporting unit is less than its carryimgoaint. The ASU is effective for the Company
in the first quarter of fiscal 2013, with early gdion permitted. The Company early adopted the ipions of the ASU in fiscal 2012 for its
fiscal 2012 goodwill impairment test.

Note 2. Net Income Per Common Share

Basic income per common share from continuing djmrs attributable to Walmart is based on the wieidfaverage common shares
outstanding. Diluted income per common share fromtiouing operations attributable to Walmart isdzhen the weighted-average number
of outstanding common shares adjusted for theidgdwgffect of stock options and other share-basextds. The Company had approximately
1 million, 4 million and 5 million stock options tatanding at January 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, cégply, which were not included in the
diluted income per common share from continuingrapens attributable to Walmart calculation becaihsér effect would be antidilutive.

The following table provides a reconciliation oéthumerators and denominators used to determine dras diluted income per common
share from continuing operations attributable tdriiéat:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions, except per share de 2012 2011 2010
Numerator
Income from continuing operatiol $16,45¢ $15,95¢ $14,96:
Less consolidated net income attributable to notmobimg interest (68€) (604 (519)
Income from continuing operations attributable talWart $15,76¢ $15,35¢ $14,44¢
Denominator
Weightec-average common shares outstanding, t 3,46( 3,65¢ 3,86¢
Dilutive impact of stock options and other sl-based award 14 14 11
Weighte-average common shares outstanding, dil 3,47¢ 3,67( 3,871
Net income per common share from continuing operatins attributable
to Walmart
Basic $ 4.5¢ $ 4.2 $ 3.7¢
Diluted 4.5¢ 4.1¢ 3.7¢

Note 3. Shareholders’ Equity
Share-Based Compensation

The Company has awarded share-based compensatieadoiates and nonemployee directors of the Coynfjfie compensation expense
recognized for all plans was $355 million, $371limil and $335 million for fiscal 2012, 2011 and RQtespectively. Share-based
compensation expense is included in operatingngeljeneral and administrative expenses in theg2oyls Consolidated Statements of
Income. The total income tax benefit recognizedsfaare-based compensation was $134 million, $14ibmand $126 million for fiscal
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The followirdgdgaummarizes the Company’s share-based compemsagpense by award type:
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Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010

Restricted stock and performance share awards $ 14z $ 162 $ 14C
Restricted stock right 184 157 111
Stock options 29 52 84
Shar-based compensation expel $ 35t $ 371 $ 33t

The Company’s shareholder-approved Stock Inceftiga of 2010 (the “Plan”) became effective Jun204,0 and amended and restated the
Company’s Stock Incentive Plan of 2005. The Plar e&tablished to grant stock options, restrictet{rested) stock, performance shares
and other equity compensation awards for whichraillon shares of common stock issued or to beadsunder the Plan have been
registered under the Securities Act of 1933, asnaie@d. The Company believes that such awards semlegh the interests of its associates
with those of its shareholders.

The Plan’s award types are summarized as follows:

Restricted stock grants are awards for shares#dsitbased on the passage of time, achievemesetrimrmance criteria, or both.
Performance share awards vest based on the pagdfige and achievement of performance criteria imag range from 0% to
150% of the original award amount. Vesting perifmsoth awards are generally between three ardyfdars. Awards granted
before January 1, 2008 may be settled in stoclefarced as stock or cash, based upon the recipieldttion. Consequently, these
awards are included in accrued liabilities and defkincome taxes and other in the Company’s Cadesteld Balance Sheets,
unless the recipient elected for the award to kitedeor deferred in stock. The fair value of tlestricted stock and performance
share liabilities is remeasured each reportingogleaind the total liability for these awards at dagB81, 2012 and 2011 was $16
million and $12 million, respectively. Restrictedek awards and performance share awards issuestal 2009 and thereafter,
may be settled or deferred in stock and are aceduior as equity in the CompasyConsolidated Balance Sheets. The fair vali
these awards is determined on the date of grangjulse Company stock price discounted for the expected dividgettl througt
the vesting period and is recognized ratably owervesting perioc

Restricted stock rights provide rights to Compatogls after a specified service period. For restdcitock rights issued in fiscal
2009 and thereafter, 50% vest three years frongrtéuet date and the remaining 50% vesting five y&ara the grant date. The fi
value of each restricted stock right is determioedhe date of grant using the stock price discedifir the expected dividend
yield through the vesting period and is recognizdbly over the vesting period. The expected @ndlyield is based on tl
anticipated dividends over the vesting period. Weghtedaverage discount for the dividend yield used temeine the fair valu
of restricted stock rights granted in fiscal 202@11 and 2010 was 11.7%, 9.1% and 8.5%, respegct

Stock options allow the associate to buy a spetifiember of shares at a set price. Options grageadrally vest over five years
and have a contractual term of ten years. Opticeng imclude restrictions related to employment,sfatition of performance
conditions or other conditions. Under the Plan jaridr plans, substantially all stock options haeef granted with an exercise
price equal to the market price of the Comy's stock at the date of gra

In addition to the Plan, the Company’s subsidiarthie United Kingdom, ASDA, has two other stocki@ptplans for certain ASDA
colleagues. A combined 49 million shares of the Gany’s common stock were registered under the 8msuAct of 1933, as amended, for
issuance upon the exercise of stock options gramddr the Colleague Share Ownership Plan 1999'@B©P") and the ASDA Sharesave
Plan 2000 (“Sharesave Plan”).

The CSOP grants have either a three- or six-yestingeperiod. The CSOP options may be exerciseigltine two months
immediately following the vesting dai

The Sharesave Plan grants options at 80% of thep@oy's average stock price for the three days piiagehe grant date. The
Sharesave Plan options vest after three years agdyanerally be exercised up to six months aften#sting date
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The following table shows the activity for each asviype during fiscal 2012:

Restricted Stock and Performance
Share Awards

Restricted Stock Rights

Stock Options (1)

Weighted-
Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average
Grant-Date Grant-Date Exercise

Fair Value Fair Value Price
(Shares in thousand Shares Per Share Shares Per Share Shares Per Share
Outstanding at February 1, 2011 13,61% $ 52.3¢ 16,83¢ $ 47.71 33,38t  $ 49.3¢
Granted 5,02z 55.0¢ 5,82¢ 47.1% 2,04z 42.9(
Vested/exercise (3,177) 51.2¢ (3,739 47.2¢ (13,799 50.27
Forfeited or expirel (2,149 52.5¢ (1,310 47.92 (1,487 48.01
Outstanding at January 31, 2C 13,32( $ 53.5¢ 17,62; $ 47.7¢ 20,15 $ 48.2]
Exercisable at January 31, 2C 13,59¢ $ 50.4¢

@ Includes stock option awards granted under thekStwentive Plan of 2010, the Colleague Share OshiprPlan 1999 and the ASDA

Sharesave Plan 20C

As of January 31, 2012, the unrecognized compeanmsatist for restricted stock and performance saards, restricted stock rights and
stock option awards was $356 million, $427 milliand $23 million, respectively, and is expectetléaecognized over a weighted-average
period of 2.3 years, 2.0 years and 1.0 years, céisply. Additionally, as of January 31, 2012, theighted-average remaining life for stock
options outstanding and stock options exercisable 43 years and 2.9 years, respectively, anddlok eptions had an aggregate intrinsic
value of $265 million and $148 million, respectivel

The following table includes additional informaticglated to the restricted stock and performaneeesawards and the restricted stock rights:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010
Fair value of restricted stock and performanceesharards vested $ 134 $ 14z $ 11C
Fair value of restricted stock rights ves 17¢ 50 49

The following table includes additional informaticglated to stock option awards:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010

Fair value of stock options vested $ 50 $ 54 $ 79
Proceeds from stock options exerci: 42C 20t 111
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 91 51 39

The fair value of each stock option award is estatian the date of grant using the Black-Scholestdfieoption valuation model that uses
various assumptions for inputs. The Company uspeatgd volatilities and risk-free interest ratest torrelate with the expected term of the
option when estimating an option’s fair value. Tokkowing table provides the weighted-average agsions used to estimate the fair values
of the Company’s stock options granted in fiscal2®011 and 2010:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

2012 2011 2010
Dividend yield® 2.% 2.3% 2.1%
Volatility @ 17.€% 17.1% 18.7%
Risk-free interest rat® 1.2% 1.8% 1.4%
Expected life in year® 3.C 3.1 3.1
Weighte-average fair value of options grani $9.61 $12.5¢ $10.41

()]
(@)
(©)
4)

Expected dividend yield is based on the anticipdieitlends over the vesting peric

Expected volatility is based on historical volagilof the Compar’s stock.

Risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasiety gurve at the time of the gra

Expected life in years is based on historical eserand expiration activity of grants with similggsting periods
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Share Repurchase Progral

From time to time, the Company has repurchasedsludrits common stock under share repurchasegreauthorized by the Board of
Directors. The current share repurchase progranmdi@spiration date or other restriction limitifgetperiod over which the Company can
make share repurchases. At January 31, 2012, @&adtion for $11.3 billion of additional share repboases remained under the current share
repurchase program. Any repurchased shares argucthgly retired and returned to an unissuecdustat

The Company considers several factors in determininen to execute share repurchases, includingngmiher things, current cash needs,
capacity for leverage, cost of borrowings and tlaek®t price of its common stock. Cash paid for slrapurchases during fiscal 2012, 2011
and 2010 was as follows:

Total

Total Number of Investment
Shares Repurchase
Average Price (in
Share Repurchases (in millions) Paid per Share billions)
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2012 115.2 $ 54.6¢ $ 6.3
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2I 279.1 53.0: 14.¢
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2| 145k 50.17 7.3

Note 4. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (L&}

The following table provides the changes in the gosition of accumulated other comprehensive inc@oss) for fiscal 2012, 2011 and
2010:

Currency Translation

Minimum
Derivative Pension
(Amounts in millions and Other Instruments Liability Total

Balances at February 1, 2009 $ (2,396 $ (17) $ (275 $(2,68¢)
Currency translatio 2,744 — — 2,744
Net change in fair value of derivativ — 94 — 94
Minimum pension liability — — (220 (220
Balances at January 31, 2C 34¢ 77 (495) (70
Currency translatio 87¢ — — 87¢
Net change in fair value of derivativ — a7 — (17)
Minimum pension liability — — (149 (149
Balances at January 31, 2C 1,22¢ 60 $ (640 64€
Currency translatio (2,039 — — (2,039
Net change in fair value of derivativ — (67) — (67)
Minimum pension liability — — 43 43
Balances at January 31, 2C $ (80€) $ (7 $ (597 $(1,41C

Amounts included in accumulated other compreherisis@me (loss) are recorded net of their relatednime tax effects. The Company’s
unrealized net gains and losses on net investneglyds, included in the currency translation andraglecount of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), were not significandfalanuary 31, 2012 and 2011. The Company réfidak$(86) million and $(14) millior
respectively, in fiscal 2012 and 2011 from accurmdather comprehensive income (loss) to earnimgdfset the impact of currency
translation on the re-measurement of non-U.S. démated debt.

Note 5. Restructuring Charges

In fiscal 2010, the Company announced several @gtonal changes, including the closure of 10 Sa@iubs, designed to strengthen and
streamline its operations. As a result, the Compangrded $260 million in pre-tax restructuring res in fiscal 2010 as follows:
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Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2010

Severanci
Asset
(Amounts in millions Impairment Costs Total
Walmart U.S. $ — $ 73 $ 73
San’s Club 13z 41 174
Other — 13 13
Total $ 133 $ 127 $ 26C

The asset impairment charges generally relatectogtal estate of the Sam’s Club closures, whichwriten down to their estimated fair
value of $46 million. The fair value was determirEsed on comparable market values of similar ptiggeor on a rental income approach,
using Level 2 inputs of the three-tier fair valuerarchy discussed in Note 8.

The pre-tax restructuring charges of $260 millioa eassified in operating, selling, general anchindstrative expenses in the Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Income for fiscal 2010J&nuary 31, 2010, the Company had $127 milliogestrance costs included in accrued
liabilities in the Company’s Consolidated Balante&t. These severance costs were paid during 86d4l.

Note 6. Accrued Liabilities
The Company’s accrued liabilities consist of thiéofeing:

As of January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011

Accrued wages and benefits $ 5,08¢ $ 5,89¢
Self-insurance® 3,63¢ 3,447
Other®) 9,42 9,35¢
Total accrued liabilitie: $18,15¢ $18,70:

(€3

Accrued wages and benefits include accrued wagésjes, vacation, bonuses and other incentivesp
&)

Self-insurance consists of all insurance-relatakilities, such as workers’ compensation, genéhllity, vehicle liability, property and
employer-related health care benefi

@ Other accrued liabilities consist of various itesmsh as accrued taxes, maintenance, utilities,rising and interes

Note 7. Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt
Information on the Company’s short-term borrowiagsl interest rates is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Dollar amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end $9,59¢/ $9,28: $4,53¢
Average daily sho-term borrowings 6,04( 4,02( 1,59¢
Weightec-average interest ra 0.1% 0.2% 0.5%

Short-term borrowings consist of commercial papet knes of credit. Short-term borrowings outstauigdat January 31, 2012 and 2011 were
$4.0 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively.

The Company has certain lines of credit totaling.$Dillion, most of which were undrawn, as of Jayu31, 2012 and is committed with 26
financial institutions. In conjunction with theseds of credit, the Company has agreed to obsemtaino covenants, the most restrictive of
which relates to maximum amounts of secured dethi@mg-term leases. Committed lines of credit amnarily used to support commercial
paper and remained undrawn as of January 31, dZbE2committed lines of credit mature at variouseifbetween June 2012 and June 2016,
carry interest rates generally ranging between IRBflus 10 basis points and LIBOR plus 75 basistppand incur commitment fees rang
between 1.5 and 10.0 basis points.

In June 2011, the Company renewed and extendediting 364-day revolving credit facility (the “8&lay Facility”) and its five-year credit
facility (the “5-year Facility”), both of which angsed to support its commercial paper program.size of the 364-day Facility was increased
from $9.0 billion to $10.0 billion, while the $ear Facility was increased from $4.3 billion ta3billion. Fiscal 2012 undrawn and drawn f
remained relatively flat from fiscal 2011. The 3@dy Facility and the 5-year Facility remained umdhras of January 31, 2012.
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The Company had trade letters of credit outstantbitajing $2.9 billion and $2.6 billion at Janu&%, 2012 and 2011, respectively. At
January 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had statettbys of credit outstanding totaling $2.2 biliand $2.0 billion, respectively. The
Company renewed the stand-by letter of credititées|in June 2011, which is used to support varipotential and actual obligations.

The Company’s long-term debt consists of the foilay

January 31, 2012 January 31, 2011
Maturity Dates Average Average

(In millions of U.S. dollars By Fiscal Year Amount Rate (1) Amount Rate (1)

Unsecured Debt
Fixed 2012204z  $32,94: 4.6%  $29,94: 4. 7%
Variable 201z 50C 5.2% 50C 5.C%
Total Denominated U.S. Dollar 33,44t 30,44t
Fixed 203( 1,30¢ 4.% 1,36¢ 4.%%
Variable — — — —
Total Denominated Euro 1,30¢ 1,36¢
Fixed 201:-203¢ 6,301 5.2% 6,40z 5.2%
Variable — — — —
Total Denominated Sterling 6,301 6,40z
Fixed 2014-2021 2,33t 1.4% 3,08t 1.5%
Variable 2014-201¢ 1,271 0.8% 2,24: 1.1%
Total Denominated Yen 3,60¢€ 5,321

Total Unsecured Debt 44.,66( 43,54

Total Other Debt (in USD) @ 2013-203( 1,20z 1,537

Total Debt 45,86 45,08(

Less amounts due within one yt (1,97¢ (4,65¢

Derivative fair value adjustmen 18z 267

Long-term Debt $44,07( $40,69:

@ The average rate represents the weighted-averaigel sate for each corresponding debt categorgdeas year-end balances and year-

end local currency interest rates. Interest cagt®kso impacted by certain derivative financiatinments described in Note
A portion of other debt includes secured debt mamount of $319 million, which is collateralizeg firoperty with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately $866 millic

(@)

The Company has $500 million in debt with embedglgidoptions. The issuance of money market puttaset securities in the amount of
$500 million is structured to be remarketed in astion with the annual reset of the interest tatéor any reason, the remarketing of the
notes does not occur at the time of any interastreset, the holders of the notes must sell, am@€Cbmpany must repurchase, the notes at pal
This issuance has been classified as long-termdiebtvithin one year in the Company’s Consolid&athnce Sheets. Annual maturities of
long-term debt during the next five years and thttee are as follows:
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(Amounts in millions Annual

Fiscal Year Maturity
2013 $ 1,97¢
2014 5,16¢
2015 3,921
2016 4,75C
2017 1,13(
Thereatftel 28,917
Total $45,86:

Debt Issuance:
Information on significant long-term debt issuedidg fiscal 2012 is as follows (amounts in milligns

Issue Date Maturity Date Interest Rate erlgglt?ril
April 18, 2011 April 15, 2014 1.625% $ 1,00(
April 18, 2011 April 15, 2016 2.80(% 1,00(
April 18, 2011 April 15, 2021 4.25(% 1,00(
April 18, 2011 April 15, 2041 5.625% 2,00(

Total $ 5,00(

The aggregate net proceeds from these note issuamre approximately $4.9 billion. The notes offeseries require semi-annual interest
payments on April 15 and October 15 of each yedh tle first interest payment having commenced®atober 15, 2011. Unless previously
purchased and canceled, the Company will repapabes of each series at 100% of the principal amaogether with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon, at maturity. The notes of eaclesare senior, unsecured obligations of the Comppa

Note 8. Fair Value Measurements

The Company records and discloses certain finaaaidlnon-financial assets and liabilities at tifegir value. The fair value of an asset is the
price at which the asset could be sold in an oydeahsaction between unrelated, knowledgeablendltidg parties able to engage in the
transaction. A liability’s fair value is defined #ee amount that would be paid to transfer theilligio a new obligor in a transaction between
such parties, not the amount that would be pagkttie the liability with the creditor.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value asasured using a three-tier fair value hierarchyicvprioritizes the inputs used in measuring
fair value. These tiers include:

» Level 1- observable inputs such as quoted prices in actadeis;
» Level 2- inputs other than quoted prices in active markwds are either directly or indirectly observableg
» Level 3 - unobservable inputs in which little or market data exists, therefore requiring the Compardevelop its own

assumptions
The disclosure of fair value of certain financiatats and liabilities recorded at cost is as fatow
Cash and cash equivalenfBhe carrying value approximates fair value duétoghort maturity of these instruments.
Short-term debtThe carrying value approximates fair value duétoghort maturity of these instruments.

Long-term debtThe fair value is based on the Company’s curresreimental borrowing rate for similar types of beving
arrangements or, where applicable, quoted marke#rThe carrying value and fair value of the Canys debt as of January 31, 2(
and 2011 is as follows:

January 31, 2012 January 31, 2011

(Amounts in millions Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Long-term debt, including amounts
due within one yee $  46,04¢ $53,04: $ 45,34 $47,01:

Additionally, as of January 31, 2012 and 2011,Goeenpany held certain derivative asset and liabjlitgitions that are required to be
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Thenityaof the Company’s derivative instruments teléo
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interest rate swaps. The fair values of theseeastanate swaps have been measured in accordariceevitl 2 inputs of the fair value
hierarchy, using the income approach. These inpatgde the relevant interest rate and foreignanty forward curves. As of January 31,
2012 and 2011, the notional amounts and fair vabfidisese interest rate swaps are as follows (#lzseility)):

January 31, 2012 January 31, 2011

(Amounts in millions) Notional Amount Fair Value Notional Amount Fair Value
Receive fixed-rate, pay floating-rate interest ra

swaps designated as fair value hec $ 3,94¢ $ 18¢ $ 4,44t $ 267
Receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate cross-currency

interest rate swaps designated as net invesl

hedges 1,25( 31¢€ 1,25C 233
Receive floating-rate, pay fixed-rate interest ra

swaps designated as cash flow hec 1,27C (16) 1,182 (18)
Receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate cross-currency

interest rate swaps designated as cash flow

hedges 2,88¢ (3 2,902 23¢
Total $ 9,34¢ $ 48C $ 9,77¢ $ 72

The fair values above are the estimated amountSaonepany would receive or pay upon a terminatiothefagreements relating to such
instruments as of the reporting dates.

Note 9. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instrumeotdh&dging and non-trading purposes to managejitsseire to changes in interest and
currency exchange rates, as well as to maintaapanopriate mix of fixed- and floating-rate debsdbf derivative financial instruments in
hedging programs subjects the Company to certslis,rsuch as market and credit risks. Market ggkasents the possibility that the value of
the derivative instrument will change. In a hedgielgtionship, the change in the value of the @give is offset to a great extent by the
change in the value of the underlying hedged iteradit risk related to derivatives represents th&sibility that the counterparty will not
fulfill the terms of the contract. The notional,a@ntractual amount of the Company’s derivativaficial instruments, is used to measure
interest to be paid or received and does not reptéee Company’s exposure due to credit risk. i€rak is monitored through established
approval procedures, including setting concentrdiimits by counterparty, reviewing credit ratireysd requiring collateral (generally cash)
from the counterparty when appropriate. The Comisatngnsactions are with counterparties rated “@-better by nationally recognized
credit rating agencies. In connection with varidesivative agreements with counterparties, the Gomheld cash collateral from these
counterparties of $387 million and $344 millionJahuary 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Cogipaolicy is to record cash collateral
exclusive of any derivative asset, and any coldteoldings are reflected in the Company’s acciigdlities as amounts due to the
counterparties. Furthermore, as part of the magtéing arrangements with these counterpartiesCtmapany is also required to post
collateral if the derivative liability position ezeds $150 million. The Company has no outstandifigteral postings; and in the event of
providing cash collateral, the Company would redbelposting as a receivable exclusive of any dérxie liability.

When the Company uses derivative financial instmiséor the purpose of hedging its exposure taésteand currency exchange rates, the
contract terms of a hedged instrument closely mihrose of the hedged item, providing a high degifaésk reduction and correlation.
Contracts that are effective at meeting the riskicion and correlation criteria are recorded usiedge accounting. If a derivative instrum

is a hedge, depending on the nature of the hetlgages in the fair value of the instrument areegitifset against the change in fair value of
the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitmehteugh earnings or recognized in accumulated atbemprehensive income (loss) until the
hedged item is recognized in earnings. The indffegiortion of an instrument’s change in fair vailsémmediately recognized in earnings
during the period. Instruments that do not meettiteria for hedge accounting, or contracts forohithe Company has not elected hedge
accounting, are valued at fair value with unrealigains or losses reported in earnings during émeg@ of change.

Fair Value Instruments

The Company is party to receive fixed-rate, pagtileg-rate interest rate swaps to hedge the féirevaf fixed+ate debt. The notional amou
are used to measure interest to be paid or receiveédio not represent the exposure due to creiit Tche Company’s interest rate swaps that
receive fixed-interest rate payments and pay fhogiiterest rate payments are designated as flaie Veedges. As the specific terms and
notional amounts of the derivative instruments abose of the instruments being hedged, the derévanstruments were assumed to be
perfectly effective hedges and all changes invaiue of the hedges were recorded in long-term detitaccumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) in the Company’s Consolidated Baldsiteets with no net impact in the Company’s Codatdid Statements of Income. These
fair value instruments will mature on various datasging from April 2012 to May 2014.
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Net Investment Instrument

The Company is party to cross-currency interest sataps that hedge its net investments, as wil aarrency exchange rate fluctuation
exposure associated with the forecasted paymemsrafipal and interest of non-U.S. denominatect.dEbe agreements are contracts to
exchange fixed-rate payments in one currency fadfirate payments in another currency. All chanigdise fair value of these instruments
are recorded in accumulated other comprehensiariadloss), offsetting the currency translatioruatinent that is also recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).elmssruments will mature on dates ranging fromobet 2023 to February 2030.

The Company has outstanding debt of approximat&l§ Billion as of January 31, 2012 and 2011 thdesgnated as a hedge of the
Company’s net investment in the United Kingdom. Tmempany also has outstanding debt of approxim&2n56.0 billion and ¥437.0 billion
as of January 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivelyjdtdgsignated as a hedge of the Company’s nestiment in Japan. Any translation of non-
U.S.-denominated debt is recorded in accumulateer @omprehensive income (loss), offsetting theenay translation adjustment that is
also recorded in accumulated other comprehensaanie (loss). These instruments will mature on dateging from January 2013 to
January 2039.

Cash Flow Instruments

The Company is party to receive floating-rate, fiegd-rate interest rate swaps to hedge the inteads risk of certain non-U.S.-denominated
debt. The swaps are designated as cash flow hefiggsrest rate risk. Amounts reported in accurmdather comprehensive income (loss)
related to derivatives are reclassified from acdated other comprehensive income (loss) to earrasgaterest payments are made on the
Company’s variable-rate debt, converting the flogiiate interest expense into fixed-rate interegease. These cash flow instruments will
mature on dates ranging from August 2013 to Julk520

The Company is also party to receive fixed-ratg, fp@d-rate cross-currency interest rate swagsetige the currency exposure associated
with the forecasted payments of principal and ggeof non-U.S.-denominated debt. The swaps aigrdged as cash flow hedges of the
currency risk related to payments on the non-UeBiedthinated debt. The effective portion of changese fair value of derivatives
designated as cash flow hedges of foreign exchasigés recorded in other comprehensive incomesflasd is subsequently reclassified into
earnings in the period that the hedged forecastegaction affects earnings. The hedged itemseamgnized foreign-currency denominated
liabilities that are remeasured at spot exchantgs ach period, and the assessment of effectivéard measurement of any ineffectiven:

is based on total changes in the derivative’s flasis. As a result, the amount reclassified intme®&ys each period includes an amount that
offsets the related transaction gain or loss agifiom that remeasurement and the adjustment toregr for the period’s allocable portion of
the initial spot-forward difference associated vilib hedging instrument. These cash flow instrusedilt mature on dates ranging from
September 2029 to March 2034. Any ineffectiveneiis these instruments has been and is expected itoraterial.

Financial Statement Presentation

Hedging instruments with an unrealized gain arenged in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Steesegsther a current or a non-current
asset, based on maturity date, and those hedgtrgmnents with an unrealized loss are recordedtlasre current or a non-current liability,
based on maturity date.

As of January 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’sifiis instruments were classified as follows inGsnsolidated Balance Sheets:

January 31, 2012 January 31, 2011
Net Net
Investment Investment
Fair Value Cash Flow Fair Value Cash Flow
(Amounts in millions Instruments Hedge Instruments Instruments Hedge Instruments
Balance Sheet Classification:
Prepaid expenses and otl $ 2 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Other assets and deferred chai 181 31€ 91 267 23: 23¢€
Assets subtotals $ 182 $ 31€ $ 91 $ 267 $ 23c $ 23¢€
Long-term debt due within one ye $ 2 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Long-term deb 181 — — 267 — —
Deferred income taxes and otl — — 11C — — 18
Liability subtotals $ 18: $ — $ 11C $ 267 $ — $ 18
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Note 10. Taxes
Income from Continuing Operatiol
The components of income from continuing operatioefore income taxes are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010

U.S. $ 18,68: $ 18,39¢ $ 17,70¢

Non-U.S. 5,718 5,14( 4,417
Total income from continuing operations before imeotaxes $ 24,39¢ $ 23,53¢ $ 22,11¢

A summary of the provision for income taxes is@fvs:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010
Current:
U.S. federa $ 4,59€ $ 4,60( $ 5,79¢
U.S. state and loci 743 637 59¢
International 1,40z 1,46¢ 1,24¢
Total current tax provisio 6,742 6,70z 7,64
Deferred:
U.S. federa 1,44¢ 81¢ (432)
U.S. state and loci 57 39 78
International (299) 19 (139)
Total deferred tax provisic 1,20z 87¢€ (487)
Total provision for income taxe $ 7,94 $ 7,57¢ $ 7,15¢

Effective Tax Rate Reconciliati

The Company'’s effective income tax rate is typicdwer than the U.S. statutory rate primarily hesmof benefits from lower-taxed global
operations, including the use of global fundingistures and certain U.S. tax credits. The Compamy'sU.S. income is subject to local

country tax rates that are below the 35% U.S. sigtuate. Certain non-U.S. earnings have beerfimtidy reinvested outside the U.S. and
are not subject to current U.S. income tax. A red@tion of the significant differences betweer t.S. statutory tax rate and the effective

income tax rate on pretax income from continuingragions is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

2012 2011 2010
U.S. statutory tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
U.S. state income taxes, net of federal incomd&mefit 2.0% 1.9% 2.C%
Income taxed outside the U. -2.8% -2.2% -1.6%
Net impact of repatriated international earni -0.3% -1.5% -3.4%
Other, ne -1.3% -1.0% 0.4%
Effective income tax rat 32.6% 32.2% 32.%
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Deferred Taxe
The significant components of the Company’s detetax account balances are as follows:

January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:

Loss and tax credit carryforwar $ 2,99¢ $ 2,96¢

Accrued liabilities 2,94¢ 3,53¢

Shar-based compensatic 37€ 332

Other 1,02¢ 70¢
Total deferred tax asse 7,35(C 7,54(
Valuation allowanct (2,52%) (2,899
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowg $ 4,82 $ 4,641
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipme $ 5,891 $ 4,84¢

Inventories 1,627 1,01«

Other 40¢ 474
Total deferred tax liabilitie 7,927 6,33¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 3,10 $ 1,69t

The deferred taxes noted above are classifiedllasvioin the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets:

January 31,
(Amounts in millions 2012 2011
Balance Sheet Classification
Assets:
Prepaid expenses and ot $ 81t $ 1,63¢€
Other assets and deferred chai 73€ 327
Asset subtotal 1,55 1,96:
Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities 41 17
Deferred income taxes and otl 4,617 3,641
Liability subtotals 4,65¢ 3,65¢
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 3,10¢ $ 1,69t

Unremitted Earnings

United States income taxes have not been providextocumulated but undistributed earnings of the @aomy’s international subsidiaries of
approximately $19.7 billion and $17.0 billion asJafhuary 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, as timep@ay intends to permanently reinvest
these amounts outside of the United States. Howéwany portion were to be distributed, the retht¢ S. tax liability may be reduced by
foreign income taxes paid on those earnings. Détation of the unrecognized deferred tax liabili®yated to these undistributed earnings is
not practicable because of the complexities wihhitpothetical calculation. Deferred or currenetaare and have been provided for earnings
of international subsidiaries and associated comgamhen the Company plans to remit those earnings.

Net Operating Losses, Tax Credit Carryforwards &taduation Allowance

At January 31, 2012, the Company had net operaismjand capital loss carryforwards totaling appnately $5.3 billion. Of these
carryforwards, approximately $3.4 billion will expj if not utilized, in various years through 20ZBe remaining carryforwards have no
expiration. At January 31, 2012, the Company haeligm tax credit carryforwards of $1.2 billion, whiwill expire in various years through
2022, if not utilized.

As of January 31, 2012, the Company has provideaduation allowance of approximately $2.5 billion deferred tax assets associated
primarily with net operating loss carryforwards fehich management has determined it is more likedy not that the deferred tax asset will
not be realized. The $371 million net change invaleation allowance during fiscal 2012 relateddleases arising from the use of net
operating and capital loss carryforwards, reledsesto changes in judgment regarding the futuriétybn use net operating and capital loss
carryforwards, increases from certain net operdtisges arising in fiscal
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2012, decreases due to operating and capital \ssagons and fluctuations in currency exchangegaManagement believes that it is more
likely than not that the remaining net deferreddazets will be fully realized.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The benefits of uncertain tax positions are reaideghe Company’s Consolidated Financial Statementy after determining a more-likely-
than-not probability that the uncertain tax posisiavill withstand challenge, if any, from taxingtlaorities.

As of January 31, 2012 and 2011, the amount ofoagr@ized tax benefits related to continuing operatiwas $611 million and $795 million,
respectively, of which, the amount of unrecognitgdbenefits that would affect the Company’s effectax rate is $520 million and $687
million for January 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively

A reconciliation of unrecognized tax benefits froaomtinuing operations is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010
Unrecognized tax benefit, beginning of year $ 79t $1,01¢ $1,01%
Increases related to prior year tax positi 87 101 12¢
Decreases related to prior year tax posit (162) (62) (33
Increases related to current year tax posit 56 19¢ 24¢€
Settlements during the perir (161) (453) (340
Lapse in statutes of limitatior 4 (10 —
Unrecognized tax benefit, end of yt $ 611 $ 79t $1,01¢

The Company classifies interest and penaltiesa@lat uncertain tax benefits as interest expend@samperating, selling, general and
administrative expenses, respectively. During fi2€d 2, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognizeddstemd penalty (benefit) expense
related to uncertain tax positions of $(19) milli®&5 million and $88 million, respectively. At dmry 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had
accrued interest related to uncertain tax positafis66 million and $205 million, respectively,dai0 million and $2 million of accrued
penalties, respectively.

During the next twelve months, it is reasonablysiue that tax audit resolutions could reduce uogezed tax benefits by between $15
million and $43 million, either because the taxifoss are sustained on audit or because the Coyrgigrees to their disallowance. The
Company does not expect any change to have ais@mtifimpact in its Consolidated Financial Statetsen

The Company remains subject to income tax exanaingtior its U.S. federal income taxes generallyfikwral 2009 through 2012. The
Company also remains subject to income tax examimafor international income taxes for fiscal 2@BBugh 2012, and for U.S. state and
local income taxes generally for fiscal 2006 thio@@12.

Discontinued Operation

At January 31, 2010, the Company had an unrecodmézebenefit of $1.7 billion related to an ordiparorthless stock deduction from the
fiscal 2007 disposition of its German operationsriby the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, this mattes effectively settled with the Internal
Revenue Service, which resulted in the reclassifinaof the deduction as an ordinary loss, a chfuts that the Company has fully offset
with a valuation allowance, and a reduction inagbeumulated but undistributed earnings of an itigonal subsidiary. In connection with t
settlement, the Company recorded a $1.0 billiorbeexefit in discontinued operations in the Comparg§onsolidated Statements of Income
(see Note 14) and a reduction of its accrued incaxéiability in the Company Consolidated Balance Sheet at January 31, 20Htdition
during fiscal 2012, tax and related interest expeafsb67 million was recorded to discontinued opens related to audit adjustments and
amended returns from this settlement for U.S. f@ldand state income tax purposes.

Other Taxes

Additionally, the Company is subject to tax exantiioas for payroll, value added, sales-based andratbn-income taxes. A number of these
examinations are ongoing and, in certain case® resulted in assessments from the taxing autbsriWhere appropriate, the Company has
made accruals for these matters, which are refldntehe Company’s Consolidated Financial Stateméfhile these matters are individually
immaterial, a group of related matters, if deciddsersely to the Company, may result in a liabiitsterial to the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Note 11. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in a number of legal praaegs. The Company has made accruals with respelese matters, where appropriate,
which are reflected in the Company’s Consolidat@dfcial Statements. For some matters, the amduiatbdity is not probable or the
amount cannot be reasonably estimated and theraégraals have not been made. However, where ifitliab reasonably possible and
material, such matters have been disclosed. Thep@oynmay enter into discussions regarding settléiethese matters, and may enter into
settlement agreements, if it believes settlemeint tise best interest of the Company’s shareholddre matters, or groups of related matters,
discussed below, if decided adversely to or setifethe Company, individually or in the aggregatay result in a liability material to the
Company’s financial condition or results of opevas.

Wage-and-Hour Class Action:The Company is a defendantBnaun/Hummel v. Wal-Mart Stores, In@ class action lawsuit commencet
March 2002 in the Court of Common Pleas in Philpldial, Pennsylvania. The plaintiffs allege that@wempany failed to pay class members
for all hours worked and prevented class members teking their full meal and rest breaks. On Oetdl83, 2006, a jury awarded back-pay
damages to the plaintiffs of approximately $78 imillon their claims for off-thelock work and missed rest breaks. The jury foumthvor of
the Company on the plaintiffs’ meal-period claif@ November 14, 2007, the trial judge entered @ fudgment in the approximate amount
of $188 million, which included the jury’s back-paward plus statutory penalties, prejudgment isteaiad attorneys’ fees. By operation of
law, post-judgment interest accrues on the judgraerdunt at the rate of six percent per annum filmerdate of entry of the judgment, which
was November 14, 2007, until the judgment is paidess the judgment is set aside on appeal. Onrileze7, 2007, the Company filed its
Notice of Appeal. The Company filed its opening elpgie brief on February 17, 2009, plaintiffs filtekir response brief on April 20, 20(
and the Company filed its reply brief on June §)200ral argument was held before the Superior Gafukppeals on August 19, 2009. On
June 10, 2011, the Superior Court of Appeals issueopinion upholding the trial court’s certificati of the class, the jury’s back pay award,
and the awards of statutory penalties and prejudgmeerest, but reversing the award of attornégss and remanding it back to the trial
court for a downward adjustment. On July 10, 2@ké&,Company filed an Application for Rehearing EamB with regard to the portions of
the opinion that held in favor of the plaintiffshigh was denied on August 11, 2011. On Septemk20®1, the Company filed a Petition for
Allowance of Appeal with the Pennsylvania Suprenoei© The plaintiffs filed a response on Septent®r2011, and the Company filed a
reply brief on September 30, 2011. The Companyetied it has substantial factual and legal defetustee claims at issue, and plans to
continue pursuing appellate review.

Gender Discrimination Class Actions:The Company is a defendantDukes v. Wal-Mart Stores, Incwhich was commenced as a class-
action lawsuit in June 2001 in the United Statestiizit Court for the Northern District of Califomiasserting that the Company had engaged
in a pattern and practice of discriminating agaimsinen in promotions, pay, training, and job assignts, and seeking, among other things,
injunctive relief, front pay, back pay, punitiverdages, and attorneyf®es. On June 21, 2004, the district court issumedrder granting in pa
and denying in part the plaintiffs’ motion for ctasertification. As defined by the district couhte class included “[a]ll women employed at
any Wal-Mart domestic retail store at any time sibecember 26, 1998, who have been or may be sebjecWal-Mart's challenged pay
and management track promotions policies and pes:ti The Company appealed the order to the Nimtu Court of Appeals and
subsequently to the United States Supreme Courfu@e 20, 2011, the Supreme Court issued an opitdoertifying the class and remanc
the case to the district court. On October 27, 284 plaintiffs’ attorneys filed an amended computl@roposing a class of current and former
female associates at the Company’s Californialrigeilities, and the Company filed a Motion to Bisss on January 13, 2012. On

October 28, 2011, the plaintiffs’ attorneys filed@mplaint in the United States District Court foe Northern District of Texas entitl€adle

v. Wal-Mart Stores, Ing.proposing a class of current and former femadeciates at the Company’s Texas retail facilitied asserting

claims and relief similar to Dukes. The Compangdih Motion to Dismiss on March 5, 2012. While ngeraent cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of these matters, management does nov&étie outcome will have a material effect on tlenpanys financial condition or resu

of operations.

Hazardous Materials Investigations:On November 8, 2005, the Company received a granydspbpoena from the United States Attorney’s
Office for the Central District of California, saelg documents and information relating to the Conyfgmreceipt, transportation, handling,
identification, recycling, treatment, storage amspdsal of certain merchandise that constituteadtms materials or hazardous waste. The
Company has been informed by the U.S. Attorneyfic®for the Central District of California thatig a target of a criminal investigation

into potential violations of the Resource Conseormand Recovery Act (‘RCRA”), the Clean Water A&cid the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Statute. This U.S. Attorney’s Offaantends, among other things, that the use of @osprucks to transport certain returned
merchandise from the Company’s stores to its retenters is prohibited by RCRA because those naddariay be considered hazardous
waste. The government alleges that, to comply RIEIRA, the Company must ship from the store cer@dterials as “hazardous waste”
directly to a certified disposal facility using ertified hazardous waste carrier. The U.S. Attoim&ffice in the Northern District of

California and the U.S. Environmental ProtectioreAgy subsequently joined in this investigation. Tmanpany contends that the practice of
transporting returned merchandise to its returiersrior subsequent disposition, including disptyatertified facilities, is compliant with
applicable laws and regulations. While managemaniat predict the ultimate outcome of this mattenagement does not believe the
outcome will have a material effect on the Compariiyiancial condition or results of operations.
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Note 12. Commitments

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries hamg-term leases for stores and equipment. Rentathifling amounts applicable to taxes,
insurance, maintenance, other operating expensksamtingent rentals) under operating leases amer ghort-term rental arrangements were
$2.4 billion, $2.0 billion and $1.8 billion in fis€ 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Aggregate minimum annual rentals at January 312 2@dder non-cancelable leases are as follows:

(Amounts in millions

Operating

Capital
Fiscal Year Leases Leases
2013 $ 1,644 $ 60¢
2014 1,59C 58C
2015 1,52t 532
2016 1,42¢ 497
2017 1,312 457
Thereafte 8,91¢ 3,261
Total minimum rental. $16,41¢ $5,93¢
Less estimated executory co 50
Net minimum lease paymer 5,88t
Less imputed intere: 2,55(
Present value of minimum lease payme $3,33¢

Certain of the Company’s leases provide for theypanyt of contingent rentals based on a percentagale$. Such contingent rentals were
immaterial for fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010. Substdigtall of the Company’s store leases have ret@ptons, some of which may trigger an
escalation in rentals.

The Company has future lease commitments for ladbaiildings for approximately 425 future locatiolbese lease commitments have
lease terms ranging from 4 to 50 years and prdideertain minimum rentals. If executed, paymemtder operating leases would increase
by $92 million for fiscal 2013, based on currenstcestimates.

In connection with certain debt financing, the Camyp could be liable for early termination paymeahtgrtain unlikely events were to occur.
At January 31, 2012, the aggregate termination geynvould have been $122 million. The arrangempuatsuant to which these payments
could be made expire in fiscal 2019.

Note 13. Retirement-Related Benefits

Through fiscal 2011, the Company maintained sepamatfit sharing and 401(k) plans for associatakénUnited States and Puerto Rico,
under which associates generally became partiggatibwing one year of employment. The profit shgrcomponent was entirely funded by
the Company, and the Company also made additi@mtibutions to the 401(k) component of the plamadidition to the Company’s
contributions, associates could elect to contrilaupercentage of their earnings to the 401(k) corapbof the plan.

Effective February 1, 2011, the Company termingitedprevious profit sharing and 401(k) plans arfdrefl new safe harbor 401(k) plans for
associates in the United States and Puerto Riderumhich associates generally become particifafitaving one year of employment.
Under the safe harbor 401(k) plans, the Compangmeat100% of participant contributions up to 6% mfiual eligible earnings. The
matching contributions immediately vest at 100%efach associate. Participants can contribute 80% of their pretax earnings, but not
more than the statutory limits. Participants ag@56lder may defer additional earnings in catgheontributions up to the maximum statut
limits.

Contribution expense associated with these plass$®g2 million in fiscal 2012 and $1.1 billion f&8011 and 2010.

Employees in international countries who are n@.\ditizens are covered by various post-employrbengfit arrangements. These plans are
administered based upon the legislative and taximeaents in the countries in which they are es&hbt. Annual contributions to
international retirement savings and profit shapians are made at the discretion of the Companyyaere $284 million, $221 million and
$218 million in fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, resjpedy.
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The Company’s subsidiaries in the United Kingdord daapan have defined benefit pension plans. Theiplthe United Kingdom was
underfunded by $339 million and $494 million atJdary 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The plampad was underfunded by $325 mill
and $309 million at January 31, 2012 and 2011 eetsgely. These underfunded amounts have beendedadn deferred income taxes and
other in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Staetanuary 31, 2012 and 2011. Certain other intiemel operations have defined benefit
arrangements that are not significant.

In February 2011, ASDA and the trustees of ASDAgfined benefit plan agreed to remove future bemefituals from the plan and, with the
consent of a majority of the plan participantspalsmoved the link between past accrual and futageincreases. In return, ASDA paid
approximately $70 million in fiscal 2012 to the plparticipants. The related curtailment gain ofragpmately $90 million was recorded in
fiscal 2012 as a decrease to deferred actuaris¢$oi® other comprehensive income.

Note 14. Acquisitions, Investments and Disposals
Acquisitions and Investment
Certain acquisitions completed or in process duifigwal 2012 are as follows:

Massmart Holdings Limited (“Massmart”): In June 2011, the Company completed a tender fuffeapproximately 51% ownership in
Massmart, a South African retailer with approxinha®90 stores in 13 sub-Saharan African countfié® purchase price for approximately
51% of Massmart was approximately ZAR 16.9 bill{2.5 billion). The assets acquired were approxéye$6.4 billion, including
approximately $3.5 billion in goodwill; liabilitieassumed were approximately $1.9 billion; and the-controlling interest was approximats
$2.0 billion. As of January 31, 2012, the allocatas the Massmart purchase price to the fair valufie assets acquired and liabilities is
provisional. The Company began consolidating Masssw@sults in its fiscal 2012 third quarter refag period.

Netto Food Stores Limited (“Netto”): In April 2011, the Company completed the regulatpproved acquisition of 147 Netto stores from
Dansk Supermarked in the United Kingdom. The Compmamverted the majority of these stores to the ASiband during fiscal 2012. The
final purchase price for the acquisition was apprately £750 million ($1.2 billion). The assets argd were approximately $1.3 billion,
including approximately $748 million in goodwillnd liabilities assumed were approximately $103iomill As of January 31, 2012, the
allocation of the Netto purchase price to the Yaiue of the assets acquired and liabilities is/jsional.

Bounteous Company Limited (“BCL"): In February 2007, the Company purchased an ir#&&b interest in BCL, which operates in China
under the Trust-Mart banner. The Company paid $2@bn for its initial 35% interest and, as addital consideration, paid $376 million to
extinguish a thirgparty loan issued to the selling BCL shareholdeas was secured by the pledge of the remainingyeqtBCL. Concurren
with its initial investment in BCL, the Company ergd into a Shareholders’ Agreement, which provtdesCompany with voting rights
associated with a portion of the common stock of BEcuring the loan, amounting to an additional 3if%he aggregate outstanding shares.
Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Cymn@es committed to purchase the remaining inténeBCL on or before November 2
2010, subject to certain conditions. The Comparg/the selling shareholder have mutually agreecteng the closing, while certain
conditions of the contract are being completed. fdmties are now in the process of completing tleallregistrations for the Trustmart stores
and expect to complete the sale of the remainimgfyemterest in Trustmart as soon as practicablieving that process.

Disposals

At January 31, 2010, the Company had an unrecogm#zebenefit of $1.7 billion related to a worttdestock deduction from the final 2007
disposition of its German operations. This mattaswffectively settled with the Internal Revenuevige, during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2011, resulting in a $1.0 billion tax benefit reded in discontinued operations in the Company’'sstdated Statement of Income. In
addition, during fiscal 2012, tax and interest exgeeof $67 million was recorded to discontinuedrafiens related to this settlement for U.S.
federal and state income tax purposes. See Ndigr Hilditional information.

During fiscal 2009, the Company initiated a resutiog program for its Japanese subsidiary, ThgBeid., to close approximately 23 stores
and dispose of certain excess properties, whichswhstantially completed in fiscal 2010. This nesturing involved incurring costs
associated with lease termination obligations,tasggairment charges and employee separation liené&fie operating results, including the
restructuring and impairment charges were appraalp&7 million and $79 million, net of tax, fostial 2011 and 2010, respectively, and
presented as discontinued operations in the Conp&uonsolidated Statements of Income.
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The assets, liabilities, net sales and cash fl@lead to the Company’s discontinued operationgwet significant during fiscal years 2012,
2011 and 2010. The net income or losses relatdttt@ompany’s discontinued operations, includirgghin and (losses) upon disposition,
are as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended January 31,

(Amounts in millions 2012 2011 2010
Germany $ (67) $ 1,041 $—
Seiyu — ) (79

$(67) $103¢ $(79

Note 15. Segments

The Company operates retail stores in various ftsraeound the world. The Company’s operations anglacted in three reportable
segments: the Walmart U.S. segment; the Walmagtrational segment; and the Sam’s Club segmentCbinepany defines its segments as
those business units whose operating results ié$ cperating decision maker (“CODM”) regularly fews to analyze performance and
allocate resources. The Company sells similar iddad products and services in each of its segméntsimpractical to segregate and
identify revenue and profits for each individuabguct and service.

The Walmart U.S. segment includes the Company’smeeschant concept in the United States operatidgnthe “Walmart” or “Wal-Mart”
brand, as well as walmart.com. The Walmart Intéonal segment consists of the Company’s operatiomside of the United States. The
Sam'’s Club segment includes the warehouse membpaerklis in the United States, as well as samsaoh.dhe amounts under the caption
“Other unallocated” in the table below include amate overhead and other items not allocated taéitlye Company’s segments.

The Company measures the results of its segmeinig, @nong other measures, each segment’s operatioge, which includes certain
corporate overhead allocations. From time to tithe,Company revises the measurement of each segropetating income, including any
corporate overhead allocations, as dictated bynfleemation regularly reviewed by its CODM. Wheretineasurement of the segments
change, previous fiscal year amounts and balarree®elassified to be comparable to the currentfigear presentation. Information for the
Company’s segments and the reconciliation to catestgld income from continuing operations befor@ine taxes are in the following table:
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(Amounts in millions

Walmart Other

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2012 Walmart U.S. International Sam'’s Club unallocatec Consolidatec
Net sales $ 264,18t $ 12587 $53,798% $ — $ 443,85:
Operating income (lost 20,36% 6,214 1,86t (1,88¢) 26,55¢
Interest expense, n (2,160
Income from continuing operations before incomee& $ 24,39
Total assets of continuing operatic $ 9305( $ 81,36¢ $ 12,827 $ 6,08( $ 193,31
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,792 2,47(C 611 25E 8,13(
Capital expenditure 6,571 5,27¢ 842 822 13,51(
Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2011

Net sales $ 260,26: $ 109,23: $4945¢ $ — $ 418,95.
Operating income (lost 19,91¢ 5,60¢ 1,711 (1,699 25,54
Interest expense, n (2,009
Income from continuing operations before incomee& $ 23,53¢
Total assets of continuing operatic $ 89,72¢ $ 72,022 $12531 $ 6,25¢ $ 180,53.
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,61¢ 2,18¢ 594 244 7,641
Capital expenditure 7,32¢ 3,994 711 66€ 12,69¢
Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2010

Net sales $ 259,91¢ $ 97,407 $4780¢6 $ — $ 405,13.
Operating income (lost 19,31« 4,901 1,51¢ (1,729 24,00z
Interest expense, n (1,889
Income from continuing operations before income $ 22,11¢
Total assets of continuing operatic $ 8423t $ 66,51¢ $12,05( $ 7,464 $ 170,26
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,352 1,97¢ 55¢ 26¢ 7,157
Capital expenditure 6,61¢ 3,83 793 941 12,18«

The net revenues, consisting of net sales and nmsinpeand other income, of the Company’s UnitedeStaperations were $320 billion,
$312 hillion and $310 billion for fiscal 2012, 20&hd 2010, respectively. The long-lived assetssisting primarily of property and
equipment, net, of the Company’s United Statesatfmers were $75.9 billion, $73.6 billion and $76illion as of January 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. No other countries had netmegs or long-lived assets, net, that were matgritde consolidated totals. Additionally, the
Company did not generate material net revenues &yrsingle customer.

Note 16. Subsequent Event

On March 1, 2012, the Board of Directors approvedharease in the annual dividend for fiscal 201$1.59 per share, an increase of
approximately 9% over the dividends paid in fis2@12. Dividends per share were $1.46 and $1.2i5¢alf2012 and 2011, respectively. For
fiscal 2013, the annual dividend will be paid infauarterly installments of $0.3975 per sharepgting to the following record and payable
dates:

Record Date Payable Date

March 12, 2012 April 4, 2012
May 11, 201z June 4, 201.
August 10, 201! September 4, 20:
December 7, 201 January 2, 201
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Note 17. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
(Amounts in millions except per share dz

Net sales

Cost of sale:

Income from continuing operatiol

Consolidated net incorr

Consolidated net income attributable to Waln

Basic net income per common share attributable atmért
Diluted net income per common share attributabM/sdmart

Net sales

Cost of sale:

Income from continuing operatiol

Consolidated net incorr

Consolidated net income attributable to Waln

Basic net income per common share attributable atmért
Diluted net income per common share attributabM/sdmart

The sum of per share data may not agree to annmaluats due to rounding.

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2012

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
$103,41! $108,63¢ $109,51¢ $122,28! $443,85:
78,177 81,77( 82,59 92,58¢ 335,12
3,57¢ 3,931 3,501 5,43¢ 16,45+
3,55( 3,937 3,49¢ 5,407 16,38
3,39¢ 3,801 3,33¢ 5,16: 15,69¢
$ 097 $ 10 $ 097 $ 151 $ 454
0.97 1.0¢ 0.9¢ 1.5C 4.5z

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2011

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total
$ 99,097 $103,01¢ $101,23¢ $115,60( $418,95:
74,61¢ 77,43¢ 75,81¢ 87,07. 314,94t
3,44/ 3,741 3,59( 5,17¢ 15,95¢
3,44/ 3,741 3,59( 6,212 16,99¢
3,301 3,59¢ 3,43¢ 6,05¢ 16,38¢
$ 08 $ 097 $ 09 $ 171 $ 4.4¢
0.87 0.97 0.9t 1.7C 4.47



Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Wal-MartStores, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. as of Januar2812 and 2011, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehenso@ie, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for ediche three years in the period ended
January 31, 2012. These financial statements areeiponsibility of the Company’s management. @sponsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marnageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. at January 31, 2012 and 2011, andathsolidated results of its operations and its ¢asts for each of the three years in the
period ended January 31, 2012, in conformity witB.\generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), Wal-Mart Stores,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @sJanuary 31, 2012, based on criteria establighétternal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report dateccMa7, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF
Rogers, Arkansas
March 27, 201:
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Wal-MartStores, Inc.

We have audited Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.’s internaitonl over financial reporting as of January 31120based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued byG@enmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TwesdCommission (the COSO
criteria). Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.’s management spansible for maintaining effective internal cohtwaer financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accompgagy'Management’s Report to Our
Shareholders.” Our responsibility is to expresspinion on the Company’s internal control over final reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé@/nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditideld obtaining an understanding of internal cordv@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnaduthe design and operating effectiveness ofiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considereessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesamssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the companysessthat could have a material effect on the firstatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying “Management’s RefpoOur Shareholders”, management's assessmemtcbfonclusion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting did not include the internal controls of $danart Holdings Limited and Netto Food
Stores Limited, which are included in the 2012 otidsited financial statements of Wal-Mart Stores, land constituted 3.8% and 1.1% of
the Company’s consolidated total assets and catadeli net sales, respectively, as of and for the geded January 31, 2012. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting of Wal-KM&tores, Inc. also did not include an evaluatibthe internal control over financial
reporting of Massmart Holdings Limited and NettamBdtores Limited.

In our opinion, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. maintaineaall material respects, effective internal contreér financial reporting as of January 31,
2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdi the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. as of Jgr@g 2012 and 2011, and related consolidatedrsitts of income, comprehensive
income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows fohezdhe three years in the period ended Janugrg@®2 and our report dated March 27,
2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Rogers, Arkansas
March 27, 2012
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Management’s Report to Our Shareholders
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Management of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Walmart,” titempany” or “we”) is responsible for the prepawat integrity and objectivity of
Walmart's Consolidated Financial Statements andrdihancial information contained in this Annuadort to Shareholders. Those
Consolidated Financial Statements were preparednformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States. In
preparing those Consolidated Financial Statememsagement was required to make certain estimatepidgments, which are based upon
currently available information and managementswof current conditions and circumstances.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, whizonsists solely of independent directors, oversee process of reporting financial
information and the audit of our Consolidated FiriahStatements. The Audit Committee stays informoethe financial condition of Walme
and regularly reviews management’s financial peficnd procedures, the independence of our indepeadditors, our internal control over
financial reporting and the objectivity of our fim@al reporting. Both the independent auditors thedinternal auditors have free access to the
Audit Committee and meet with the Audit Committegipdically, both with and without management prése

Acting through our Audit Committee, we have retdif@nst & Young LLP, an independent registered jgudtcounting firm, to audit our
Consolidated Financial Statements found in thisushiiReport to Shareholders. We have made avaitatiienst & Young LLP all of our
financial records and related data in connectich tieir audit of our Consolidated Financial Stagets. We have filed with the Securities
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) the required certifmas related to our Consolidated Financial Statémas of and for the year ended
January 31, 2012. These certifications are attaaBezkhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfer year ended January 31, 2012.
Additionally, we have also provided to the New Y@&tock Exchange the required annual certificatibous Chief Executive Officer
regarding our compliance with the New York StoclcEange’s corporate governance listing standards.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management has responsibility for establishing maghtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting. Internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed to preva&hsonable assurance regarding the reliabilifinafcial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external reporting purgdaeaccordance with accounting principles gengiadcepted in the United States. Because
of its inherent limitations, internal control oviarancial reporting may not prevent or detect naitsnents. Management has assessed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting as of January 31, 2012. Irking its assessment, management has
utilized the criteria set forth by the CommitteeSgfonsoring Organizations (“COSO”) of the TreadwWaynmission irnnternal Control —
Integrated Framewor. Management concluded that based on its assessiWiaimart’s internal control over financial repadiwas effective
as of January 31, 2012. The Company'’s internalrobater financial reporting as of January 31, 2(as been audited by Ernst & Young
LLP as stated in their report which appears in frinual Report to Shareholders.

Under guidelines established by the SEC, compami@sllowed to exclude acquisitions from theirtfassessment of internal control over
financial reporting following the date of acquisiii Based on those guidelines, management’s assessfithe effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiexcluded Massmart Holdings Limited (“Massmartfwdich the Company purchased a
controlling interest in fiscal 2012, as well as fédtood Stores Limited (“Netto”), of which the Coany purchased 147 stores in the United
Kingdom in fiscal 2012. Massmart and Netto représginin the aggregate, 3.8% and 1.1% of the Comipaoyisolidated total assets and
consolidated net sales, respectively, as of anthByear ended January 31, 2012. These acquis#i@more fully discussed in Note 14 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements for fiscdl20

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresgydesi to provide reasonable assurance that infoomagiquired to be timely disclosed is
accumulated and communicated to management inedytii@shion. Management has assessed the effeetigaf these disclosure controls
and procedures as of January 31, 2012, and detdrtiiey were effective as of that date to provedesonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports \eeofi submit under the Securities Exchange Acta®41 as amended, was accumulated and
communicated to management, as appropriate, tev éihoely decisions regarding required disclosurd aere effective to provide reasona
assurance that such information is recorded, psecksummarized and reported within the time perspeécified by the SEC’s rules and
forms.
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Report on Ethical Standards

Our Company was founded on the belief that opennconications and the highest standards of ethiceezessary to be successful. Our
long-standing “Open Door” communication policy relpanagement be aware of and address issuesiels ind effective manner.
Through the open door policy all associates arewaged to inform management at the appropriatd lgkien they are concerned about any
matter pertaining to Walmart.

Walmart has adopted a Statement of Ethics to guid@ssociates in the continued observance ofdtigihal standards such as honesty,
integrity and compliance with the law in the condofcWalmart’'s business. Familiarity and compliamgéh the Statement of Ethics is
required of all associates who are part of manageriée Company also maintains a separate CodéhafsHor our senior financial officers.
Walmart also has in place a Related-Party Trarmaé&tolicy. This policy applies to Walmart’s senidficers and directors and requires
material related-party transactions to be revietyethe Audit Committee. The senior officers anckdiors are required to report material
relatedparty transactions to Walmart. We maintain a glathics office which oversees and administers hicghelpline. The ethics helpli
provides a channel for associates to make confalearid anonymous complaints regarding potentialations of our statements of ethics,
including violations related to financial or accting matters.

/s/ Michael T. Duke
Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Offic

/sl Charles M. Holley, Jr.
Charles M. Holley, Ji
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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Fiscal 2012 Unit Count
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

State or Territory
Alabama

Alaska
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticu
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii

Idaho

Illinois
Indiana

lowa

Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachusett
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraske
Nevadas

New Hampshire
New Jerse)
New Mexico
New York
North Caroling
North Dakote
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvani:
Rhode Islanc
South Carolin:
South Dakotz
Tennesse
Texas

Utah

Walmart U.S. Sam'’s Club
Neighborhood Markets
and
Supercenter: Discount Store: other small formats Clubs Grand Total
92 4 6 13 11¢%
7 2 — 3 12
72 4 19 15 11C
69 11 14 7 101
79 101 — 33 213
64 5 — 15 84
5 28 — 3 36
6 3 — 1 10
18¢ 23 31 44 287
13¢€ 4 — 23 168
— 8 — 2 10
20 1 — 1 22
11¢ 33 3 28 183
90 11 3 16 12C
50 9 — 8 67
53 5 8 7 73
76 8 7 9 10C
80 4 6 12 10z
17 5 — 3 25
17 28 — 12 57
13 34 — 2 49
81 9 — 26 11€
53 8 — 13 74
60 5 1 7 73
104 15 — 16 13t
12 1 — 2 15
31 — — 3 34
28 2 11 7 48
13 14 — 4 31
14 42 — 10 66
33 3 2 7 45
67 29 — 16 112
12¢ 11 5 22 167
11 1 — 3 15
12¢& 16 — 29 173
77 9 18 9 113
18 14 — — 32
10C 31 — 23 154
4 5 — — 9
74 3 — 9 86
12 — — 2 14
10€& 2 6 16 132
31¢€ 32 35 73 45¢
38 — 5 8 51
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Vermont — 4 — — 4
Virginia 94 8 1 16 11¢
Washingtor 41 13 — 3 57
West Virginia 38 — 43
Wisconsin 69 15 — 12 96
Wyoming 10 — — 2 12
Puerto Ricc 10 _ 6 _ 29 1 56
United States total 3,02¢ 62¢ 21C 611 4,47¢
Walmart International
Walmart International has a diverse portfolio vaghproximately 70 banners, represented in threemsajegories. Unit counts as of
January 31, 2012 are as follows:
Geographic Market Retail Wholesale Other ®) Total
Argentina 88 — — 88
Brazil 42¢ 83 — 512
Canade 338 — — 33:
Chile 314 — 2 31€
China 364 6 — 37C
Costa Rice 20C — — 20C
El Salvadol 79 — — 79
Guatemal: 19¢ 2 — 20C
Honduras 70 — — 70
India — 15 — 15
Japar 367 — 52 41¢
Mexico 1,60( 124 364 2,08¢
Nicarague 73 — — 73
South Africa 21¢ 86 — 30¢&
Suk-Saharan Africi2 30 12 — 42
United Kingdom 541 — — 541
International Total 4,90t 32¢ 41¢€ 5,65]

(€3

o balance sheet dai

Zambia.

@ “Other consists of restaurants operating under varyingéanin Chile, Japan and Mexic
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Walmart International unit counts, with the exceptof Canada, are stated as of December 31, 20tbrtespond with the country’s

Sub-Saharan Africa includes Botswana, Ghana, Lesdfalawi, Mozambique, Namibia, Nigeria, Swaziladnzania, Uganda and



Board of Directors

Aida M. Alvarez

Ms. Alvarez is the former Administrator of the USnall Business Administration and was a memb@&re§ident Clinton’s Cabinet from
1997 to 2001.

James W. Breyer

Mr. Breyer is a Partner of Accel Partners, a ventapital firm.

M. Michele Burns

Ms. Burns is the Executive Director and Chief Exe@uOfficer of the Retirement Policy Center spaiesbby Marsh & McLennan
Companies, Inc.

James |. Cash, Jr., Ph.D.

Dr. Cash is the retired James E. Robison Emeritofefsor of Business Administration at Harvard Bass School, where he served from
July 1976 to October 2003.

Roger C. Corbett

Mr. Corbett is the retired Chief Executive Offi@rd Group Managing Director of Woolworths Limitéde largest retail company in
Australia.

Douglas N. Daft

Mr. Datft is the retired Chairman of the Board ofdaitors and Chief Executive Officer of The Cocad@lBbmpany, a beverage manufacturer,
where he served in that capacity from February 2000 May 2004 and in various other capacitiexsifh969.

Michael T. Duke

Mr. Duke is the President and Chief Executive @ifiof Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and is the Chairmathef Executive Committee of the Board
of Directors.

Gregory B. Penner

Mr. Penner is a General Partner at Madrone Capéghers, an investment management firm.

Steven S Reinemund

Mr. Reinemund is the Dean of Business and Profesfdoeadership and Strategy at Wake Forest Unityeridie previously served as the
Chairman of the Board and Chairman and Chief Exee@fficer of PepsiCo, Inc.

H. Lee Scott, Jr.

Mr. Scott is the former Chairman of the Executivan@nittee of the Board of Directors of Wal-Mart S8y Inc. He is the former President
and Chief Executive Officer of Wal-Mart Stores, Ingerving in that position from January 2000 touday 2009.

Arne M. Sorenson
Mr. Sorenson is the President and Chief Executiffe€ of Marriott International, Inc.

Jim C. Walton

Mr. Walton is the Chairman of the Board of Direstand Chief Executive Officer of Arvest Bank Groupg., a group of banks operating in
the states of Arkansas, Kansas, Missouri and Okfaho

S. Robson Walton
Mr. Walton is Chairman of the Board of Directors\Wéal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Christopher J. Williams
Mr. Williams is the Chairman of the Board of Diret and Chief Executive Officer of The Williams @apGroup, L.P., an investment bank.

Linda S. Wolf

Ms. Wolf is the retired Chairman of the Board ofé&®itors and Chief Executive Officer of Leo Burnatbridwide, Inc., an advertising agency
and division of Publicis Groupe S.A.
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Corporate and stock information
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Corporate information

Stock Registrar and Transfer Agent:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

P.O. Box 43069

Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3069
1-800-438-6278

TDD for hearing-impaired inside the U.S. 1-800-35245
Internet: http//www.computershare.com

Listing
New York Stock Exchang
Stock Symbol: WMT

Annual meeting

Our Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be heldraiday, June 1, 2012, at 7:00 a.m. (Central timeBud Walton Arena on the University
of Arkansas campus, Fayetteville, Arkansas.

Communication with shareholders

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. periodically communicateshnits shareholders and other members of the invagtoommunity about our operations.
For further information regarding our policy on eftaolder and investor communications refer to oebsite
www.walmartstores.com/investors

The following reports are available without chatg®n request by writing the Company c/o Investdafans or by calling 479-273-8446.
These reports are also available via the corpavatssite.

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q

Earnings Releases

Current Reports on Form 8-K

Copy of Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Proxy Statemen
Global Responsibility Report

Diversity and Inclusion Report

Workforce Diversity Report

Independent registered public accounting firm

Ernst & Young LLP
5414 Pinnacle Point Dr., Suite 102
Rogers, AR 72758

Market price of common stock
The high and low market price per share for the @amy’s common stock in fiscal 2012 and 2011 werlok®wvs:

2012 2011
High Low High Low
1st Quarter $56.7¢  $50.97 $56.27 $52.6¢
2nd Quarte 56.47 51.7¢ 54.9¢ 47.71%
3rd Quarte! 57.9¢ 48.31 54.8: 50.0(
4th Quartel 62.0C 55.6¢ 57.9( 53.1¢
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The high and low market price per share for the @amy’s common stock for the first quarter of fis@lL3, were as follows:

2013
High Low
1st Quarter* $62.6: $58.2:

* Through March 22, 201

Dividends payable per share

For fiscal 2013, dividends will be paid based oafihllowing schedule:
April 4, 2012 $0.397¢
June 4, 201 $0.397¢
September 4, 201 $0.397¢
January 2, 201 $0.397¢

Dividends paid per share

For fiscal 2012, dividends were paid based on dlleviing schedule:
April 4, 2011 $0.365(
June 6, 201 $0.365(
September 6, 201 $0.365(
January 3, 201 $0.365(

For fiscal 2011, dividends were paid based on dlleviing schedule:
April 5, 2010 $0.302¢
June 1, 201 $0.302¢
September 7, 201 $0.302¢
January 3, 201 $0.302¢

Stock performance chart

This graph compares the cumulative total sharelheottarn on Walmars common stock during the five fiscal years endiit) fiscal 2012 ti
the cumulative total returns on the S&P 500 Retgilndex and the S&P 500 Index. The comparisonraesi$100 was invested on
February 1, 2007, in shares of our common stockimedch of the indices shown and assumes that #ike dividends were reinvested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTALRETURN
Among Wal-Mart Stores Inc., the S&P 500 Index and S&F 500 Retailing Index

—B— Wal-Mart Stores Inc. —a— SEP 500 wfr- SR P 00 Retailing

$160 4

$140 4

§120 4

5100

560 -

§40 4

§20 A

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 22

Fiscal Years

Assumes $100 Iinvested on February 1, 2007
Assumes Dividends Reinvested
Fiscal Year Ending January 31, 2012



Shareholders
As of March 22, 2012, there were 275,525 holdergobrd of Walmart’'s common stock.
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Significant Subsidiaries of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Exhibit 21

The following list details certain of the subsidéar of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Subsidiaries not inled in the list are omitted because, in the
aggregate, they are insignificant as defined by I6©1(b)(21) of Regulation S-K.

Subsidiary
Wal-Mart Stores East, LP

Wal-Mart Property Compan
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Tri
ASDA Group Limited

Organized or
Incorporated

Percent o

Equity
Securities

Owned

Delaware, U.¢
Delaware, U.¢
Delaware, U.¢
England

10C%
10C%
10C%
10C%

Name Under
Which Doing
Business
Other Than

Subsidiary’s
Walmart
NA
NA
ASDA/Walmar



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference is #nnual Report (Form 10-K) of Wal-Mart Stores,.Ifar the year ended January 31, 2012
of our reports dated March 27, 2012, with respethé consolidated financial statements of Wal-Madres, Inc. and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of Wal-K&tores, Inc., included in the 2012 Annual Repoi$hareholders of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

We also consent to the incorporation by referendfe following Registration Statements:

(1) Stock Option Plan of 1984 of W-Mart Stores, Inc., as amen Form &-8 File Nos. -94358 and -6991
(2)  Stock Option Plan of 1994 of W-Mart Stores, Inc., as amen Form &8 File No. 3:-55325
(3) Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan dfMéat

Stores, Inc Form ¢-3 File No. 33-02089
(4) Director Compensation Plan of V-Mart Stores, Inc Form $-8 File No. 33-24259
(5) 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan of \-Mart Stores, Inc Form &-8 File No. 33-29847
(6) 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan of \-Mart Puerto Rico, Inc Form &-8 File No. 33-44659
(7)  Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Associate Stock Purchase PIl&r986 Form ¢-8 File No. 33-62965
(8) Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan of 20d@jch

amended and restated the 2005 and 1998 Form &8 File No. 33-60329
(9) The ASDA Colleague Share Ownership F Form &8 File No. 33-84027

The ASDA Group Long Term Incentive PI
The ASDA Group PLC Sharesave Sche

The ASDA 1984 Executive Share Option Sche
The ASDA 1994 Executive Share Option Sche

(10) The ASDA Colleague Share Ownership Plan 1 Form &-8 File No. 33-88501
(11) Wwal-Mart Profit Sharing and 401(k) Pl Form &-8 File No. 33-109421
(12) Associate Stock Purchase Plan of 1 Form $-8 File No. 33-109417
(13) Wal-Mart Puerto Rico Profit Sharing and 401(k) P Form $-8 File No. 33-109414
(14) ASDA Colleague Share Ownership Plan 1999; ASDA
Sharesave Plan 20! Form &-8 File No. 33-107439
(15) Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan of 20d@jch
amended and restated the 2005 and 1998 Form &-8 File No. 33-128204
(16) The ASDA Sharesave Plan 20 Form &-8 File No. 33-168348
(17) Walmart Deferred Compensation Matching F Form &-8 File No. 33-178717
(18) Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. Common Sto Form -3 ASR File No. 33-178385
(19) Debt Securities of W-Mart Stores, Inc Form -3 ASR File No. 33-178706

of our reports dated March 27, 2012, with respethé consolidated financial statements of Wal-Mudres, Inc. and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting of Wal-K&tores, Inc., incorporated herein by referencehis Annual Report (Form 10-K) of Wal-
Mart Stores, Inc. for the year ended January 31220

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Rogers, Arkansas
March 27, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

[, Michael T. Duke, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (th“registran”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un

our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport, based on such
evaluations; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghid's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegjistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the Audit Committee of regist's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidf’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 27, 2012

/s/ Michael T. Duke
Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

I, Charles M. Holley, Jr., certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (th“registran”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatominy untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and ha

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed un

our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordanceggitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport, based on such
evaluations; an

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teghid's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegjistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registre’s auditors and the Audit Committee of regist's Board of Directors

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidf’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 27, 2012

/sl Charles M. Holley, Jr.
Charles M. Holley, Jr.
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 (AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report of Wal-Marb&s, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for theipdrending January 31, 2012 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Michael T. Duke, §ident and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify to my knowledge and in my cdigaas an officer of the Company, pursuant to 18.0. 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenft$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company as of the dates and for the periods exguieashe Report.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdQhrtificate, effective as of March 27, 2012.

/s/ Michael T. Duke
Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 (AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)

In connection with the Annual Report of Wal-Marb&s, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for theipdrending January 31, 2012 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#tte hereof (the “Report”), I, Charles M. Holley., Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify to my kmedge and in my capacity as an officer of the Camyp pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@dt of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeoft$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company as of the dates and for the periods exgaieasghe Report.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdQhrtificate, effective as of March 27, 2012.

/sl Charles M. Holley, J
Charles M. Holley, Ji
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




